Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.
EMIDEREEERAT

BROADENING
Our Impact

Annual Report 2020/21 FE #H &
Stock Code B 174X5% : 0345



The Netherlands

Canada Rl UK. Denmark
IEPN SEE ,
nse Iﬁr;ieland Geﬁn%ny Poland
) EWH potvid 3
Belgium 1= p N
EAs France
N Switzerland
EE (20
USA Luxembourg It
B EfHRE Spain Italy Japan
EEZ) BAR Mainland China South Korea A%
FE R e
. J
Dominican Republic Taiwan Hong Kon
ZAR I FE Macau aH 3 . .
Guatemala . RPY R
fit S Curacao  Martinique Cambodia
iz BRER RIBE —
The Philippines
Suriname Malaysia ; FEEE
#BERrg French Guiana BRAE ;r;]e'

Global Markets

EERHE
LR N —=— 1E Australia
2IREFEMIH =

Manufacturing Presence Singapore

BREERENEE N

New Zealand

A

Some of Vitasoy'’s
Flagship Products
R #Efth 1 2 R E

Soy/Plant Milk XE/ E¥113 Tofu & Tea %



Contents

Directors and Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Chairman’s Statement

Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review
Awards and Recognitions

Corporate Governance Report

Directors and Senior Management

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements

Five Year Summary

02

04

06

10

26

31

74

84

99

106

108

109

112

114

116

240

H &%

EEkEEEY

E S TES

EFEHRE

SEEITHRARRE HEEERE
YL

-

il

ARE

>

EENEEEEAE

ExEWms

B2

25
op
i}
BX

®

FeBEkHMZEERER

mEMBRRE

RERREBR

FERERER

BRI RE

hFMBRE



2

DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Executive Director and
Group Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI

Executive Director
Mr. Eugene LYE

Group Chief Financial Officer
Ms. lan Hong NG

Company Secretary
Ms. Paggie Ah-hing TONG

Registered Office
No. 1 Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun,
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Auditors
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Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the

Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
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Directors and Corporate Information

EEREEAH
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The Bank of East Asia, Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

MUFG Bank, Ltd.
Citibank, N.A.

Westpac Banking Corporation
China Merchants Bank Company, Ltd.
China Construction Bank Corporation

Bank of China Limited

Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Investor Relations Contact

Tel: (852) 2468 9272
Fax: (852) 2465 1008
Email: ir@vitasoy.com

Key Dates E ZHHH

FEREHRIT
RIRITERAT
BEELSEERITERAR
MRS =ZF UFJRIT
TEREERTT

FAFFRT
BRERITRAERAE
FEIEFZRITROBRAT
FERITRMDER AT

RABFELE
EBPREFETHRLT
EBEFTERRER 1835
SR 461E

REEBERBE

EFE:(852) 2468 9272
B H:(852) 2465 1008
E & : ir@vitasoy.com

Closure of Register of Members

EEERNBFES

- Annual General Meeting
REBFRE
Record Date
sCk B HA

- Proposed Final Dividend
ERERARERE

Record Date
Fo8% A HA

18th August 2021 (Wednesday) to 23rd August 2021 (Monday)
—E--F¥NA+N\H (BH=) EZ2=—-FNA=+=RH (Ef—)

23rd August 2021 (Monday)

—E_-FNAZ+=R8 (E8-)

31st August 2021 (Tuesday) to 2nd September 2021 (Thursday)
—E_—FN\A=+—A8 (EHD) EFE-_—FhAZ=H (EHM)

2nd September 2021 (Thursday)
—E-—FhA=H (EHM)

Annual General Meeting

BREFBFRE

at 11:00 a.m., 23rd August 2021 (Monday)

Chatham Room, Level 7, Conrad Hong Kong, Pacific Place,
88 Queensway, Hong Kong
RZZBZ-FN\A=+=RH (28-) LF+—KE
BEEBESEEISHANES  BRBBEEE UERRE

Final Dividend Payable
REE R EAIR B

14th September 2021 (Tuesday)
—ZEZ_-FhA+MA (EHZ)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREE

Year Ended 31stMarch B@Z=A=+—HILFEE

Results
.
]
2021 2020
—B-—-F C—B-FF %
HK$ million HK$ million Change
BEEET BEEHETT Elalnd: )
Revenue PN 7,520 7,233 +4
Gross Profit ER 3,954 3,851 +3
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest RETRIBEWA ~ BERAN -
Income, Finance Costs, Income Tax, % -~ e - #H
Depreciation, Amortisation and BRARMEEE AT
Share of Losses of Joint Venture) 58RI &R
(TEBITDA]) 1,281 1,097 +17
Profit Attributable to Equity RATRERFE A
Shareholders of the Company FE(EER 548 536 +2
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) BREARZER] (Bl) 51.5 50.4 +2
Total Dividends per BREBREARE
Ordinary Share (HK cents) (B4) 32.8 32.2 +2
Year Ended 31stMarchBZ=A=+—HILFE HK$ million B HE T
Revenue Gross Profit
WA EF
8,000 7526 7533 7520 5,000
7,000 6,465 4042 oo 3054
6,000 5,406 4,000 3,420
5,000 3,000 2,873
4,000
3,000 2,000
2,000 1,000
1,000
0 0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
EBITDA Profit Attributable to Equity

Rt FIEWA - BEERA - FIBH - Shareholders of the Company
E BHEARFILEEQAREERIEN XATFRESEAEGRR

o 1228 L2et jgg 618 o7
1,200 1,083 1,063 1,097 500 586 536 548
400
600 300
300 200
100
0 0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Asat31stMarch R=A=+—8
Financial Position

B R AR R
2021 2020

—g-—f -—3-3F %
HK$ million HK$ million Change
BEEET BEEHETT Elald: )
Total Assets HMEE 7,276 6,410 +14
Net Cash Balance & FE 453 363 +25

Total Equity Attributable to Equity RATREFEA
Shareholders of the Company FE L e 4E R 3,616 3,128 +16

Year Ended 31stMarch2021 BZE—Z2=-—F=HA=+—HILEE

Sales Analysis by Location
HERES T (RHE)

66%

Mainland China
AR E A it

2%
Singapore

#hng

7%
Australia and

New Zealand
BN K TR

(o)

25%

Hong Kong Operation

(Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)

BBEK (F8  BFREOD)
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CH AI RM AN’S Vitasoy Group continues to sustain its
mission of providing tasty and nutritious

ST ATEM ENT plant-based food and beverages for the
community despite diverse challenges

R across all our markets. The outlook of our

HE ‘E ﬁ = Group remains promising as plant-based

food and beverages become ever more
mainstream.
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Chairman’s Statement
FE®HE

As the world grapples with the extended impact of COVID-19, our
Group continues to sustain its mission and growth despite diverse
challenges across all our markets. In FY2020/2021, the Group’s
revenue grew by 4% to HK$7,520 million. Profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company also grew by 2% to HK$548
million.

The Board will recommend a final dividend of HK29.0 cents per
ordinary share at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 23rd
August 2021. Together with the interim dividend of HK3.8 cents
per ordinary share, this brings the total dividend for FY2020/2021
to HK32.8 cents per ordinary share (FY2019/2020 total dividend:
HK32.2 cents per ordinary share).

Discipline in delivering sustainable growth

The Group was founded in 1940 with the purpose to provide tasty
and nutritious plant-based food and beverages for the community.
We remain focused on our vision and, during this challenging
period, have given full attention to the safety and well-being of
our employees. In gradually scaling up our operations, we devote
utmost discipline towards the constant changes in markets and
technology, shoppers’ evolving needs, financial performance and
efficiency. We continue to improve our environmental, social
and governance (ESG) performance, as recognised by steady
improvement in our external ratings.

EHREUE N EE 2019 BMRFESHRIFAER
EENEE RERMAEEEHTSYEEEE
i%mk AEBNBEFFEFTRERER - K
TECT CEC-HREE  AEENBRAE
R 4% Z 8% 7,520,000,000 7T ° A" Q R REFHE
ANEMRRITRE R 2% 2 /8% 548,000,000 7T ©

EEERR B —FNAZ+=ARTHRR
BFEAREIEBRERPRESREER 2908
- BRIFHRESREBERISHEWN  —F=
T/ CEC-HREEREAEKEINERE
BR328BI (=ZB—h —Z-ZHHFERE
BEE BIREER32.284) -

BARET > EBUSEER

AEBATA—APEE - B BREUEWA

SR BXRIERBENAIRERD BT
- RFEESERERES  WEEREANK

EtE’JH—irHH%jﬂ% EERENZERMBE - EMPD
ERLEAXBNER - BROERSBENT

SRE B AENBRBRUREEE TR
HHER  BHEERRVBREAREEREX -
EMYRE HEREEHENRBBERBER
1B MIMBRIRRBENFRES  RRREMANS
NEZREERA -
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Chairman’s Statement
EFE®HE

Resilience
The Group maintained focus on business fundamentals during this
unprecedented period of uncertainty.

Mainland China grew revenue by 8% in local currency terms,
leading the Group’s overall recovery, with both our core brands,
VITASQY and VITA growing. We also opened our new Dongguan
factory on time despite the challenges posed by the pandemic.

COVID-19 restrictions continued to impact Hong Kong in the
important on-the-go and on-premise channels, greatly affecting
our Vitaland school tuckshop business. As a result, our revenue
from the Hong Kong Operation fell 12%.

Australia and New Zealand revenue fell by 1% in local currency
as easing of COVID-19 restrictions gradually helped our business
to recover in the second half of the year. The drop in revenue was
also caused by a distortion from shoppers’ stock up which took
place in the last month of the prior year (March 2020).

Singapore revenue was flat due to declines in beverage and export
business offsetting our growth in domestic tofu sales.

Our joint venture with Universal Robina Corporation in
the Philippines continued to operate in a very challenging
environment, but we were encouraged by growth of our multi-
serve business which partly offset the decline of single serve due
to COVID-19 continuous lockdowns and extended restrictions.

We will sustain our growth whilst continuing to invest in
infrastructure and brand equity to secure long-term growth. The
outlook remains promising as plant-based food and beverages
become ever more mainstream.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Chairman’s Statement
EFE®HE

Invaluable contribution

The Group’s long-term growth is only possible because of the
immense contribution of our Board, management team and
our staff. The whole group has stood up strongly to the unique
challenges of the last two years. | thank our shareholders,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their continued
support to help us stay on course in our mission for ongoing
success.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
17th June 2021

HEER

FEBERANSRERR  2HESS  EEHE
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GROUP CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REPORT/BUSINESS
REVIEW

%Iﬁi@l%@%ﬁﬁ*h/
F%E

In FY2020/2021, Vitasoy Group continued
to broaden our impact while navigating the
unique challenges set by the COVID-19
pandemic. Throughout our 80years’history,
the Vitasoy Group has proved resilient in
the face of diverse disruption and adversity.
We will continue to sustain growth upon
firm financial discipline and thus advance
our purpose to deliver sustainable plant-
based tasty and nutritional products to our
communities.

— T -PRFE  BEER
RHVRBEE - AL
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Group Chief Executive Officer’'s Report/Business Review

SEITHAR®RE FKORE

In FY2020/2021, we continued to broaden our impact while
navigating the unique challenges set by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Group revenue grew 4% driven by Mainland China delivering a
solid 11% increase as its overall market and economic limitations
began to ease in the second half.

Profits from operations increased 19% compared to FY2019/2020.
As the Group decided to maintain headcount and employment
of our staff despite imploding revenues in Hong Kong due to the
pandemic significantly affecting our school, on-the-go and on-
premise channels, we became eligible for government support,
subsidies. COVID-19-related
government subsidies of the Group amounted to HK$225

being primarily employment

million for the year. Excluding all COVID-19-related government
subsidies, and in the absence of any employees’ reduction counter-
measures, the Group profit from operations would have fallen by
11%.

We focused first on effectively securing the safety and well-being
of all our associates. We then focused on deliberate cost control
and phasing of investments with renewed attention to operational
efficiency. The pandemic impacted our various sales channels in
different ways. The on-the-go and on-premise consumption were
seriously affected by lockdowns and traffic restrictions: this
severely impacted our Vitaland school tuckshop business in Hong
Kong and overall reduction of revenue from sales to convenience
stores, restaurants and coffee shops. On the positive side, the
home consumption occasion satisfied by our multi-serve formats
grew strongly, allowing us to drive growth in supermarkets and
new on-line retail commerce.

R-ZB-Z /—Z_-0RFE REZRET
2019 BRI SHIRITERE - NEBNRLEERE
HE BT RNWEISHRE > mpEE - BEEHER
HhEEHIERSELSERGERERKE  PE
At EISRAE R 11% @ AULHEREFRA 8
BAREE o

RERANBE_ZT—N/—_Z_ZTHHREFEER
19% - BEAKEZIRFEHEE  BEHKRMEE
B BEAERRESHERBENEBLEERAR
BT BEXAEENMRERTEEABRER -
B EERBFBAME TERRMES -
AEEXREEHLESER209BTRESHER
#9 BX T 18 BA 3= 78 % 225,000,000 7T © Bk B BE
2019 BRESHEBWBUAHEE - REFREE
TABREMBEINARET  AEEOLE R
FIAIT B 11% ©

EAUZEETIRUA/L  BREMREZES
THIHERE - RMSTEFRE - DRERIRE
UHBRFALENER - FRRBCHRMTEH
HERBERTEARENSE - REEANERR
BENERCEHHUARBTRABEMNZZEAR
T2 BYRMEBNECRBNERNEIRE
EREZE TSHETERNSE EERWGEE
MEBWATE - IEHR  KMNKERER
EBERAD  TERETREXER - TiEY
TETRABHTERBNER -
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Group Chief Executive Officer’'s Report/Business Review

SEITHAR®RE FKORE

Whilst Mainland China led the rebound in growth, Hong Kong
declined as COVID-19 affected the export business on top of
the Vitaland schools tuckshops mentioned above. Australia
was marginally below last year due to restrictions affecting
restaurants and cafés. Singapore was flat as increased demand in
the local tofu business offset a drop in the imported beverage and
export business. The Philippines grew the multi-serve business
in supermarkets but the newly local single-serve business was
severely impacted by extended lock-down restrictions.

We continued to diligently progress and complete our capital
projects, enhancing infrastructure with the successful completion
of various initiatives notably completion of the new manufacturing
plant in Dongguan, China, which commenced production on
schedule. Whilst continuing to drive our core business, we
consciously made investments in brand equity and innovation.
This will secure the Group’s strongly differentiated position
amidst the surge of competitive activity in the plant-based food
and beverage market, now ever more mainstream in most of
our markets. Complementarily, we have continued to improve
our ESG performance, by enhancing our nutritional offerings
and reducing the resources used per unit of product. These
advancements have also been recognised by external ratings.
After entering the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index,
Vitasoy has now been included in the Dow Jones Sustainability
Asia/Pacific Index. Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI)
promoted Vitasoy’s ESG rating from “BBB” to “A”. The integration
of these improvements in our business model will enhance our
appeal and relevance whilst protecting the enterprise from
external vulnerabilities in the long term.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Group Chief Executive Officer’'s Report/Business Review

KEH1T

Financial Highlights

The Group’s financial position stays healthy with all key indicators

in positive territory.

The following table presents the Group’s financial highlights for

BABHEmEEHOE

MHRRE

BRIE 448 -

REENFHRRRIFRR  TEMBERITIR

THREVWAEFHE-_E-—F=8A=+—H1

the year ended 31st March 2021 versus the previous ending on FER-_ZE_ZTF=A=+—HIELEFEN=E
31st March 2020. EOHRHE -
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2021 2020
:g: —ﬂE — 7 —= f'E
(HK$ million)  (HK$ million) Change
(BEEaERx) (B¥BRER) =)
Revenue WA 7,520 7,233 +4%
Gross Profit EF 3,954 3,851 +3%
EBITDA (Earnings Before EBITDA (REtRIEUA
Interest Income, BUERRAN ~ FRB8T -~ T8 -
Finance Costs, Income Tax, BEBARFLEE AT
Depreciation, EriE a2 F)
Amortisation and Share of
Losses of Joint Venture) 1,281 1,097 +17%
Profit Attributable to AT RERE AR R
Equity Shareholders of the
Company 548 536 +2%
Basic Earnings per Share BREARZR GBAL)
(HK cents) 5.5 50.4 +2%
Gearing ratio BELL=E 14% 16% -2% points
B2
ROCE (Return on capital =2 EIE: g 34% 31% +3% points
employed) BoR

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &
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Group Chief Executive Officer’'s Report/Business Review

SEITHAR®RE FKORE

Revenue
For the year ended 31st March 2021, the Group’s revenue grew
4% to HK$7,520 million (FY2019/2020: HK$7,233 million).

Mainland China: +8% in local currency (+11% in HKD)

Started the post-COVID-19 recovery with solid growth on both
VITASQY and VITA.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports): - 12%
Successive waves of COVID-19 severely affected the Vitaland
school business, export and local on-the-go channels.

Australia and New Zealand: - 1% in local currency (+5% in
HKD)

Strong growth in the supermarket channel was offset by reduction
in the on-premise business caused by lockdowns.

Singapore: Flat in local currency (Flat in HKD)

Similar to other markets, supermarket sales grew whilst on-
premise and exports declined due to local COVID-19 restrictions.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group'’s gross profit was HK$3,954 million (FY2019/2020:
HK$3,851 million), representing an increase of 3%, mainly driven
by increase in revenue.

Gross profit margin was in line with last year at 53%, due to

higher promotional expenses offset by government subsidies and
favourable trends in paper packaging costs.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

WA
BEZZ-—F=A=1+—HLLFE  £&EEW
YT A 8 hn 4% = 588 7,520,000,000 T (ZF—H
S ZETHREE ;- 8% 7,233,000,000 7T)

HEI R | L it BT E +8% (LB Mt
E+11%)

BEZ 2019 BMASHRBRBENKSERBE
B Mtipk e EER R ABRER -

ER¥EXK (BE - BFIRHAO) :-12%
2019 BRRSRITERE  BREFEHMRER
ERIER  BOURAKRMEFRENHEE -

BMRHR - LSS E-1% (L8
MStE +5%)

HRBERERREEZRYD  KETHBETER
EHHESHER -

HIE | U EE R (LUBHHE
BF)

BEHMTHEHEE R 2019TRESHIERR
o BETEHEAMER  ERERHOME
R T -

ENREFNE

AEBEWEFHBYE 3,954,000,0007T (ZE—Hh
S ZEFHHEE ¢ B% 3,851,000,0007T)
H03%  EZRMRUW AL o

HABAME - M EBRAERRL - BIKH
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Group Chief Executive Officer’'s Report/Business Review

SEITHAR®RE FKORE

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 1% to HK$3,233 million
(FY2019/2020: HK$3,188 million), mainly due to higher logistic
expenses and impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
partly offset by the receipt of government subsidies.

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses were in line with last
year at HK$2,115 million (FY2019/2020: HK$2,112 million), as a
result of higher distribution costs driven by growing sales volume
offset by the receipt of government subsidies.

Administrative expenses were also at the same level, being
HK$723 million (FY2019/2020: HK$717 million), reflecting the
resumption of planned investment in organisational capability
and further support from the pandemic-related subsidies.

Other operating expenses mainly include staff costs for other
supporting functions, warehouse expenses, management fee
charged by a related party and sundry tax in Mainland China. As
a result, other operating expenses increased 10% to HK$395
million (FY2019/2020: HK$359 million), due to impairment losses
on property, plant and equipment. The pandemic caused reduced
mobility and school closures, negatively impacting demand and
asset utilisation.

KEBEH

48 4 B R HN 1% 258 % 3,233,000,000 7T (=
T—N/ZE-FTHHEE : B 3,188,000,000
) TEHRBENYIRERURNE BER

REWRERE - Hh#o BESHBUTHEM
K o

TSEE HERSHEAHELZFRE » BB
2,115,000000 T (= F—h /=T -_ZHHF
E : 8#2112,0000007T) TEFRBHEERR
L F B2 S8R B BR RS 1 Bl P38 o

THEATEEFIESE - BB 723,000,000
T(ZB—hA/ —Z_ZHHEFE: B
717,000,000 7T) » TEZAREMEEREZ DA
BEE MR E > URZEEBEEREFTIRAEMNEEIN
&8 o

H K ERFTZAEEMTIERBENEIR
T -REEA BEFRBENSEERTER
P EMBEE  ARYE - BMERRBLER
BEER HMILEMEEEAEMIONE B
395,000,000t (=T -1/ —ZT_ZTHHFE :
78 # 359,000,000 7T) - EIFEHARBD « B
RER HERERREEFAXYELERY
#E o
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Group Chief Executive Officer’'s Report/Business Review
SEETHRARRE EKEEE

COVID-19-related Government Grants in

FY2020/2021

For the year ended 31st March 2021, the Group received
government grants of HK$225 million related to COVID-19
financial assistance as we maintained headcount and employment

—ECE CE--BRFEEMN2019
BRFSHEBBATER

BE—S-—-—&E=A=1+-ALEE £
BE2019 BB S B E BB BORFEE
538 225,000,000 7% - R AEERFET A

of our staff. HRER -
(HK$ million) Amount recognised
(B¥E&®ERT) BRLEHE
Net in Under
“Cost of “Other
sales” income” Net in

Segment Nature of grants RATSEERAE] [HugA expenses Total
2 EBME 1K 85 BT REREH B
Hong Kong Operation Employment Support 23 62 60 145

Scheme (“ESS”) and

other relief grants
BEBEK RELERTEIR H A 47

axp=-a-1
Mainland China Mainly waiver of social 15 1 53 69

insurance
HEI it FERATEREEE
Singapore Employment subsidies 2 - 3 5
N3 RERBL
Others ESS - - 6 6
Hith e

40 63 122 225

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income, Finance
Costs, Income Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
and Share of Losses of Joint Venture)

EBITDA for the year was HK$1,281 million, representing an
increase of 17% year-on-year, mainly driven by higher gross profit
and government subsidies. The EBITDA to revenue margin for the
year increased from 15% to 17%.

Profit from Operations
Profit from operations increased by 19% to HK$843 million
(FY2019/2020: HK$707 million).
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Impairment Loss on Interest in Joint Venture

An impairment charge of HK$43 million was recognised during
the year due to the impact of the pandemic on current year sales
and future sales projections.

Profit before Taxation
Profit before taxation increased by 13% to HK$767 million
(FY2019/2020: HK$679 million).

Taxation

Income tax charged for the year was HK$177 million
(FY2019/2020: HK$109 million) with an effective tax rate of 23%,
versus 16% last year, mainly due to a higher proportion of sales
and profits in Mainland China which are subject to a higher tax
rate.

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$548 million, representing an increase of 2% compared to
the previous year (FY2019/2020: HK$536 million). Excluding all
COVID-19-related government subsidies, profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company decreased 35%.

Financial Position

The Group finances its operations and capital expenditure
primarily through internally generated cash as well as banking
facilities provided by our principal bankers.

As at 31st March 2021, cash and bank deposits amounted to
HK$971 million (31st March 2020: HK$848 million). 40%, 52%
and 2% of our cash and bank deposits were denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars (HKD), Renminbi (RMB) and United States Dollars
(USD), respectively (31st March 2020: 8%, 82% and 6%). As of
31st March 2021, the Group had a net cash balance (cash and bank
deposits less bank borrowings, bills payable and lease liabilities)
of HK$453 million (31st March 2020: HK$363 million). Available
banking facilities amounted to HK$905 million (31st March 2020:
HK$699 million) to facilitate future cash flow needs.
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The Group’s debt amounted to HK$518 million (31st March
2020: HK$485 million), of which bank borrowings amounted
to HK$130 million (31st March 2020: HK$241 million), bills
payable amounted to HK$183 million (31st March 2020: nil) and
lease liabilities amounted to HK$205 million (31st March 2020:
HK$244 million).

The gearing ratio (total debt/total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company) decreased to 14% (31st March
2020: 16%). Excluding lease liabilities from total debt, the gearing
ratio increased to 9% (31st March 2020: 8%).

The Group’s return on capital employed (ROCE) (EBITDA/average
non-current debt and equity) for the year was 34% (FY2019/2020:
31%).

Capital expenditure incurred during the year decreased to
HK$623 million (FY2019/2020: HK$1,061 million), which was
mainly spent for acquisition of production equipment for the new
plant in Dongguan.

There were no assets pledged or secured under loan and/or lease
arrangements.

Non-financial Key Performance Indicators

The Group publishes various non-financial KPls in the
“Sustainability Report 2020/2021”, which will be released in July
2021 together with this Annual Report.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s overall financial management policy focuses on
anticipating, controlling and managingrisks, covering transactions
directly related to the underlying businesses of the Group. For
synergy, efficiency and control, the Group operates a central cash
and treasury management system for all subsidiaries. Borrowings
are normally taken out in local currencies by the operating
subsidiaries to fund their investments and partially mitigate
foreign currency risks.
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Potential Risk and Uncertainties

Vitasoy has implemented a comprehensive risk management
framework across the Group to consistently anticipate, assess
and mitigate key business risks, and a risk governance structure to
ensure proper risk ownership and oversight. In view of the rapidly
changing business environment, Group Internal Audit and Risk
Management Department has stepped up efforts inimproving key
risk indicators, identifying external emerging risks, and facilitating
risk reviews for key purchasing decisions. Details of these risk
management processes are covered in the Risk Management
section of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual
Report.

BERERTHBREE
HMMEAEEANERZENERERESR K
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Review of Operations
Mainland China

Started the post-COVID-19 recovery with both brands
VITASOY and VITA growing

B O
o B8] g 3t

BEE 2019 Bk R 1B MR E HIAE)
FALA TR - RIS M i om 2 R R A 29
BR

2021 2020
B CZEZHF
2021 2020 % Change Group Contribution %
(Rounded to the nearest —EC-F ZEZEE J[HohEs HAREEERBE L
million) (restated)
(MEFEAZRELRE) (E51)
Revenue from external REINEEEZ
customers A
(HK$ million) (B¥EET) 5,008 4,504 +11 66 62
Profit from operations R
(HK$ million) (B¥E8ET) 524 476 +10 55 58
Revenue from external RENEEEZ
customers TYON
(RMB million) (ARBEETT) 4,366 4,025 +8
Profit from operations KRR
(RMB million) (AR¥EE8RT) 457 425 +8

Vitasoy China grew revenue by 8% in local currency, gradually
recovering from the interruption of its growth trajectory due to
COVID-19 restrictions in the first half of the year. Both brands,
VITASOY and VITA grew. Notable was the acceleration of the
on-line “new retail” business during the year.

As communicated previously, we significantly increased our
investments in the second half of the year as the pandemic
limitations progressively eased. Government subsidies helped our
profit from operations, which grew by 8% in local currency terms.
Excluding COVID-19-related government support, profit from
operations fell 4%.

Infrastructure developments continued with the commissioning of
our new manufacturing plant in Dongguan, Guangdong Province,
adding production capacity to support continued growth driven
by both execution in same stores and geographical channel
expansion.

Due to RMB appreciation, our revenue and profit from operations
grew 11% and 10% respectively in HKD terms.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

Sustained leadership and profitability in core categories
amidst contracted Vitaland and export businesses due to
continued COVID-19 impact

BERE (8 RFMXRHEA)

HEE 2019 BRBEERHIFELE  BRE
SRR ERIFERF AR HO
R B0 mBFEARG TS EE M
R 15 Kas

2021 2020 2021 2020
—g-—& -—Z-®E —F--F —FoEF
HK$ million  HK$ million % Change Group Contribution %
(Rounded to the nearest BEEEBT ABY¥BERT ALEH HAEEERE DL
million) (restated)
(MEEAZREEEE) (87%)
Revenue from external RENEERE 2 WA
customers 1,865 2,108 -12 25 29
Profit from operations A 355 269 +32 37 32

Revenues of the Hong Kong Operation fell 12% versus last year as
successive waves of COVID-19 restrictions affected the on-the-
go channel, the Vitaland school tuckshop and export businesses.
However, the local supermarket channel and on-line business
performed solidly thus driving aggregate growth and maintaining
the Group’s leadership position in our core categories of plant
milk and tea. To enhance our plant milk offering on VITASQY, we
introduced a new high-calcium low-sugar oat milk on our CALCI-
PLUS platform during the year.

Profit from operations grew 32%, due to both deliberate cost
optimisation and receipt of government subsidies related to
employees despite contracting revenues. Excluding the COVID-
19-related government subsidies, and in the absence of any
employees’ reduction counter-measures, profit from the Hong
Kong Operation fell 22%.

BEEFMEL BBEBBRATE®RIS  REZ
2019 BAR A S HIFER B BRI E R EEFE
HERE - HORMNBRNEIUR H AR
Z o R ABRATSRENABHEERRRE
2 HEAMRORBEENNRRNEEER
WHEFHAE MY - BT EHMBRETRRE
MhEmR  RARFRELFRRRINZHS
EEARZPNER °
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Australia and New Zealand

Strong core business and multi-plants innovation mitigated
pandemic’s impact

L&

BRI TSR M S Y B A I
Efm FETRETRNZE

2021 2020
—8--% <=Z-TF
(Rounded to the nearest
million) 2021 2020 % Change Group Contribution %
(MEEAZREEEE) —E--F CZEZ-ZF FokeH HAREEERE L
Revenue from external RENEEEZ
customers WA
(HK$ million) (BEEET) 528 502 +5 7 7
Profit from operation R
(HK$ million) (BEEET) 68 77 -12 7 9
Revenue from external REINEEEZ
customers A
(AUD million) (RtE&RT) 94 95 -1
Profit from operation R ER
(AUD million) (RtEE8RT) 12 14 -16

Revenue fell by just 1% in local currency as the extended lock-
down severely affected the restaurant and coffee channel
business. This was offset by strong core business performance in
the supermarket channel and the launch of new items in the Oat
and Almond portfolio. Profit from operations dropped 16% in local
currency terms, as the drought which began last year continued to
keep raw material prices at an elevated level, coupled with higher
investments to keep building brand equity.

During the year, Bega Cheese Limited acquired shares in Lion
Dairy & Drinks including 49% of the shares in Vitasoy Australia
Products Pty. Ltd.. Anewjoint venture Board has now beenformed
and the management team has operated effectively throughout
the transition period.

Due to the appreciation of the Australian dollars (AUD), revenue
grew 5% while profit from operations dropped 12% in HKD termes.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Singapore

Pandemic impacted the exported tofu and the imported

beverage businesses

(Rounded to the nearest

¥
HOBBREOSTBERESIZIEHE

2021 2020
:g:_$ :7—7

thousand) 2021 2020 % Change Group Contribution %
(MEBAAZHELT) —E--F CZEZ-ZF FokeH HAREEERE L
Revenue from external RENEEEZ

customers WA

(HK$ thousand) (B¥FT) 118,343 118,641 - 2 2
Profit from operation R

(HK$ thousand) (BETT) 3,014 4,969 -39 1 1
Revenue from external RENEEEZ

customers A

(SGD thousand) (FLFT) 20,784 20,855 -
Profit from operation R ER

(SGD thousand) CETFT) 529 873 -39

Revenue from our Singapore business was flat in local currency SEEAFHELE > FIMFEERNWRAUE M EWME
terms compared to last year. Growth in the local tofu business BY Bt IRERERKETZTREZENE
offset the decline in imported beverages and exported tofu which O Mk 2R O KA EIE o

were impacted by the pandemic.

Profit from the operation dropped 39% in local currency terms BIET  EIRAEEMUASENEERE
due to additional staff costs to sustain local production and B REBAUEEMTETER39% G
operations in the face of the pandemic. The lock-down also HIEERET RMETERBFE  BUEBEBEY
delayed implementation of planned innovations causing higher RREARNE T BRER - BRI ARG o

material costs due to packaging and raw materials’ expiry.
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Business Outlook

The pandemic challenges will continue to impact the Group’s
operating environment in the short term, causing not only
increasing raw material and logistic costs, but also complexity and
volatility.

In this context, the Group’s sales outlook is cautiously optimistic.

Our operations proved resilient and are now operating within this
“new normal”. With the pandemic limitations slowly and gradually
easing across our markets, we expect to complete the recovery of
our business in the sectors which have been most affected, like on-
the-go and on-premise channels, export across all markets and the
material Vitaland school tuckshop business in Hong Kong.

We will continue to drive our growth vectors of improved
execution in existing customers, and geographical expansion
primarily in Mainland China. Our innovation pipeline is strong,
relevant and ready to be progressively deployed. The global plant-
based food and beverages movement is becoming ever more
mainstream, and is expected to add additional impetus to the
Group’s growth prospects.

Mainland China

Our business in Mainland China is expected to maintain growth
in the next year. Improving performance in key channels based on
new campaigns on both VITASOY and VITA, national expansion
and core portfolio innovation have been planned to secure growth
momentum.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

We will continue disciplined cost improvements whilst leveraging
new campaigns for both brands and introducing further innovation
to restore revenue growth.

Australia and New Zealand

We expect a return to revenue growth, driven by a new campaign
to strengthen our brand across plant-based categories and a
rebound in the on-premise business.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Singapore

In the coming year, we will relaunch our domestic tofu business,
continue to expand our imported beverage portfolio and upon
easing of pandemic restrictions restart our export tofu business.

The Philippines

Our joint venture with Universal Robina Corporation will continue
to focus on establishing the VITASOY brand in the Philippines.
While continuing to drive the successful multi-serve business, we
will launch a new campaign to emphasise the home occasion for
our single serve business, which was halted by the lockdowns and
traffic restrictions.

Conclusion

Throughout our 80 years’ history, the Vitasoy Group has proved
resilient in the face of diverse disruption and adversity. We will
continue to focus on the safety of our teams and infrastructure,
sustain growth upon firm financial discipline and thus advance our
purpose to deliver sustainable plant-based tasty and nutritional
products to our communities.

| sincerely thank our Executive Chairman and our Board of
Directorsfor their unwavering support, wise counsel and guidance
in such unique times. | am grateful to all our business partners
for their continued resolve, and to all of our associates for their
passionate dedication and contribution.

Roberto GUIDETTI
Group Chief Executive Officer
17th June 2021

F N3
RE > BRPEEHER e TELR  BEER
EORRAS  TEZBERIREAEMEOSE
BB o

JERE

F 1f9E2 Universal Robina Corporation & & /A &)
BEES TR #MBEEERENmEER -
MRTHEBEDHNDNRELEERES  BATE
EH—IENE T USRI R EERRER
HIMSHEN—AMRAZEERNREER

ll%%ll:g

HEEFIBRBOFNESL - M NEEEEY
BEREERNBRFRARTEBRMR - RFGER
HERrEEBRRE#RRENZ Z - EIFTBRE
FEUEIFER - BRMANEESERMUEY
RENERKEBER  BEHRERMNERE

A

AARLBHUTERRESRAATFHEES
5 BANRNB LIRS o A A LB
B MBENEE  URADDFEBIHOR
) RERER -

R
SRETRARE
—EF--HXAtTtH

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &

25



Awards
and Recognitions

BAT KRB



Awards and Recognitions

EHRRE

Major Awards of Vitasoy International HHDNBEREEERATGR-F=

Holdings Limited from 1st April 2020to 31st ZTFHWA-HBHE=-ZT=-—F=HA

March 2021 =t+—HLAMEENEZERE
Corporateit 3

Hong Kong, China
PEEFE

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
HM BB EEBRA A

2020 Best Corporate Governance Awards: winner of Sustainability and Social Responsibility Reporting Award
in the “H-share Companies and Other Mainland Enterprises Category” by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA)

RERBSTMASHERE [ RECEERAE2020] PH [AFERREROCELSETRER | (HRABEEM
FEIAth R | A 5))

2021 Corporate Knights Global 100 Most Sustainable Corporations by Corporate Knights - we rank 62nd,

up from 90th last year. We rank 2nd in the Packaged and Processed Food and Ingredients category, following

McCormick & Company

TE ((u—.%“i}:t>>2021 FRRAFECETRHERY  AEFONAZ 2 ;s REEENMIRRREMARPHA
ERRIRAIE AT

The “15 Years Plus Caring Company” Logo from Hong Kong Council of Social Services
GREFBHESRFHEHEE [15EFRU LHRREBIE] 25

The “5 years+ Award Consumer Caring Company” Logo from GS1 Hong Kong
REFBERRBHSER [5F + BROE | £

“Diamond Enterprise Winner” in the “Quality Food Traceability Scheme 2020” from GS1 Hong Kong for the
fourth consecutive year

BEEFNFRESRERFERHSES [EERMFREHET 2020 1Y [#EAEHEE

“Manpower Developer” in the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme” 2019-2021 from the Employees
Retraining Board

EREEBEINFEIN2019-2021 FE [ERBA A ERFTE | FRETRAARE]

Vitasoy Manufacturing Building is certified in environmental management and food safety management:
1ISO14001:2015 Environmental Management System; and the 1L Ultra-High Temperature (UHT) Treatment
Production Line in FSSC22000 Food Safety Management System (Global Food Safety Initiative, ie, GFSI)

A EREEISO14001: 2015 RIFEVBRARE | I A BSREREEREFSSC22000EREZEEEER (2K

ﬁﬂﬂfé1§:§ r.vL, :u.

Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet Limited

BRBBREERAAREEXZRERLF

The “Caring Company” Logo from Hong Kong Council of Social Services

KESBHEREHSEE BARARBIE]FR

Signatory of the “Good Employer Charter 2020” by The Labour Department
REL TEENR [ IHEEZHNE2020] HHEEHE
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Awards and Recognitions
BOaRRE

Corporateit#

Mainland China
HREA

One of the “Top Graduate Employers” by 51job.com
ES5lobAIREEREARA [THABLEEREE | K2

2020 “Embroidery Spirit” - Annual Development Innovation Award by Yangcheng Evening News Newspaper

Group
B X IRMmMEEE AR 2020 FIEBH | RERER — [FERRAIHE

2020 Ram Charan Award in Marketing Practice by Harvard Business Review China
B (R HEETR) PR 2020 F [HlF « SHEEERR I LEHERE |

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods & Beverage Co. Ltd.
T CERR) RMEEIBRA R

National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment 2019 - “Excellent Taxpayment and Turnover”, “Safety
and Environmental Protection Encouragement Award”, “Quality Improvement Award” and “Harmonious
Labour Relationships Promotion Award” by Shenzhen Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment
BRYINERECERERB209FEZEAEFIINEGRELCE — [BELER ] [R2BRRAME| [E2ESD
2] RIFBLEEERRER]

“Special Social Welfare Award” granted by Shenzhen Guangming District Committee of the Communist Youth

League and Shenzhen Guangming District Volunteer Federation
EASERYMAHEZESFIMAPERIHSSER (LS R ]

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited
#fthgd (FhL) BRAF

“Outstanding Energy-saving Enterprise in China Beverage Industry 2020” by China Beverage Industry
Association

BB TRBHETA [ 2020 FHESEHTHRE B

“Foshan Nanhai District Food Safety Demonstration Unit 2020” by Foshan Nanhai District Administration for

Market Regulation
BHLTREEMSEEEERIABLUTEEE 2020 FRME 2 REE(N |

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited
#hgn (L38) BRAE

2020 Science Pioneer Award and Quality Innovation Award by Zhongshan Sub-district Working Committee,
Songjiang District, CPC/Zhongshan Sub-district Office, People’s Government of Songjiang District, Shanghai
EHhHNIEFRLABEIFZES BTN IEBARBNRILEEREREEZ 2020FE [RlAltEE - [E8
Bl3rHE
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Awards and Recognitions
BOaRRE

Corporateft#

Mainland China
HREA

Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited
#thn (RE) BRAT

Funding subsidies for comprehensive control of smoke pollution from coal-fired boilers by Xinzhou Bureau of

Ecology and Environment
ESFNBERRERMERBERESREGEEAESHY

2020 Wuhan Investment Promotion Incentive Special Funds by Bureau of Commerce of Wuhan Municipality

ESRETBBRERN 2020 FEETHRESI ERBERES

Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited
#M (RE) GRAR

LEED Gold Certification by US Green Building Council
EEESCEEZESHELEED SRRE

Singapore

#ms

Vitasoy International Singapore Pte Ltd.

Certified 1SO 22000 standard on food safety management system by United Kingdom Accreditation Service

and Singapore Accreditation Council
BREERAHFZEEGRIMNNBERARZESRRARME IS0 22000 EmE 2 EERANEE

“Top Supplier in Top Categories Award” in Partners Excellence Awards by NTUC FairPrice
REBEEE#ET (NTUC FairPrice) BN Sk FERF - 72 [ REHERR | BRIR ES [ REMHER ]

Singapore Packaging Agreement Merit Award by National Environment Agency (NEA)
BEEXRERER (MR HRERE ]
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Awards and Recognitions
BOaRRE

Brand @ k&

VITASOY
Y

Top Brand Award - Sales Outstanding Performance Award (Beverage) by 7-Eleven in Hong Kong

EEB7- 1A [REEENRM —EnBREEAHREAR (REH)

Almond Milky in VITASOY Whole™ series was awarded Bronze Award of ISEE Fond Innovation Award by

Foodaily in China
AP WHOLEE B RCEYEBRSREFRERM (A RM) B ISEE R MAIFT H KIRH1%R

VLT
HUERE

“Top Brand Award - Sales Outstanding Performance Award” (Beverage) by 7-Eleven in Hong Kong
BEB7-11EE [ RESENGRE —EnERHEEANRRBARE (KR

VITASOY China
YRR

2020 Double 11 Best Marketing Award by Tmall
BERIEMEE 20208 11 & dH L EMR

2020 Progressing Brand Award by Suning
B E 5 IBEE 2020 RiBMm g4

Recognised as 2020 Excellent New Star Brand by JD Co-Branding Plan
RESTEI2020 FEEFH 2 MR

2020 Jingdong Supermarket Consumer Goods Division Annual Most Innovative Award

2020 FERREBM HEMSBEDFERAAIMNE

Vitasoy online flagship store received 2020 Leap Progress Award by Tmall
Vitasoy #f i FEAR /5 & RIHFEES 2020 F R IBE LS8

2020 Industrial Pioneer Brand by KAMEN
BB 2020 FEEE L HRIE

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited
MM (L) BRL B

2021 MIRROR The Most Influential Brand Award by 30 Years of HOTELEX Shanghai
EHOTELEX B30 AFAZEME 2021 FE (B | BIEESNRATENRE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBME

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is firmly
committed to a high level of corporate governance and adherence
to the governance principles and practices emphasising
transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. These principles and practices are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) or its delegated
Board Committees to reflect the ever changing regulatory

HEMDMEREEBRATE ([ARF]) BFaKk
FHEEER  XRAETIEAEAE  BY
- BE BEREQAFZERRAKRER - A2
AESE ([E%g]) AHREZESERES
ERRNTERZERARER - URRTEE
SPHNEERERCXERRRE -ESZHE S
BRENTGERESHEMNERSELIRERR

RERR  ARREEREMFHEANEEE
% DAARROERTE -

requirements and corporate governance development. The
Board believes that the high standards of corporate governance
is the essential core for sustaining Vitasoy Group’s long term
performance and value creation for our shareholders, the
investing public and the other stakeholders.

Effectiveness

3K

CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE
ExER

Engagement Accountability
25 BE

BOARD AND
GOVERNANCE PROCESS AND
CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
EZEREARFURSEEXER

- five Board meetings and six Sub-board Committee meetings
in FY2020/2021
-SRI /R MBRFERTTRAREREEER
NREEFERETLRESER
- average 97% attendance rate of meetings
- BETHHERE%
- annual performance evaluation of the Board
and Executive Chairman
- EEERWTERGETFERRENR

- proactive sustainability strategy

BOARD COMPOSITION
EESEK

- five out of eleven directors are independent
non-executive directors
-t RESEPAAEBYIERITES
- two of eleven directors are female
- T—REEFETMARKNE
- the Board has diverse mix of knowledge,
skills, experience and expertise
-EFEMBEZITENAH - Kk CRERER
- chairman of all governance sub-board
committees are independent non-executive

directors - BB A B RN
- %%@ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁfﬁﬁ?@Z%ﬁ@z\I}% - active participation into in-house training and engagement
B AN IERITES with continuing professional development

- B2 RN R AFE
W2 AR E R B R
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March 2021,
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

— P

©

—y

Corporate Governance Policy

ﬁ% B /DJBZ%

Disclosure Compliance Policy

REARBE BRERBRBR

Group Whistleblowing Policy

SEERBE SEEREREER

Group Risk Management Policy
SERBREERER EERBECR

Directors Conflict of Interest Policy
EEFREFREBK

Shareholders Communication Policy

Group Business Ethics Policy

Group Environmental Policy

o= %]
RARAARBEZZE--F=ZA=+t—-HLFE
—HETEBMAERGMARAARSLHR
B (T EWRAN]) Misx+ mprEt =z hEER<T R
(TExERTA]) PzFRE -

The Company’s key corporate governance
related policies

RRBzEFELEERBBBE

Director Nomination Policy

BEEREBE

Board Diversity Policy
EEgHESTLEE

Group Dividend Policy
EEREBEK

Investor Relations Policy

REEBRBEBE

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &
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Board of Directors

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees to
carry out specified functions assigned by the Board of Directors
which require specialised areas of expertise. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management power of the Company to
the Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Company.
However, full delegation is not allowed for some specific matters
under the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the CG Code
or other regulatory requirements, and the final decisions on those
specific matters are required to be taken by the whole Board. A
defined schedule of matters reserved for Board decisions has
been adopted by the Board as follows:

Strategy and Direction
KEERFE

BIRSEEEE - 58 - DEEHRERER

Corporate Structure

I8

Corporate Governance Matters
TEERSER

The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to creating
value for our shareholders. The Boardisresponsible for developing
the strategic directions for the Company and continuous
monitoring of the performance of the general management of
the Company. Strategic planning is one of the Board’s important
functions for aligning mission and vision and sustaining long term
business growth and lot of focus and attention have been devoted
to formulation and execution of the strategic planning.

Strategic planning horizons are currently set for five years. The
Board has approved a Five Year Strategic Plan for the fiscal
years up to 2025/2026 in August 2020 and has always been
taking a proactive role in reviewing and revising the Strategic
Plan periodically in response to changes in the macro economic,
competitive business environment and regulatory requirements.
The Board is also actively to define the Company’s sustainability
strategies and practices, and to prioritize and allocate resources
to achieve the long-term success of the business.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

Exg
EXEEEANAEBBREETH  YEK
VAR EEEREITHESEZRATEGS
EEXMAHB 2B ERE - ESEZMELQH
ZHTEERSEEEAEREEEALNTRE
B o A RIB(RBRGI) - EHRA - b
ERTRAFEMRERRRE  WIFERET
RHFRREXIMARE Y EAHZRBESENE
HEFHGERE - EZSCHRANTHEZS
HER  JISAFESSFHREZSE

Financial Controls, Compliance, Corporate Reporting and Risk Management

Appointment of Directors, Chief Executive, Company Secretary and External Auditor

ZREES - THER - ARWERINEZEA

EEEEASHRENTEERBERAREITAR
NRAARRAEEE2ED - ESEREFFA
DRZKBUETE  LIFEEFEAQNTREEE
RE - FIRBAICHAESSERERNE
SURERREXBERNERRE  E52H
M 3EH BRI BN HIRT RATRAERE o

ERBRBBEARERLF - EBFEN-Z=F
FNAMABE-_ZT-H "E-APHRFEL
ZHFERBHRE W -ERRRESE - BiF%E
BREREERKR2EE - BREHRIRER
KRB - ESETEBEERD A 2 ATHFER
REBRESR LELZERIBERUZEBEE
B2 RAMRY °
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Board Composition
EEEAMK

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO

ERERE
Executive Chairman
s ’
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI Dr. the Hon. Sir Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
FEEELE David Kwok-po LI BRRLL
ZTEEHT
Executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director Non-executive Director
Group Chief Executive Officer . BUHHTEE . FHITEE
HITEFEE I THAER | | | |
Mr. Eugene LYE Mr. Jan P.S.ERLUND Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
Bl kst fE EEASE
Executive Director Independent Non-executive Director Non-executive Director
HEE . BYHHTEE . FHEE ’

d:h d:h da:h

Mr. Anthony John Liddell Ms.May LO

NIGHTINGALE EHXEZL

RERKE

Independent Non-executive Director Non-executive Director

BIAHTES ' FHTE &
a:h

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
K4

Independent Non-executive Director .

BB TEE
a:h

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG
SFEL

Independent Non-executive Director
BUFHTEE ’

Annual Report 2020/2021 % 35



36

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBME

The designation, position and brief biographical information of
each Director, together with the relationship amongst each other,
Senior Management or Substantial or Controlling Shareholder
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section in
this Annual Report. In addition, a list containing the names of the
Directors and their roles and functions has been published on the
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company at www.vitasoy.com.

Number of the Independent Non-executive Directors is near to
half of the total number of Board members which also exceeds
the Listing Rules requirement for Independent Non-executive
Directors to make up at least one third of the Board.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

27%

Executive
Directors

=RYITES

27%

Three Non-executive
Directors

=RFHITES

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

BFEEZBE  BUMBEARKRUERESE
EEAE TERRFERRR ZBEREIINAE
FHRIESRSEEEAE] —H - LI #HFI
ESpnERREzACRBRZIRCTIBNE
BEEXZMAMRATE ([BXA]) @ERAR

A U5 www.vitasoy.com ©

BUFHTESABNESSRAMEI- o2
— FERETRAMREB L FATESANL
ESEAEBLI =2 —HER -

AABEWESBEIFNTESRE EHRAE
SIBFMASN 2B UMBRE 2 BFERIE - &
DRERREBUFATESERBELAL -

46%

Five Independent
Non-executive
Directors
AEBBIIEHIT
£=
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TEERRE
Gender ¥ 3 Age Group F# 4 B!
Male 1
E: 41-50
Female 51-60
§ 2
61-70
Ethnicity &% Tenure Office {EBE S HA
Chinese
e 1
4 11-20
Non-Chinese 3
=
HEB Over 20
2080 &

Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors
and Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the Board
functions.

Over 70
7080k

Ex (BREBIFITESNFHTES) 95

BEZMEEZEER  AEMEEXTRE - &

EXEBUBRERSMUEITERRE

Direct%'s’ Core skills, expertise and experience

B EERAE  EXEABRKER

Accounting,
Audit,
Finance, Risk Manufacturing
management and Project
General &5t - Bt - Food Management
Management R Legal technolo Marketin H£EREER
Name #E wEeE AREE Pz Bmit ikt BB
Executive Chairman HITER
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BREEE v/ 7
Independent Non-executive BV IEHITES
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David THESL v v/
Kwok-po LI
Mr.Jan P.S.ERLUND JanP.S.ERLUND 5t 4
Mr. Anthony John Liddell REEESE 7
NIGHTINGALE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH Paul Jeremy BROUGH v
it
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG EEFEL v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BERRu LT 4
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO BEREE v/
Ms. May LO BHXZL 4
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI REEREE v v
Mr. Eugene LYE el kA v/
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Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in June 2013. The Board Diversity Policy
has been published on the Company’s website.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Board
appointment and renewal have been, and will continue to be,
made based on merit as well as complementing and expanding
the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board as a whole. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviews the progress
on achieving measurable objectives for gender and age diversity
annually and review such objectives, whenever applicable to
ensure it leverages diversity to contribute to the achievement
of the Company’s strategic objectives. The Remuneration
and Nomination Committee has established the measurable
objectives for achieving gender and age diversity up to the year
of 2024/2025. As at the year ended 31st March 2021, progress in
achieving the objectives are:

i

18%” set up for the years up to 2024/2025.

EEEREZ L
EFEN-Z-ZF A ARMAESEHESZ T
X ERHIEZEREZ TIHBENURE
BN ZEBEER - EEEREZ TLEERD
FIZRARBA

AAAREAESFEREZ T z#E - LRK/T
RRESECRNERZ BB ZENERBE
MBI EEBRIREN ZNEURESHE R
RESSERE K ARRERDEL o FH
RiREZEERESFRIUBEMIRFRS T
fENAFEE R EEYBERERIZEEE
LUERBURBER A 2 T i BV EBA D B 2 R
B - FMRREE8SEHEBE_2-0/
—ECRFEERMRRFRS TN TTTER
B -REE-ZT-_-F=A=+t-HLFEAR"
EYZSEBRZEENT

Female representation during the year of 2020/2021 was 18.2% which has achieved the target of “not less than

AZBZR TR -FE ZMAKRER182% 0 YEEBARBE-Z-N "S- AFEMER [FOR

Gender 18%] 2B -
]l
Average age of the board members during the year of 2020/2021 was 66 which has achieved the target of
Age “average 67-70” set up for the years up to 2024/2025.
FiR A—BCR "B —FE EEERENTUERR66H  YCERARE TN,/ T REEFHET

[67E708% | 2B °

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company for the
period from 1st October 2020 to 30th September 2021.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Changes in Directors’ Information during the year ended 31st
March 2021 and up to the date of this Annual Report are set out
below:

REBE-ZE--—F=ZA=+—HLEFERBEX
FHRAPIECEFTEREHEIINT

Changes in Major Appointments and Other FEZARHMESBE 22T
Directorships
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI ZEHEHLT

- ceased to be a director of Guangdong Investment Limited
with effect from 27th March 2021.

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE
- ceased to be a director of Jardine Strategic Holdings Limited
with effect from 15th April 2021.

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH

- ceased to be a director of Sailability Hong Kong Limited.

= ceased to be a director of GL Limited with effect from
16th April 2021.

- BIEBREBRATRZES BZE
T—F=AZ+tHEBENK -

REERE
- BMERARHERERLARZES A=
FE-FNATHABEN -

Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4

- BHESailability Hong Kong Limited 2 &3 o

-  BHMIGLLimitedzEE B-Z_—FMN
BH+ARERK -

Changes in Directors’ Fees

ESHECEE

Basic directors’ fees will be adjusted upwards for fiscal year of
2021/2022.

BHE S CECCRREECEAE
=¥ o
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Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer

HBITEEREETHRAR

The roles and responsibilities of Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer
are clearly defined and separate

BITEEREETRRARZACKRBECFRERAERES

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, the Executive Chairman is mainly
responsible for:

>
>

chairing Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

ensuring the company has an effective vision and mission,
strategy and set of values and monitoring implementation of
the strategies;

providing leadership and establishing guiding principles for
the Board and promoting a culture of openness;

encouraging all board members to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs;

acting as a resources person and advisor to various Board
committees;

ensuring the Board has efficient communication channels
regarding all material issues concerning the business;

ensuring all board members have sufficient resources for
the Board to run efficiently;

ensuring good corporate governance practices and
procedures are established;

ensuring shareholders are adequately informed with respect
to the Company’s affairs;

providing continuous guidance and mentoring to the Group
Chief Executive Officer;

building and maintaining stakeholders’ trust and confidence
in the Company;

promoting social responsibility goals and giving guidance and
advice to the Group Executive Sustainability Committee;
and

providing support and guidance for special corporate
projects.

BTEIRERERBALETERS

D IREZSERRBRRAS
D BRARMEAROERELD - KR
BES  WERRENER

D REE=SUHEREEMFRA - REMK
#93Z1E

D BErERESEREXEALEGHBESE
BEECEK

D ARESZSERMHEERER

D HRESEHR - UVEREBIEABER
NEMBERE

D BR2EEZSHEFEEZRER ES
SRUBRER

D BREHERFLEXEARERARER

> BRRRZD THARAREE

D HEESWFAKRETRARNER ;

D BEURABBOHEHARRZEERED

D ESHEEFERIMEETSERREY
TEEERHEERER R

D ZFERILFEBVATIEESR -
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Mr.

Roberto GUIDETTI, the Group Chief Executive

Officer is mainly responsible for:

>

>

formulating and executing the overall strategies of all the
Group’s operations;

ensuring business development and leading general
management of all the Group’s operations;

providing the Board with a monthly management update
to keep the Board apprised of the Group’s business and
financial performance, position and prospects;

taking the lead of strategic plan meeting;

taking the lead for the development and promotion of a
sound Enterprise Risk Management system, and ensuring
appropriate actions will be taken to eliminate or mitigate
key risks;

maintaining relationship with the institutional investors and
echoed their views to the Board; and

taking lead of the Group’s long term sustainability
development and giving strategic directions to the Group
Executive Sustainability Committee.

SETHARERRSAEIRRE

HERATAEEELEEE 2 BEBR
B ;

ERAEEMELEEMN ZERERUR
BEH R |
BANESERIRIZEEERS &
FESSBUTHEAEB XX RBBER
B/ RRRAIS

EERBRESE
HEBRRERETREZ2LERABEER
& BRSENEEEEERIBREETE
=B

BREMBREEZHE YHEEER
BRAPOER | &
AEAEECEATSERE  LHES
TR EREHTEE RIS -
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Board Proceedings

The Board met five times in FY2020/2021 to discuss and approve
the Group’s long term strategic plan; to review and monitor the
financial and business performance of the Group and each of
its operating units; to consider and approve annual budget, the
financial reports; to review and approve sustainability report and
various corporate governance and sustainability related policies
and practices; and to monitor and review the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management performance.

The Board and its Committees are supplied with full and timely
information in relation to the Company, which enables them to
discharge their responsibilities. There are established procedures
for Directors to seek independent professional advice for them to
discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at
the Company’s expenses.

Directors have made active participation in the Board meetings,

Board Committees meetings and the Annual General Meeting
during the year.

2020

RN AGM

AC ESG
BM Board Meeting EEE 23
RN Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meeting HEiRIEZEES S
AC Audit Committee Meeting B ZES2H

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

A iy ~A + 3 J\H NLA +A +—A +=A
BM BM BM

ESG

AGM

EEERERF

EZEN -2 TR -URFERNEMAEA
REHE - mRAEAEE  REPKBRE &
AREEAEERTEESM 2 MBREH K
B ZENENFERERMBERE  FHM
BEAFERRRERECXERRTHERRN
BzSBRBERRER  TEERNFRASEER
EERB2BHM -

EFEREZESERESAQAMEHERAE
¥ BHERTHE -AQRCHARERFRE
EEBENRERT RETHBEREEMZS
BUEXEZER  BRABAADFEXM -

Fr EEYEE2HREETEER  EEEES

P

SEMBRRBERE -

AC

RN

ESG Committee Meeting 18315 « HBEREARAZEEEE

Annual General Meeting JREBFEXRE
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Attendance records of the Directors at the Board Meetings, A\ZEZE /CE--BHEE REBNES
Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meetings, Audit EEE FWRRESZEESER  BEXZEER
Committee Meetings, ESG Committee Meeting and Annual EORE HEKERZESEERBRRBEKX

General Meeting during FY2020/2021 are as follows: Sz HERERIIMT
Meetings Attended/Held
HEREERRE
Remuneration
and ESG Annual
Nomination Committee General Overall
Committee Audit BiE - Meeting  Attendance
Board %  Committee HER BRBF Rate
Name #E EEg REEEE BEREEE TRZEED RE EELEE
Independent Non-executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI ZEZE&E+ 5/5 2/20 3/3 N/A 1/1 100%
TEA
Mr. Jan P.S.ERLUND JanP.S.ERLUND 5t 5/5 2/2 3/3 N/A 1/1 100%
TEA
Mr. Anthony John Liddell RERESE 4/5M o/2M 2/3M 1/1@ 1/1 67%
NIGHTINGALE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH Paul Jeremy BROUGH %t 4 5/5 2/2 3/30@ N/A 1/1 100%
TEA
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG EETEE 5/5 1/10 N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TiE A NiE A
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRKLZL 575 2/2 N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TEA TER
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO EBEARSTE 5/5 2/2 N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TEA TEA
Ms. May LO BHXLZ L 5/5 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1 100%
TEA
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BRELE 5/5@ 2/2® 3/3@ 1/1 1/1@ 100%
(Executive Chairman) (BITESE)
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI FEEELE 5/5 2/2© 3/3@ 1/1 1/1 100%
Mr. Eugene LYE A 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TE A TE A TEA
Average Attendance of the Board EEERETHYHEE 97%
Members
Group Chief Financial Officer EEEEVBEE
Ms. lan Hong NG REW L 2/2@ N/A 1/1@ N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 18th January (R==Z=—%F TiE A TiE A TEA TiE A
2021) — A+ N\BEZEME)
Group Senior Director, Internal EERABEARAKREE
Audit and Risk Management SRAE
Mr. Terence Chiu-kit CHOW ERBETE N/A N/A 3/3@ N/A N/A N/A
B TEA TEA TEA TiEH
Group Director, Sustainability and SEBAHEXER
Corporate Communications fE¥ER AR
Mr. Simeon Sing-hymn CHENG s T N/A N/A N/A 1/1@ N/A N/A
B TEA TEA TEA TiEH
External Auditors SRR BT
KPMG 2SS BB N/A N/A 3/3@ N/A 1/1@ N/A
iEFA TEA TEA TiE
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a) Chairman of the Board
b)  Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
) Chairman of the Audit Committee
d)  Chairman of the ESG Committee
) Chairman of the Annual General Meeting
f) Was appointed as Committee member on 1st September 2020
g)  Attendance by invitation
h)  Was unable to attend meetings due to illness

The Company acknowledges the Annual General Meeting is
one of the important forums to engage our shareholders. In
the 2020 Annual General Meeting, all Directors, including
Executive Chairman, the Chairman of the Board Committees
and the External Auditors attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions. Overseas Directors attended the Annual
General Meeting through video conferencing due to travel
restrictions during the period.

During the year under review, the Executive Chairman met with
the Independent Non-executive Directors on various occasions
without the presence of other Directors and Senior Management.

Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, an Audit Committee, an Executive Committee and an
ESG Committee with specific terms of reference.

Board of Directors

Exg

MisE

() EEEIRE

(b) FHRREEZEEERE

() HBREEEXE

d BE HEREAZEETE

(e) MWRBFAEERE

() N-ZB-ZENA-AEZEITAZEEERE
(8) FEEHE

(h EERFETEMAEHESE

ZIK’R AR Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁ EERFRBENEER

Be— RIZBEFRRBFRE 2RES
BREITER  SESZSS TR RIMNEREED
HERREASARERRIERS - FEBINES
HRRERFERIGERREERHERREBSF
RE o

REEFE  HITEFEEHMESERSEER
ABTHESZERTRAESEEB Y FHTE
E3- i

EEREE
EEERTEAIFMREEES
B HOTEEEREAS  HERE
BREZRERE -

DL\ ]]]E}

| |

Remuneration and
Nomination Committee

FREEREEE

Executive Committee

HITRES
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Remuneration and Nomination Committee

FHNIREEES

Members
24=1

Mr. Peter Mr. Anthony Mr.JanP.S. Dr. the Hon. Sir Mr. Paul Jeremy Dr. Roy Chi-ping Ms. Yvonne Ms. May LO

Tak-shing LO John Liddell ERLUND %4 David Kwok-po LI BROUGH %4 CHUNG Mo-ling LO BHELZL
BEALE NIGHTINGALE (Independent (Chairman) (Independent EEFEL BERRLZt (Non-executive

(Non-executive RERKE Non-executive ZEEBL Non-executive (Independent (Non-executive Director)

Director) (Independent Director) (X&) Director) Non-executive Director) (FEB{TESE)
(FEBITESE) Non-executive (BILIEHTT (Independent (BIFEHTT Director) (FEBITESE)

Director) EE) N "g ',e)‘etwj’ e E5) (BT
P A irector)
(B FFBTT (BT £5)

EE)

e & ¢ ¢ o

dd 4ab a2 a2 4>

During the year, Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG, an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, has been appointed as the new
member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee in order
to further enhance the independence of the Committee in setting
the Company’s remuneration policy, determining remuneration
package of each Executive Director and Senior Management and
setting the targets for performance-related pay schemes. The
independence role of Remuneration and Nomination Committee
has also increased in evaluating the skills, characteristics and
performance of board members and selecting the best candidates
for each seat on the Board.

. S .

FR - AREBUFPTESESFELIRERE
AFMRREEEENRE  E-PRSES
BEFEARDFHIEK - BEBUIAITESR
BEEEAEBZHFMEBRIT LRBEEERBS
ReEBERBFEZB UM - AEEEEREZ
ReE BRHNRRURAESSERELEEES
REAR  HFMREEEZESBH I BT A
BEE-
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Major responsibilities

FERS

to consider and approve the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Group,
including salaries, benefits in kind and bonuses; bonus schemes
and other long-term incentive schemes, including share option,
share award and other plans;

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge, experience, gender and age) of
the Board;

to review Director’s time commitment;

to review policies in relation to nomination of Director and
Board diversity;

to identify and determine the measurable objectives for
achieving board diversity and monitor any progress made in
achieving such measurable objectives; and

to recommend to the Board on appointment or reappointment
of and succession planning for Director and Group Chief
Executive Officer.
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Work done during and for FY2020/2021

REARB-ZE-Z —T=—
M FEREZTE

- reviewed, discussed and approved the remuneration package
of Senior Management including the Executive Directors and
key executives of the Group by reference to the individuals’ job
responsibilities and performances, industry benchmarks and
prevailing market conditions;

- approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant of share
options, having given due consideration to both the Group’s
financial performance and the individuals’ performances
during the year in accordance with the performance-based
compensation policy recommended by an independent
consultant;

- reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the
Group’s global long-term incentive plan design;

- reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval
the letters of appointment of the Executive Chairman, one
Independent Non-executive Director, three Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director;

- reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge, professional qualification,
experience, gender and age) of the Board;

- reviewed the Board Succession Plan and its Road Map;

- reviewed the measurable objectives for achieving Board
diversity;

- reviewed Director’s time commitment to perform his/her
duties;
- assessed and confirmed the independence of all Independent

Non-executive Directors; and

- made recommendation to the Board for Directors’ Fees for
FY2020/2021.
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Terms of reference of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee have been amended in March 2021 to expressly
include its authority and responsibility specified under the
Group’s global long-term incentive plan and reflect current market
practices for its expanded authorities. The Terms of reference
have been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of
independent professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its
duties.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee held two meetings
during FY2020/2021. Each member’s attendance record during
the year is shown on page 43 of this Annual Report.

FMRREEZEEN 2% "2 -UHRHF
ERNRITMREE - EHERFALEERZT
FIIBNAFIRFE 435 -

Audit Committee BEREE®
Members
BB
Dr. the Hon. Sir Mr. Paul Jeremy Mr.JanP.S. Mr. Anthony
David Kwok-po LI BROUGH %4 ERLUND %4 John Liddell
ZEREEL (Chairman) (Independent NIGHTINGALE
(Independent (&) Non-executive REHEKE
Non-executive (Independent Director) (Independent
Director) Nogiexe;“j % (BIIIERIT Nog.exetfuj" 2
e 7= irector, irector,
-ady (BB ) (BB
=) EE)
da:b da:b da:b da:b
Major responsibilities FERE

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the External Auditors and
their audit fees;

to meet with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit;

to review the interim financial report and annual financial
statements before they are submitted to the Board;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any other matters the External
Auditors may wish to discuss, and review the External
Auditors’ management letter and management’s response;

to review the internal audit programs and to ensure co-
ordination between the Internal and External Auditors, assess
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems which cover all material financial,
operational and compliance controls, and ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group;
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Major responsibilities

FERES

to conduct an annual review of the adequacy of staffing of the
financial reporting functions;

to review arrangements the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters; and to ensure proper arrangements are in place for
fair and independent investigation of those matters and for
appropriate follow up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the External Auditors;

to oversee and review the adequacy and effectiveness of
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management procedures that have been in place;

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to
the Board;

toreviewand monitorthetrainingand continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to Directors and employees;
and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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- RENBBRALFAEEVERZERTHE
BIRE - AMEERHMBRZAENE
ETARBBEINERNZZE . B#REE
EZHHZESHEHATBYI 2AER
REVEE 2 IRETE

- (EBEEAQNTENMEZBMCBERZE
EREK

- BEERRNRANERNYE  €EREH
EEREAREBRRFREERAEN ;

- BHERBNARAZEEERBRRRE
B UMEFERHER

- BRREZEENSEEEARZEIIR
FEEREE

- BEREERAQAEETEEREERE
FHZBRRER ;

- HE BAREREBAREERES 2T
AFARERFMH &

- BEARARAHEEERTAUZEFERR
ERFERBENIIE -

Work done during and for FY2020/2021

RERRAR-ZT-F —FB=—
BB EFE ez T4E

reviewed the 2020/2021 preliminary interim results
announcement; interim financial report; preliminary annual
results announcement and annual financial statements with
management and External Auditors, and recommended their
adoption by the Board;

reviewed with the Internal Auditor the Company’s internal
control systems and the periodic audit reports prepared by
the Internal Auditor and approved the 2020/2021 audit plan;
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Work done during and for FY2020/2021

RERARS

—B-% "%

B EFE PRz T4E

reviewed the Group Risk Report prepared by the Internal
Auditor;

reviewed and approved the changes to the Terms of Reference
of Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee;

met with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit work;

reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the
External Auditors;

reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-audit
services provided by the External Auditors, together with
their respective fees;

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting, financial
reporting, risk management and internal audit functions,
and their training programs and budget; effectiveness of the
Group’s internal audit function and compliance with the CG
Code;

reviewed the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and Senior Management;

reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to Directors and employees;

reviewed the status of compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

held private session with External Auditors in the absence of
Executive Directors and Senior Management.
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The Board has approved a Whistleblowing Policy in March 2012
which has been revised in November 2017. The main objective
of the Policy is to provide employees and external parties an
open and unified reporting channel and procedures to report
any serious misconduct or malpractice involving the Company
and its employees. The Audit Committee has been delegated
with the overall responsibility for monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Whistleblowing Policy. During the year, no
incident involving serious fraud or misconduct have been received
from employees nor external parties which had or would have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position and overall
operations.

The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Policy to provide
a basic framework for developing the Company’s policies and
practices to ensure alignment of interests and expectations from
our shareholders, the investing public and other stakeholders.
The Corporate Governance Policy has been published on the
Company’s website.

The Audit Committee reviews regularly the corporate governance
structure and practices within the Company and monitors
compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
independent professional advice, if necessary, to discharge its
duties.

The Audit Committee met three times in FY2020/2021. Each
member’s attendance record during the year is shown on page 43
of this Annual Report.
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Executive Committee

Members

3=

Mr. Winston
Yau-lai LO
BRE%KE

(Executive Chairman)

(BTTERE)

db

Major responsibilities

Mr. Roberto
GUIDETTI
FEEEEE

(Executive Director
and Group Chief
Executive Officer)
(BITEBE
EETBAAE)

dahs

IERE

- to operate as a general management committee under the
direct authority of the Board; and

- to consider and approve any contract, transaction and
arrangement and exercise of powers and functions as
conferred by the Board in relation to day to day management
of the Company.

- NME-—-REBLZESENSE BHEBEES
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TEERRE
ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) RIE -HEREREES
Committee
Members
RE
Mr. Roberto Mr. Winston Yau- Mr. Anthony Ms.May LO Mr. Eugene LYE
GUIDETTI lai LO John Liddell BHXz+ Bl k4E
FEEE L BRE&E NIGHTINGALE (Non-executive (Executive Director)
(Executive Director (Executive Chairman) (Chairman) Director) (#ITESE)
and Group Chief (BITERE) REELE (FEBITESE)
Executive Officer) (X&)
(HITEFREEE (Independent
TTB#EEE) Non-executive
Director)
(BIrFEHTT
EF)
dahs dab» ams» 4") dab

RZB--FMA—B  BHRLUASEEZTAER
member of the ESG Committee in order to bring in new skills, B -HEREAEEBZHRE  EUSIAHFE
attributes and insights to further strengthen the Company’s long- ge » AARBERRRS  E—FINERQATER
term strategic planning and engagement on ESG performance and B HEREAREKBEEFAZREREES

On 1st April 2021, Mr. Eugene LYE has been appointed as a new

goals. B o

Major responsibilities FERE

- to provide vision, long term guidance and report tothe Board - BEBEEZASEERXREEE  FBEE
on Group-level sustainability goals, strategies and priorities; AREEEAEESRMER REEE

RESR ;

- to advise the Board on environmental and social risks of - FMEXKEEZCERERMESRERNEEE
strategic significance and provide anticipatory and mitigation ELER W IRMTER AR R MRETE
plans;

- to review the Company’s sustainability performance against - BEBECEMCBRRBEEZEREEZEFHRAN
declared KPIs (Key Performance Indices) and goals; NEZAEERRERE

- to examine the relevance of sustainability indices and the - BRAUBERREZE2HEBEIUARARAZ
desirability of inclusion; EEE 2 VL ;

- to review and approve Group-level sustainability related - TERMESEEEH TIFEEREMEEEK
policies; and xR

- toreview and approve the Company’s sustainability reports. - BHERAERQATAUFERRRS
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Work done during and for FY2020/2021

REARB-ZE-Z —T=—
M FEREZTE

- reviewed public policies, regulations and peer companies’
approach on packaging wastes and provided strategic
directions on mitigating our impact;

- providedstrategicdirections on the mitigation and adaptation
of climate change; and

- approved the Group’s Diversity and
Anti-discrimination and Anti-harassment Policy, Waste

Inclusion Policy,

Management Policy, Water Stewardship Policy and Zero
Deforestation Policy.

- BRAOHAEE  ZRNETARAMNEEE
Y2753k » WHIERBEIET [ RS K
FIFTER R

- BEXRBMELTD  RENERREREML
)53

- HEXASREZZ TEARBEK  RERER
REEBR BREUEEBX - KERE
HEBRMBRMBE

The Board-level ESG Committee continued to oversee our
sustainability issues, and to advise the Board on a range of
strategy ESG topics which present risks and opportunities for the
Company. The ESG Committee also provided strategic long-term
guidance on sustainability performance, goals and priorities.

The ESG Committee also approved a suite of Group-level policies,
covering both social and environmental topics that are material
to the Company. The Diversity and Inclusion Policy and Anti-
discrimination and Anti-harassment Policy support the Group’s
effort in fostering a diverse workforce and a workplace free
from prejudice. While the Waste Management Policy and Water
Stewardship Policy formalised our commitment to reduce and
manage our resource, the Zero Deforestation affirmed our stance
against harmful agricultural practices.

Terms of reference of the ESG Committee has been published on
the Company’s website.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of

Directors

Theappointmentofanew Directorismadeontherecommendation
by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the Company
or by shareholders in a general meeting. Shareholders may
propose a candidate for election as Director in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Director
Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures by shareholders
have been published on the website of the Company. Any Director
who is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next General
Meeting.
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Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s Articles
of Association and Code Provision A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, all the Non-executive (including Independent
Non-executive) Directors of the Company are appointed for
a specific term of not more than three years under their letters
of appointment. Pursuant to the Company’s current Articles
of Association and Code Provision, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least every three years and one-third (or
the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third) of Directors
shall retire from office every year at the Company’s Annual
General Meeting.

Director Nomination Policy
TheBoardhasadoptedaDirector NominationPolicyinMarch2012
to set out the procedures and criteria for identifying and selecting
potential candidates for the appointment of new Director/s as well
as for considering the renewal of director appointment. The Board
has delegated to the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
the authority to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorship;
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;
and make recommendations to the Board to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

The Director Nomination Policy is intended to guide the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee when recommending
new directors and when deciding whether to recommend that
current Directors be re-elected. The Committee will carefully
consider the qualifications, skills, experience, independence,
gender diversity, time commitments and contributions of
any currently sitting director before making a re-election
recommendationtothe Company’s shareholders. Any shareholder
of the Company who is qualified to be present and vote at the
general meeting, may nominate one or more persons for election
as a director of the Company at any general meeting if the
shareholder complies with the director nomination provisions,
including without limitation the notice, information and consent
provisions under the Company’s Articles of Association or the
Listing Rules.

The Director Nomination Policy has been published on the
Company’s website.
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Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction programs are arranged for any newly appointed
Directors for provision of information which would assist him or
her in understanding his or her role as adirector as well as building
an understanding of the nature of the Company, its business,
products and markets. On appointment, new Directors will also
be given an induction program kit outlining the responsibilities
and duties as Directors under various regulatory requirements.
The induction kit also contains the Board procedures, including
the Terms of Reference of the Board Committees. Directors
are provided with “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the
Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” issued by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors as guidelines on the general
principles of duties of directors and a “Code of Conduct for
Directors” to prevent any conflict of interest.

The Company also arranges continuous professional development
program to Directors at the expense of the Company. The
Company Secretary provides regularly to Directors information
about the enrollment of external training courses and seminars as
well as legal alerts and articles which are relevant for Directors
to keep them up-to-date on any legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance requirements and also professional
practices in a dynamic business world. The program would help
refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills in performing their roles,
functions and duties of directors of a listed company.

In August 2020, the Company organised an annual in-house
training program covering ESG topical issues so as to provide the
updated perspective of the evolving ESG context and competitive
benchmarking to Directors.
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The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
training and development to Senior Management, which enables
them to boost their skills and knowledge to re-evaluate their roles
with a newly informed perspective and in this highly competitive
consumer product market. Senior Management is encouraged
to participate in various continuous professional development
programs and other training courses at the expense of the
Company.

All Directors and Senior Management have provided to the
Company Secretary their training records for FY2020/2021
which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The average
training hours of the Directors were over 51 hours during the
year. The average training hours of Senior Management were
over 67 hours.

Directors’ Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2020/2021 - by topic

BENC-ZE-E “E--BBREEZNZ

9| - BEEA I
— 44%

Global Business
Environment
Update
BHTIRBRE

RE

49
(o]
Accounting/ Finance / Tax

a5 B

6%
Innovation and

Technology
RIERH

(0)
8%
Legal / Regulatory

/Governance

EBERER

AERES

18%

Director’s Duties
and Governance

EZRERER
L————120%

Company Business

ENGIES S

19%

In-house Training

o |
27%

External Courses /
Seminars / Workshops
NSy

e TS

ESETHAERFHNZEEERTS L &
BIRIINBRRYSEEEAEGHEERR K%
BURAHEKBERANSE - XURHAEAEERN
BERHESZAG A RAGBSEEEAES
MERAFEERRRRERAMTIRE - B
RBAREZA

PREEREEEEABCAADRERMRS
R-B-% /-2 -BREEEIESE T
EHBENEESEEN - EENEERTEIE
WIEIB 51 BB ERA BRARE R TIIE
Y B BEBIB 67 1S o

EE2BIIRE

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2020/2021 - by type
EEN-E-E "2 -MBEESMZ
Tl — BB ST

— 54%

Readings
BIE

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &

57



58

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Senior Management'’s Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Senior Management in
FY2020/2021 - by topic
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Responsibilities of Directors

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements for
FY2020/2021 are prepared on a going-concern basis. All the new
accounting standards and policies adopted by the Company have
been thoroughly discussed and approved at the Audit Committee
before adoption by the Board.

The Group has adopted itsown Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries were made of all Directors
and they have confirmed compliance with the required standard
set out in the Code for the year ended 31st March 2021. A similar
code has also been adopted by the Group for the specified group
of employees who may possess or have access to price sensitive
information.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they
have provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during FY2020/2021. Directors have also disclosed to
the Company their interests as director and other office in other
public companies and organisation in a timely manner, and have
regularly reported to the Company Secretary on any subsequent
changes.

Evaluation of the Board and the Executive

Chairman

The Board believes that evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman is an essential requirement of good corporate
governance and has already adopted the Recommended Best
Practice for regular Board Evaluation under the CG Code as early
inFY2011/2012.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to assist the Board in
identifying and addressing its strengths and weaknesses and
highlight the Board’s expectations for itself and areas for further
improvement. The Executive Chairman has also been evaluated
on whether he has adequately and effectively performed his roles
and fulfilled his responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board.
Board evaluation is usually conducted on an annual basis.
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A formal evaluation of the Board and the Executive Chairman
was conducted for FY2020/2021. During the evaluation process,
questionnaire with scoring was used for collecting scores as well
as opinions from all the Directors. The questionnaire included 20
statements for Board evaluation and 10 statements for Executive
Chairman evaluation. Completed evaluation forms were sent to
the Company Secretary on a confidential basis. The Company
Secretary then prepared a summary report of the aggregate
evaluation results for review and discussion in the Board meeting.

Board composition and structure
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All Directors have actively participated in the whole evaluation
process. Responses from the Board members were overall very
positive, with three of the six Board evaluation areas recorded an
average score of 9 or above (full score is 10). The highest score
went to “Board meeting and procedures”.

Overall weighted scores in six evaluation areas
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The Executive Chairmanhas adequately and effectively performed
his roles and fulfilled his responsibilities as the Chairman of the
Board. No major areas of concerns were found in the evaluation
results.

Directors have proposed a few valuable and constructive
recommendations for continuous improvement of the Board’s
performance, mainly in the areas of board composition; board
meeting and procedures; strategic direction and planning;
sustainability drive; and risk management.

Executive Chairman as the leader of the evaluation process has
reviewed summaries of the aggregate evaluation results of the
Board and Executive Chairman and also valuable comments from
Directorsoneach area. He had discussed with Senior Management
comments from Directors and provided his responses and a few
action plans to address the areas identified from the evaluation
results. Executive Chairman’s responses and action plans have
also been considered and discussed amongst the Directors.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the
Board and the Board Committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, shareholders and Senior
Management.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject
to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to both the
Executive Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer.
The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and facilitating the
professional development programme and induction programme
of Directors. All members of the Board have access to the advice
and service of the Company Secretary.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook 26 hours of
external CPD training courses to keep abreast of latest regulatory
changes and corporate governance practices and to refresh her
skills and knowledge.

Risk Management and Internal Control

TheBoard acknowledgesitsresponsibility for therisk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. To achieve this, the Board ensures that
there is an effective framework of risk governance and ongoing
risk management process to promote the long-term success of the
Company.

TheBoardisentrusted withthe overall responsibility onanongoing
basis for ensuring that appropriate and effective risk management
and internal controls are maintained to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement of information. Main
features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:
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Internal Control

The Company has had in place an internal control system, which is
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controls, to manage and mitigate rather than to eliminate business
risks. The key underlying components of effective internal control HYOT

system are illustrated as below:
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Assessing risks and reviewing the effectiveness of internal
controls is a continuing process in the Company. Our internal
control system is designed to give reasonable assurance that:

° Assets are prudently safeguarded,;

° Business activities are conducted in an effective and efficient
manner;

° Financial reporting is accurate, timely and complete; and
° Laws and regulations relevant to the business are complied.

Under the Company’s internal control system, management is
charged with the responsibility to design and implement the
internal controls while the Board and the Audit Committee
oversee the effectiveness of the internal control system that have
been put in place.

Internal Audit

Group Internal Audit (a team under Group Internal Audit and Risk
Management Department) plays a critical role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company.

The scope of services of the department is set out in the approved
Internal Audit Charter and includes:

° Unrestricted access to all the Company’s activities,
personnel,
sources required to carry out internal audits;

records, properties, and other information

° Review the effectiveness of internal control over
operational, compliance and financial reporting as well as

risk management function; and

° Specialreviewsof areas of concernidentified by management
or the Audit Committee.

Group Internal Audit, reporting to the Audit Committee, provides

independent assurance as to the existence and effectiveness of
risk management functions and controls in business operations.
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Using risk assessment methodology and taking into account
the Company structure, management’s concern, nature and
complexity of operation, and operating environment, Group
Internal Audit prepares its annual audit plan which is reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The risk assessment
methodology assists in identifying business risks and determining
audit frequencies. Based on the approved audit plan, Group
Internal Audit schedules its internal audit programs to conduct an
independent review of different financial, business and functional
operations and activities with resources focusing on areas with
higher risk.

During the fiscal year of 2020/2021, Group Internal Audit issued
reports to Senior Management covering various operational and
financial units of the Company and its subsidiaries. Group Internal
Audit also conducted reviews of major projects and areas of
concern identified by management.

Risk Management

Risk management framework with effective governance structure
and management process are in place. Such framework enables
the Company to adopt a proactive and structured approach to
identify and manage risks across the Company with ongoing
monitoring and oversight.
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Risk Governance Structure R EREE
The risk governance structure consists of three layers of roles and AEESEEEETI=(AREzACGKREE :
responsibilities as explained below:

Layer Roles and Responsibilities BE BEERBESE
Oversight Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board EE REREESESCERZER
. Oversee the Company’s risk management and c BEEERARZAREERRA
internal control on an ongoing basis. EBEEHE o
. Oversee those risks that warrant the - EEZEE® AEECEZERR
Committee’s attention and supervise risk I BEE J—H@Efi&r LEEE
management process as part of good corporate R2hxER -
governance.
Group Internal Audit EERIEST
. Conduct independent review on the - HEAREERADEZRS 2K
effectiveness of risk management and internal METBIUER LTRNEZRZEE
control systems and provide risk assurance to SR ERBERE

Audit Committee.

Risk Enterprise  Risk Management Executive B TERRBREEHUTEEEREAA
Monitoring &  Committee & Entity CEOs ERR FITHAR
Review . Design, implement and monitor the risk LU Bt BERRERAREERA
management and internal control system. EBEEIE R4 ©
- Provide assurance to the Audit Committee . ﬁ]%ﬁéééﬁfﬂﬁ@ﬂ@'ﬁﬁ
on the effectiveness of risk management and RATBEIE RGN M IRTE
internal control systems.
Group Risk Management, an independent SERREELAEERISETRE
team under Group Internal Audit and Risk R ERIPIET 2B B
Management
. Support the Board of Directors, Audit - ZEEE® ERZEERGE
Committee and Enterprise Risk Management RBRERHTEES

Executive Committee.

FrEMBLAREY REITRER
IBMEZE - X s TERFE -

. Develop and implement risk management

I B

frameworks, policies, tools and methodologies
with all subsidiaries.

- Monitor status of risk and communicate with BFEERRARMR  WEHHTE
the Executive Committee and Audit Committee EBNERZESRERRE -
on an ongoing basis.
Risk & Control Department Heads & Individual Employee 21 MEAFERERNET
. e N
S - Ownership of managing risks, executing gi:j RAEEEREERK  FITE
control activities and identifying new risks in = R B R R BIFT RS

daily operation.
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Risk Management Process

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily operations,
financial activities, compliance, strategy development & business
planning, investment decision and external factors. The processes
are as follows:

° Anticipate: Potential risks and threats that are related to
different business processes and relevant to the Company’s
objectives will be anticipated and identified by all individual
staff.Risks are groupedintosixclusters (including reputation,
strategy, market, liquidity, credit and operation) to facilitate
the assessment appropriately.

° Rate: Each identified risk is evaluated on the basis of
impact and likelihood consistent with the risk appetite set
by the Board. The risk impact and likelihood will be rated
according to the historical records, statistical analyses
and relevant experiences, specialist and expert judgments
by management. Group Risk Management facilitates the
evaluation process including the summary discussion in the
Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee and
Audit Committee.

° Respond: A delegated management is assigned to each risk
as risk owner to fully respond on each risk. Risk management
strategies and corresponding control owners are identified
by risk owner to deploy appropriate control activities.

° Regulate: We take a close monitoring on the current status
of risk, which is being monitored through key risk indicators
with defined thresholds, occurrence of related incidents,
control effectiveness and audit results. Any change in
current status of risk to a worsened level will trigger a react
process through creation of a mitigation plan.

° React: When there is a change on the current status of
risk, the corresponding owner will coordinate mitigation
plan with action details, responsible person and timeline to
address the status.
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Report: To support the oversight of the Board on the
effectiveness of Vitasoy’s risk management, risk reporting
requirement was approved by the Board of Directors under
risk management framework. Periodicrisk reportis provided
to the Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee
summarizing the results of risk monitoring, mitigation plans
and the current risk management implementation progress.
Besides, since the launch of the Governance, Risk and
Compliance System (“GRC System”) in mid-2018, Enterprise
Risk Management Executive Committee and risk owners
are able to obtain real-time risk status through the relevant
system dashboards.

Risk Management Activities

Improvement of Key Risk Indicators (“KRIs”)

In Vitasoy, KRIs are used as one of the key tools to monitor
risk status. During this year, the definition and threshold of
the KRIs for manufacturing, product quality, occupational
health & safety, and information security have been
reviewed and revised where necessary. This resulted in a
more timely and accurate detection of change in risk status
and development of mitigation actions.

Facilitated risk reviews for key purchases

In addition to the regular risk management process,
Vitasoy has incorporated a risk review process in making
key purchasing decisions. The objective of the review is to
ensure that critical purchasing risks are adequately assessed
and considered and hence improve the quality of purchasing
decisions.

Enhanced emerging risk monitoring

Vitasoy has stepped up the effortsin proactively scanningthe
risk environment to identify any emerging risks of potential
concerns, including pandemic, regulatory, sustainability,
supply chain and other business risks. Additionally, Vitasoy
is further exploring the use of data analytics solutions to
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of risk monitoring.

Enterprise Integrity Risk Management

To support the on-going development of integrity culture,
Vitasoy launched the Enterprise Integrity Risk Management
policy to specify supervisory accountability in managing
integrity risk, aiming to strengthen the first-line awareness
inthe detection of and remediation actions on abnormalities.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal
Controls Effectiveness

Group Internal Audit has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the findings and impartial opinion
of Group Internal Audit on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board, with confirmation from management, considered the
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate for the year ended 31st March 2021. No significant
areas of concern that might affect the financial, operational
and compliance issues and risk management functions of the
Company were identified. The scope of this review also covered
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions and their training and budget.

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware
of the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules and
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced as soon as reasonably
practicable after such information comes to our attention unless it
falls within any of the safe harbours provisions under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. The Company has had a system in place
with established policies and procedures for complying with the
Inside Information disclosure requirements under the regulatory
regime. The Board has adopted a Disclosure Compliance Policy
on 27th November 2012 which has been revised with a few
housekeeping amendments on 30th March 2020. The Policy has
been formulated by reference to the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission. The purpose of the Policy is to provide Directors
and employees with guidelines on assessing, reporting and
disseminating inside information, maintaining confidentiality and
abiding shares dealing restrictions. The Company has included
in its code of conduct and staff handbook a strict prohibition on
the unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information.
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External Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of the
Company by shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting. An
amount of HK$5.9 million (FY2019/2020: HK$5.7 million) was
charged for FY2020/2021 for statutory audits for the Company
and subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit services
provided by KPMG for the Company and subsidiaries during
the year was HK$0.4 million (FY2019/2020: HK$3.8 million).
The non-audit services mainly comprised tax advisory services.
The non-audit fee decreased versus the previous year due to
substantial reduction of consultancy services rendered by KPMG
for digitisation during the year.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect to the
FY2020/2021 financial statements are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 99 to 105.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a Dividend Policy to provide guidance to
the Board and the management of the Company for distribution
of surplus funds to its shareholders.

In determining the level of dividend payment, the following
criteria and consideration must be taken:

- Sharing of success with shareholders

- Liquidity and capital requirement

- Historical trend of dividend payout

- Benchmarking with competitors within the industry
- Fulfilment of financial covenants

- Taxation impact

- Restrictions

- Other factors that may deem relevant

The Company intends to declare dividends to shareholders semi-
annually in an aggregate amount per year of approximately 60%
of the anticipated consolidated net annual profit attributable
to shareholders net of one-off event impact and may declare
special dividends from time to time in addition to interim or
final dividends. The determination to pay dividends and level of
dividend to be distributed will be subject to the discretion of the
Board from time to time.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to convene General
Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), shareholders representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings are entitled to send a request to the Company to
convene a general meeting. Such request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at the meeting. A request may be sent to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in hard
copy form or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must also
be authenticated by the person or persons making it.

Procedures for Shareholders to request circulation
of statement at General Meeting

Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder/s representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or at least 50 shareholders, who
have a relevant right to vote, can request the Company in writing
to circulate to the shareholders a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at that meeting or other business to be
dealt with at that meeting. A request may be sent to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s registered office in hard copy form
or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must identify the
statement to be circulated. It must be authenticated by the person
or persons making it and be received by the Company at least 7
days before such meeting.

Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a
Director at General Meeting

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, if a shareholder
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the shareholder should
deposit a written notice of nomination which shall be given to the
Company within the 7-day period commencing the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period as may
be determined and announced by the Directors from time to time)
and in no event ending no later than seven days prior to the date
appointed for such meeting. The procedures for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a Director have also been
published on the Company’s website.
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Constitutional Document

During the year, there has been no change in the Company’s
Articles of Association. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the Articles of Association of the Company has been published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Communications with Shareholders and

Investors

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable for
ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard, timely
communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal
and timely access to the Company’sinformation. The Shareholders
Communication Policy has been updated on 30th March 2020 and
been posted on the Company’s website.

We maintain a corporate website (www.vitasoy.com) to keep
our shareholders and the investing public posted of our share
price information, latest business developments, final and interim
results announcements, financial reports, public announcements,
corporate governance policies and practices and other relevant
shareholder information.

The Company views its Annual General Meeting as one of the
important platforms to communicate with its shareholders. All
Directors and Senior Management make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting. At the 2020 Annual General Meeting,
the Chairman of the Board briefed shareholders the business
review and the outlook of the Group and answered questions
raised by shareholders. The chairman of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and the chairman of the Audit Committee
were also present to answer questions raised by shareholders. The
Company’s External Auditors attended the 2020 Annual General
Meeting to address questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditors’ independence.
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Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue, including
the appointment and re-election of Directors were proposed by
the Chairman at the Annual General Meeting and were voted
on by poll. The detailed procedures of conducting a poll were
explained by the Chairman at the commencement of the Annual
General Meeting to ensure that shareholders were familiar with
such procedures. An independent scrutineer was appointed to
count the votes and the poll results were posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day following
the Annual General Meeting.

We manage investor relations systematically as a key part
of our operations. We maintain regular bilateral, open and
regular communications with existing and potential investors
to ensure that the investment community has a balanced and
updated view of the performance of the Company and relevant
business development. As such, the Company developed and
adopted a formal Investor Relations Policy as the guidelines
for conducting investor relations activities. We have set up a
dedicated email account at ir@vitasoy.com for shareholders and
general investing public, fund managers, analysts and the media
for a two-way communication with the related stakeholders. We
keep our investors abreast of the Group’s latest developments
and strategies through direct communications including results
announcementevents, group and individual face-to-face meetings,
telephone conferences and email with shareholders and investors.
Our sharing with investors community always takes reference of
applicable regulatory requirements and internal guidelines for
fair disclosure of information without offering advantage to any
particular investor or financial analyst. We also leverage media
platform to update our latest corporate development. In addition,
we are proactive in responding to general enquiries raised by
the investing public, individual and institutional investors and
analysts. In order to keep updated with the latest market practices
on investor relations, the delegated persons engaged in investor
relations activities often attend industry seminars or training
sessions on various topics.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (SBS, BSc, MSc), aged 80, is the
Executive Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lo was appointed
a Director of the Company in 1972. Mr. Lo graduated
from the University of lllinois with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Food Science and gained his Master of Science
degree in Food Science from Cornell University. Mr.
Lo is an Honorary Court Member of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and life member
of Cornell University Council. Mr. Lo is a director of Ping
Ping Investment Company Limited. He is also a director
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was a member of The
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years. He is the father of Ms. May Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company) and Ms. Joy
Cheung Lo (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
the brother of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Ms. Myrna Mo-ching Lo
and Ms. Irene Chan (the substantial shareholders of
the Company) and the relative of Mr. Peter Tak-shing
Lo (a Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr.
Eugene Lye (an Executive Director of the Company),
Mr. Christopher Lye, Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms.
Alexandra Chan (the substantial shareholders of the
Company).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (GBM, GBS, OBE, JP,
MA Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon.
DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh
Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong
Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie), Hon.
DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB,
FBCS, CITP, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer
of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of
the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur
dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur), aged 82, was
appointed aDirector of the Company in 1994.Sir David is
the executive chairman of The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He
is a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. He is also an independent non-executive
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director of The Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited
and San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited, all being
companies listed in Hong Kong. Sir David is founding
chairman of The Friends of Cambridge University in
Hong Kong Limited, chairman of the Advisory Board of
The Salvation Army, Hong Kong and Macau Command,
chairman of the Executive Committee of St. James’
Settlement and a fellow of the Hong Kong Academy
of Finance. He was a member of the Executive Council
of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008 and the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2012. He was an
independent non-executive director of PCCW Limited
and Guangdong Investment Limited. Save as disclosed,
he has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.

Mr.Jan P.S. ERLUND, aged 82, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2006. He graduated with a Master
degree in Law from the University of Aarhus and studied
at the Nordic Institute for Maritime Law, the University
of Oslo. Mr. Erlund was admitted to the Danish Bar in
1968 and was admitted to the Supreme Court in 1976.
Mr. Erlund is now a partner in Copenhagen Chambers
focusing on Danish and international arbitration. He was
apartner of Gorrissen Federspiel Kierkegaard, alaw firm
in Copenhagen, Denmark. He was the president of the
Danish Bar and Law Association, president of the Danish
Maritime Law Association and chairman of the Maritime
and Transport Committee of the International Bar
Association. Mr. Erlund was the chairman of the board of
directors of The East Asiatic Company Ltd. A/S and Dansk
Skovselskab A/S, deputy chairman of ERRIA A/S and a
member of the board of directors of PSA International
Pte. Ltd., all being companies listed overseas. Save as
disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE (CMG, SBS,
JP), aged 73, was appointed a Director of the Company
in 2015. Mr. Nightingale graduated from Peterhouse
College, University of Cambridge with a degree in
Classics. Mr. Nightingale was Managing Director of the
Jardine Matheson Group (“Jardine Group”) from 2006 to
2012.Hejoined Jardine Groupin 1969 and was appointed
a director in 1994. Mr. Nightingale is currently a non-
executive director of Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited
and of other Jardine Group companies. These include
Dairy Farm, Hongkong Land, Jardine Cycle & Carriage
and Mandarin Oriental. Jardine Matheson Holdings
Limited has a standard listing on the London Stock
Exchange as its primary listing, with secondary listings
in Bermuda and Singapore. Mr. Nightingale is also a non-
executive director of Prudential plc, a company with
primary listings on stock exchanges in London and Hong
Kong and with secondary listings on stock exchanges
in Singapore and New York (ADRs). He is also the non-
executive director of Shui On Land Limited, a company
listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Nightingale is a commissioner
of PT Astra International Tbk. He is a member of The
Chief Executive’s Council of Advisors on Innovation
and Strategic Development, a member of the HKUST
Business School Advisory Council, the chairperson of
The Sailors Home and Missions to Seafarers in Hong
Kong and the chairman of the Friends of Uppingham
School Limited. Mr. Nightingale is the former chairman
of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and
was appointed as a Hong Kong, China’s representative
to the Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation Business
Advisory Council from 2005 to 2017 and a Hong Kong
representative to the APEC Vision Group from 2018
to 2019. He was a non-executive director of Schindler
Holding Limited and Jardine Strategic Holdings Limited.
Save as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH, aged 64, was appointed
a Director of the Company in 2016. Mr. Brough
graduated from Nottingham Trent Business School
with a Bachelor’s degree (Honours) in Business Studies.
Mr. Brough is an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
an associate of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute. Mr. Brough is an independent non-executive
director of Habib Bank Zurich (Hong Kong) Limited, a
Hong Kong restricted licence bank, an independent non-
executive director of Toshiba Corporation, a company
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and an independent
non-executive director of The Executive Centre Limited.
Mr. Brough joined KPMG Hong Kong in 1983 and held
appointments as its Head of Consulting in 1995 and as
Head of Financial Advisory Services in 1997. In 1999,
he was appointed the Asia Pacific Head of KPMG'’s
Financial Advisory Services business and a member of
its global advisory steering group. He held the position
of Regional Senior Partner of KPMG Hong Kong from
April 2009 before retiring in March 2012. Mr. Brough
also occupies the following positions in not-for-profit
entities: member of the General Committee of The Hong
Kong Club, director of the Hong Kong Club Foundation
Limited and a director of Run Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. Brough is also a director of Blue Willow Limited, a
private limited company. Mr. Brough was the executive
chairman of Noble Group Limited, a company listed
on the Singapore Stock Exchange, and its successor
company, Noble Group Holdings Limited from 8th May
2017 to 1st October 2019. He was an independent non-
executive director of GL Limited, a company listed on
the Singapore Stock Exchange, from 1st July 2012 to
15th April 2021. Save as disclosed, he has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.
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Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG (GBS, BBS, JP), aged 68, was
appointed a Director of the Company in June 2017. Dr.
Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the
University of Warwick, United Kingdom and Doctor of
Business Administration Degree from City University of
Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor
by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in
December 2020. He was awarded an Honorary Doctor
of Business Administration by the Lingnan University in
2015, an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007,
an Honorary Doctorate Degree by the University
of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in 2006,
an Honorary Doctor of Science by The University of
Warwick, United Kingdom in 2019 and a Doctor of
Business Administration honoris causa by The University
of Macau in 2019. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star (BBS) and Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) by the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government on 1st
July 2011 and 1st July 2017 respectively. He was also
appointed as Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government on 1st July 2005
and won the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award in
1997. In November 2014, he was further awarded the
Industrialist of the Year. Dr. Chung is highly dedicated
to the advancement of industry and was the Chairman
of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July
2011 to July 2013 and now its Honorary President.
In addition, Dr. Chung holds positions on a number of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government
advisory committees and is also an active member
of many social committees and associations. He was
appointed as chairman of Vocational Training Council
from January 2018 to December 2019. Dr. Chung is a
co-founder and currently a non-executive director of
Techtronic Industries Company Limited. Dr. Chung is
also anindependent non-executive director of TK Group
(Holdings) Limited and Fujikon Industrial Holdings
Limited, all being companies listed in Hong Kong. Dr.
Chung retired as independent non-executive director
of Kin Yat Holdings Limited and KFM Kingdom Holdings
Limited effective from 25th August 2014 and 27th
August 2015 respectively. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years.
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Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 73, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo received a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Oberlin College, Ohio
in the United States and undertook graduate studies
in Urban and Regional Planning at the University of
Toronto in Canada. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1980
and was the President of Vitasoy USA Group until 2001.
Ms. Lo was the president of the Soyfoods Association of
North America which represents more than 30 soyfoods
companies covering the US and Canada. She does not
hold/has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the past three years. She
is the mother of Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda (a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the sister of Mr. Winston
Yau-lai Lo (the Executive Chairman of the Company), Ms.
Myrna Mo-ching Lo and Ms. Irene Chan (the substantial
shareholders of the Company) and the relative of Mr.
Peter Tak-shing Lo (a Non-executive Director of the
Company), Ms. May Lo (a Non-executive Directors of the
Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an Executive Director of the
Company), Ms. Joy Cheung Lo, Mr. Christopher Lye and
Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial shareholders of the
Company).

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO, aged 59, was appointed a
Director of the Company in June 2017, Mr. Lo holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic Engineering & Physics
from the Loughborough University of Technology, a
Master’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University
of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics
from the University of London and an Honorary Fellow
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lo is
an executive director and the chief executive officer of
Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is the chairman and a
trustee of Lo Kwee Seong Foundation (a charitable trust)
being a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Save as disclosed,
he has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years. Mr. Lo is the relative
of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (the Executive Chairman of
the Company), Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Ms. May Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an Executive
Director of the Company), Ms. Irene Chan, Ms. Myrna
Mo-ching Lo, Ms. Joy Cheung Lo, Mr. Christopher Lye,
Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the
substantial shareholders of the Company).
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Ms. May LO, aged 46, was appointed a Director of the
Company in June 2017. Ms. Lo holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from MIT Sloan School
of Management and a Bachelor of Science degree
from Cornell University. She has worked in finance in
various roles, including, as a fund manager for a global
asset management company and has had experience
investing in publicly listed companies. She does not
hold/has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the past three years. Ms. Lo
is the daughter of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (the Executive
Chairman of the Company), the sister of Ms. Joy Cheung
Lo (a substantial shareholder of the Company), the
relative of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene
Lye (an Executive Director of the Company), Ms. Irene
Chan, Ms. Myrna Mo-ching Lo, Mr. Christopher Lye,
Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the
substantial shareholders of the Company).

Executive Directors

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, aged 58, was appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company on 1st April 2014.
Mr. Guidetti is currently the Group Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Guidetti graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics at the Bologna University in Bologna,
Italy in 1987 and further obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration at Centro Universitario di
Organizzazione Aziendale in Altavilla Vicentina, Italy in
1988. Mr. Guidetti completed a Harvard Business School
Executive Education programme in July 2017. Mr.
Guidetti is responsible for the overall strategic planning,
business development and general management of all
the Group’s operations. Mr. Guidetti joined the Group
as the Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st April 2013
and has fully assumed the roles and responsibilities of
the former Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st August
20183. He has 32 years of proven track record in general
management, strategic/business planning, marketing/
commercial leadership, product innovation and new
business development. He has matured his professional
expertise in two of the largest global fast moving
consumer goods organisations and across local, regional
and global roles in Europe and Asia. He has spent the
last 21 years in this field in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Taiwan. Mr. Guidetti is a director of Ariston Thermo
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Group, a private limited company incorporated in Italy.
He does not hold/has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies currently and in the last three
years.

Mr. Eugene LYE, aged 51, was appointed a Director of
the Company in October 2017. Mr. Lye is currently the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Vitasoy USA
Inc. and Vitasoy North America Inc., the subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lye holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics from the University of Toronto and a
MBA from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Lye is responsible for the general management and
development of the Group’s import business of the
Group’s products for sales in North America. He joined
the Group in 2002 and has been closely involved in all
aspects of the North American business for over 18
years. During his time at Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Lye has
held management positions in sales and marketing
in the Mainstream Channel, and has had oversight
responsibilities for both the research & development
and quality control departments as well as serving as
the Senior Vice President of the Asian Channel. He
does not hold/has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies currently and in the past three
years. Mr. Lye is the son of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching Lo (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), the brother
of Mr. Christopher Lye (a substantial shareholder of
the Company), the relative of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo
(the Executive Chairman of the Company), Ms. Yvonne
Mo-ling Lo, Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo and Ms. May Lo (the
Non-executive Directors of the Company), Ms. Irene
Chan, Ms. Joy Cheung Lo, Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and
Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial shareholders of the
Company).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. lan Hong NG, aged 50, Group Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Ng
is responsible for the strategic planning, financial management
and control, accounting, corporate finance, investor relations
and corporate services of the Group. Ms. Ng joined the Group in
2021 and has solid finance management experience gained with
multinational companies. She also brings a wealth of experience to
this role with leading start-up commercial operation, acquisitions,
post-merger integration, finance and digital transformation with
fast moving consumer goods (FMCG), agriculture, oil & gas, and
technology industries. Ms. Ng is a US Certified Public Accountant,
and holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration at the
University of Southern California Marshall School of Business.

Mr. Eric Ting-yi ZHONG, aged 46, Chief Executive Officer,
Mainland China Operation. Mr. Zhong is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. He joined the Group in February 2018. Mr.
Zhong has over 20 years of full management experience covering
different roles across different fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG) categories, and has worked with many multinational
companies in Mainland China.

Ms. Dorcas Shing-suet LAU, aged 51, Chief Executive Officer,
Hong Kong Operation. Ms. Lau is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong, Macau and various export markets. She joined the Group in
March 2017 and has 28 years of proven track record in Customer
Development, Marketing, Digital and eCommerce, and General
Management in fast moving consumer goods industry across
Hong Kong, Taiwan, Mainland China and North Asia markets. In
2012, she was awarded Women To Watch by Advertising Age’s in
Mainland China.
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Mr. David Bruce Charles TYACK, aged 50, Managing Director of
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd.. Mr. Tyack is responsible for
general management and development of the Group’s operation
in Australia and New Zealand. He joined the Group in September
2019 and has extensive experience across the Asia-Pacific fast
moving consumer goods (FMCG) industry over the past 27 years.
Based in and a native of Melbourne, Mr. Tyack relocated back
to his home town after leading Canberra based, Capitol Chilled
Foods Pty Ltd. (a Joint Venture between Lion Dairy & Drinks and
Bega Cheese) for 4 years. He has a strong track record in Sales,
Marketing and General Management working for a few local and
global FMCG companies.

Mr. Christopher Lloyd MARCHANT, aged 42, Managing
Director of Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd., the Group’s
tofu manufacturing company in Singapore. Mr. Marchant is
responsible for the general management and development of
the Group’s operation in Singapore. He joined the Singapore
operation in September 2016 after spending 4 years heading up
the Vitasoy Australia and New Zealand Sales team. Mr. Marchant
has extensive experience across the fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG) industry in Asia Pacific, and is very familiar with the
Singapore market having spent 14 years in the city state, where
he both started his career and completed his secondary education.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2021.

Principal Place of Business

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at No. 1 Kin Wong
Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year is set out in
note 3 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Group Chief Executive Officer’s
Report/Business Review set out on pages 10 to 25 of this Annual
Report. The environmental, employees, customers and suppliers
matters that have a significant impact on the Group, are provided
in the “Sustainability Report 2020/2021” to be posted on the
Company’s corporate website at www.vitasoy.com together with
this Annual Report. These discussions form part of this Report of
the Directors.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31st March 2021, the percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
30%.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases attributable
to major suppliers during the financial year is as follows:

TEEFRMER
REE-B-—F=A=1—ALFE ~EH
BARFAAEEZ G HEOR 0% -

UT AR RFETZEHEBIEAEERE
B2EH

Percentage of the Group’s total purchases

LHAKERBEET DL
The largest supplier 24%
BRAELER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 34%

BhAHEESE

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares)
had any interest in these major suppliers.

Recommended Dividend

An interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share (2020:
an interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share) was paid
on 17th December 2020. The Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK29.0 cents per ordinary share
(2020: a final dividend of HK28.4 cents per ordinary share) in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2021.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$169,000 (2020: HK$2,723,000).

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group, as at 31st March 2021 are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 25(c) to the financial statements.
Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
Annual Report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association and under Code Provision A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI, Mr. Jan P.
S. ERLUND and Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE retire
from the board by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company
orany of its subsidiaries whichis not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same terms for
rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company.

Directors of Subsidiaries

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
during the financial year and up to the date of this Annual Report
can be found in the Company’s website at www.vitasoy.com under
“Investor Relations/Corporate Governance/Board of Directors/
Directors of Subsidiaries”.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st March

2021 had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and subsidiaries (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the register of

EERERS - HEARD R EER
ZHEmRAR

i (BERMEKH) F352HRTRE 2 ES
RERNABEMEHRHIH R-B=—F=7
St-REBZAADESRERREAATR
MEAR (ZHR (BEREEER)) >BHR

Directors’ interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO:

(1) Interestsinissued shares

AT

(1) REBITRO2ER

Number of ordinary shares

ZREREE
* % of total
Personal Family Trustsand  Total number of issued shares
Name Note interests interests  similar interests sharesheld  *{HE BT
wH BifeE 8 AR RiEER GREREEER PR HEE By vEAL
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (i), (iv) 63,323,800 28,702,500 72,678,300 164,704,600 15.43%
ERBELE
Dr. the Hon. Sir David 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 0.94%
Kwok-po LI
ZEHEET
Mr. Jan P.S.ERLUND 150,000 - - 150,000 0.01%
JanP.S.ERLUND &4
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO (i), (iv) - - 92,084,750 92,084,750 8.63%
BERRUT
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO (iii),(iv) 9,198,000 - 121,657,000 130,855,000 12.26%
BERLE
Ms.May LO 2,100,000 - - 2,100,000 0.20%
BHEGL
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI (v) 4,700,000 100,000 - 4,800,000 0.45%
MEEEEE
Mr. Eugene LYE 442,313 - - 442,313 0.04%
el %k

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares

of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,067,187,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st

March 2021.

* EALREARAR=-E=_—F=A=1+—H
CET2RMEE (B0 1,067,187,500 REERR) &t
g °
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

(Continued)

(1) Interestsinissued shares (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in 28,702,500
shares through interests of his wife.

(ii) Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 2,078,300 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust, 2,560,150 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Separate Property Trust and 14,768,000 shares held by Lo/
Higashida Joint Trust. Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is a beneficiary of such
three trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iii)  Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is interested in 48,978,700 shares held by two
discretionary family trusts. Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is a beneficiary
of such two trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
shares.

(iv)  Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO and Mr. Peter
Tak-shing LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of
East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee
for the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a
trustee of the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to
be interested in such shares.

(v)  The family interests of 100,000 shares are jointly held by Mr. Roberto
GUIDETTI and his wife.

(2) Interestsin underlying shares

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are
set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company
or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies.
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Equity-linked Agreements
Share option scheme

(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002

On 4th September 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) under which the
Directors might, at their discretion, grant options to employees
and Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. The 2002 Share
Option Scheme was valid for 10 years ended 3rd September 2012.
The purpose of this scheme was to provide incentives and rewards
to employees for their contribution to the Group. The principal
terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme were as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

- The options were exercisable for a period to be notified
by the Directors to each option holder, such period not to
exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

- There was no minimum period which an option must be held
before it could be exercised during the vesting period, but
the Directors were empowered to impose at their discretion
any such minimum period at the date of offer.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of
the scheme.

- The maximum aggregate number of shares over which
options could be granted to any one participant, when added
tothe number of shares issued or issuable to that participant
under the share option scheme must not exceed 25% of the
maximum aggregate number of shares for the time being
issued and issuable under the share option scheme.

IR th

B AESTE
(1) R-EE-FHAAMAHEZBRE
]

REZFZE-FNAAMEA  NABRRMK—IEBRE
SE(I=ZZ_FERESE]) Bt 5
ARERARARLEEANEARZEERES
RIEREUZRBRAQAR2EBR —TZF=
BRESESCERHAETE R=Z—=-F1A
ZHAL - ZETEEERBREBHAEEF S
BRfzEE - —EZ-FBREN I ETEMHRX
L1 N

- BREZTEEAUTZESE : (aKRHD
REHBH (ERLAREER) £EBE
BRSAAERAR ([BRFT]) $#52W
mE ROBRONRBERE AR AEE
EREBIrEE2FHIRHE -

- BREZTEMRMESASESERE
A ZIREEE B e T 8RB
+e o

- BRECRBIANBARTEE -RRE
RS ATE  HESERETNERE
X BB IR RIEHEE -

- BOEEBERToBEREMAUFERTZ
ROEE  RZTEBRBIERRNTE
EH2ZE BTN 10% °

- BYEM2HEEZBEREMERBZRD
RY EHERBBRESICRTRTER
TTFZE2HEEZRODBEGHE  &F
T EEBREBRENEERCSHITRT
BT 2RO BREREZ 25% °

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &

89



90

Report of the Directors
EESRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002
(Continued)

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible Director or employee for a period
of 28 days from the date of offer or such longer or shorter
period as the Directors might in their discretion determine.
An eligible Director or employee had to pay HK$10 on
acceptance of the option as a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
any one participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of grant.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting held on 28th
August 2012. Outstanding share options granted under the 2002
Share Option Scheme prior to such termination shall continue
to be valid, and subject to the vesting schedule, exercisable in
accordance with the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As at 31st March
2021, there were 2,822,000 outstanding options to be exercised
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EESRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012

On 28th August 2012, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions which the Directors, executives and employees of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”)
have made or will make to the Group. It will provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to
excel in their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group; and attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining
an ongoing relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term growth
of the Group. The Board may at its discretion grant options
to any Director, executive or employee of the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, which must be a business day; and (b) the average
of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

- The period within which the options must be exercised
would be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This
period must expire no later than 10 years from the relevant
date of grant.

- There was no minimum period for which an option must
be held nor a performance target which must be achieved
before it could be exercised during the vesting period, but
the Board may determine at its sole discretion any such
terms on the grant of an option.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of
the scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EESRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012

(Continued)

- The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes for the time being of
the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of
shares as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an Eligible Participant for a period of 28 days
from the date of offer or such longer or shorter period as the
Directors might in their discretion determine. An Eligible
Participant had to pay HK$10 on acceptance of the option
as a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of sharesissued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
any one Eligible Participantin any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at
the date of grant.

During the year, 2,310,000 options were granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. The total number of ordinary shares
available for issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme as at 31st
March 2021 was 71,745,450 shares, which represented 6.72% of
the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at 31st March 2021.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme will end on 27th August 2022.

At 31st March 2021, the Directors and employees of the Company
had the following interests in options to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company (market value per ordinary share at 31st
March 2021 was HK$29.90) in consideration of HK$10 for each
grant under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share
Option Scheme of the Company. As at 31st March 2021, the total
grant date fair value of unexercised vested options and unvested
options, measured in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(qg)(iv) to the financial statements, amounted to
HK$36,107,000 and HK$30,776,000 respectively. The options
are unlisted. Once vested, each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. Assuming that
all the options outstanding as at 31st March 2021 were exercised,
the Company would receive proceeds of HK$316,324,000.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The Directors of the Company individually and other employees
of the Group in aggregate had the following personal interests in
options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share

R EH = @
B RERE @)

RAFERFER  ERAQXTDEERAKEZ

HittESERBE-TZT =

EERESEIR-F
—ZFBEREFIIRBALTDEBR 2 BRE

Option Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company EHEBZBAEZNT ¢
during the year and at the end of the year:
Number of
options Number of *Market *Market
Price per outstanding Number of Number of Number of options value value
Period during share.on atthe options options options outstanding per share at share.on
Date of which options exercise of beginning of granted exercised forfeited attheend date of grant exercise of
Participants grant areexercisable options the year duringthe duringthe duringthe of the year of options options
fTiRRE HE year year year EER R i
BAfZ AL ERREZ ERfifEz Emlz HAfTEZ BlREZR BRER
S5 REAH BRECES SRER BIREHA BlEsE BlEsE BlEHE BlEHA ZEHmE SRHE
HKS HKS HKS
ol ol it
Directors
£
Mr.Winston Yau-laiLO ~ 8/9/2011  8/9/2012t0 2 7/9/2021 6.358 1,740,000 - (1,740,000) - - 5470 30783
BRERE 31/8/2012  31/8/2013t0 % 30/8/2022 6400 2822000 - - - 2,822,000 6.700 -
9912013 9/9/2014t0 % 8/9/2023 9370 1,704,000 - - - 1,704,000 9950
10/9/2014  10/9/2015t0 % 9/9/2024 10080 1,792,000 - - - 1,792,000 989
14/9/2015  14/9/2016to Z 13/9/2025 13600 1,588,000 - - - 1,588,000 11520
6092016 6/9/20170 % 5/9/2026 14792 14200000 - - - 1,420,000 15280
Mr.Roberto GUIDETTI~ 24/6/2016  24/6/2017t0 2 23/6/2026 14792 730,000 - (300,000) - 430000 13960 30050
BEELE 26/6/2017  26/6/2018t0 % 25/6/2027 16.29% 1254000 - - - 1,254,000 16200 -
19/6/2018  19/6/2019t0 % 18/6/2028 25100 1,288,000 - - - 1,288,000 24000
21/6/2019  21/6/2020t0 % 20/6/2029 44810 866,000 - - - 866,000 42550
22/6/2020  22/6/2021t0 % 21/8/2030 30200 1,032,000 - - 1,032,000 29550
Eligible employees 28/6/2013  28/6/2014t0 % 27/6/2023 9370 38,000 - (38,000 - - 9.180 29650
working under 271204 27120150 % 1/7/204 10080 60,000 - (60,000 - - 989 29650
employment contracts  26/6/2015  26/6/2016 to 2 25/6/2025 13600 328,000 - (310000) - 18000 13620 3062
RERBSNIE 24162016 24/6/2017t0 % 23/6/2026 14792 662,000 - (448,000) - 214000 13960 3279
ZREREE 26/6/2017  26/6/2018t0 % 25/6/2027 16296 997,000 - (247,000) (207,000) 543,000 16200 29607
19/6/2018  19/6/2019t0 % 18/6/2028 25100 1,239,000 - (267,000) (318,000) 654,000 24000 29454
@28/1/2019  28/1/2020t0 % 27/1/2029 30350 320,000 - - - 320,000 30,000 -
21/6/2019  21/6/2020t0 % 20/6/2029 44810 946,000 - - (345,500) 600,500 42550
22/6/2020  22/6/2021t0 % 21/6/2030 30200 1,278,000 - (376,000) 902,000 29550
19,794,000 2,310,000 (3410,000) (1,246,500) 17447500
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Report of the Directors
EESRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

* being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted or exercised, as applicable.

@ 50% of options will be vested after the first anniversary from the date
of grant and 50% of options will be vested after the second anniversary
from the date of grant.

All options except for options granted on 28th January 2019, are
exercisable progressively and the maximum percentage of the
options which may be exercised is determined in stages as follows:

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant

R R —BF AR

RE#H R @

B ESTE @)
ETEECBRELRAERREEASESY 4
HBE

* ENAQ R EERNEEBRER N SETER A
—REAZWHERIEFIRHE -

e 50% 2 BRERBRE AME —AFRERBR
50% 2 SBRER B RN A MBS MBS RERE -

ATFTEZMEBREHE (BRR-ZF-F—
AZTNBERHZBRESN) TDEDSEM - ME
PEER AT 2 B Ot LRI ¢

Percentage of options granted

EERBREZADL

25%

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant

R MBI MBERAR

another = 25%

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant

R AE = BAFgER

another % 25%

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

R A MBS NBERAR

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the value per option is provided in note 1(qg)(iv) and note 23 to
the financial statements respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EESRE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the
Company’s issued shares at 31st March 2021 amounting to 5%
or more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors.

FERREREMATHKRSGRE
ERDZERRRE
RIEZ-—F=A=+—H ' X2FZEAET
ST BITEBRZS%H U L2 R AT E T
BROER - ZEEZ BRI EcESHE
5—141 °

Number of ordinary shares

LEREA
Trustsand Total * % of total
Personal Family Corporate similar ~ number of shares issued
Substantial shareholders Note interests interests interests interests held shares
HEBET
&R g
FERR i EARR BN NER Bl s s RAAH LB
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, (i) = = 159,993,369 = 159,993,369 14.99%
Inc.
ZEABERER
Ms. Irene CHAN (il 23,514,700 - - 72,678,300 96,193,000 9.01%
REsEgt
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (i) i) = = = 95,197,000 95,197,000 8.92%
ERELT
Ms. Joy Lo CHEUNG (iii 2,766,250 - - 72,678,300 75,444,550 707%
REASY L
Ms. Keiko Aun FUKUDA (il 2,400,000 - - 72,678,300 75,078,300 7.04%
Bzt
Mr. Christopher LYE (iii 750,000 - - 72,678,300 73,428,300 6.88%
BRIEE
Ms. Alexandra CHAN (i) 610,000 - - 72,678,300 73,288,300 6.87%
izt
Wasatch Advisors, Inc. (iv) - - 54,171,272 - 54,171,272 5.08%
* This percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares * HEALEDREAAANR-_ZE-_—F=A E‘T‘ H
of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,067,187,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st BT ZROELE (B)1,067,187,500 RZER) 5

March 2021.

§—°
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Report of the Directors
EESRE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

(i) These interests are held by Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc.
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(ii) Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is interested in 22,518,700 shares held by Lo
Myrna Trust. Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is a beneficiary of such trust and
is therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iii)  Each of Ms. Irene CHAN, Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, Ms. Joy Lo
CHEUNG, Ms. Keiko Aun FUKUDA, Mr. Christopher LYE and Ms.
Alexandra CHAN is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank
of East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee
for the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a
trustee of the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to
be interested in such shares.

(iv)  These interests are held by Wasatch Advisors, Inc. in the capacity of
investment manager.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have
been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EESRE

Remuneration for Senior Management

The emoluments of the Senior Management by bands are as

BEEEAEBZHE
BARIES 2 EEEEASZMENT :

follows:

Number of individuals

AE

Below HK$2,000,000 1
7BHE 2,000,000 TTA T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 2
785 2,000,001 Jt &% 4,000,000 T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1
7B 4,000,001 7T E 8% 6,000,000 7T
HK$6,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 1
7B 6,000,001 Jt £ %5 8,000,000 T
HK$8,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 1

78 8,000,001 JTTE 8% 10,000,000 7T

Employees and Human Resources Policy
Details of the number and remuneration of employees, human
resources policy, development and learning of the Group’s
employees are set out in the “Sustainability Report 2020/2021”
to be posted on the Company’s corporate website at www.vitasoy.
com together with this Annual Report.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout
the year.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained during
the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year ended
31st March 2021 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.
In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in note
28, the Company confirms that it has reviewed the transactions
which are in compliance with the relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules (if applicable).
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Report of the Directors
EESRE

Employee Retirement Benefits
Particulars of employee retirement benefits of the Group are set
out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 240 to
242 of the Annual Report.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 17th June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 106 to 239, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st March 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31st March 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZHERE

BREEEIR
HARETFREREXMANEXRAE - ADHHE
HEENBRRNBABRDERZNSH - BLE
ERERMBABRGEUBRERBARRE
ETREN - HRMNTSHELSHEEHEBNRE
Bo

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition from sales to distributors and retailers

BRREDHBNEZERHEHWA

Refer to note 3 and the accounting policies in note 1(u) to the consolidated financial statements.

FH2 BRSPS ERR M 3 R M EE 1(u) WEFTBUR -

The Key Audit Matter
ERETEIE

The Group’s revenue is principally generated from

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ESt A EEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue

sales of food and beverages to a large number of from sales to distributors and retailers included the

distributors and retailers. following:

100

BEEENRAZERRARZ S HBNTEHHE

AL O Py ==
Ean /X BAmn °

Revenue from sales to distributors and retailers is
recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the Group’s food and beverage
products, which generally occurs when the products
are delivered to the location designated by the
customers.
REDHBNSZERHEENBAETEFBEERE
¥ BEfENRGRUmERSER E—REE
MAEEEFIEEMIREE o

There are a large number of individual sales
transactions each year which increase the risk of
errors arising in the recognition of revenue.
EEESFRERENERNHEERS  BEEMTI
AR HIRERA A ©

HABFEERERRE D BN TERHENRANE

SIRFEEUTRE

- assessing the design, implementation and operating

effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
over revenue recognition;

- FMEEEERBEWARIWERAIEH R - Bit

RETERMK

- inspecting sales contracts with distributors and retailers,

on a sample basis, to understand the trade terms agreed
with individual customers and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

- REAEEREHSHEBHNZERRITNHEESRE - U
T REFERNEFNENRSRR  XBERTEFE
BIWRETE SEENRAERBEE ;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZHERE

Key audit matters (continued)

FARETEE ;)

The Key Audit Matter
EREETEIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMMES WA EEZEE

We identified the recognition of revenue from
sales to distributors and retailers as a key audit
matter because the revenue generated therefrom
accounts for the majority of the Group’s revenue and
involves large number of individual sales contracts
and because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which increases the risk of
misstatement of the timing and amount of revenue
recognised by management to achieve specific
performance targets or expectations.
RPEEIARBD BN TERHEENWATIRE
REGEE RAHELENBRAML BE£ERAN
BAREDESRAEMEFIHEESR » BREERI
AR BEEENHP-HBEREIER  SEMT
EEEABRBTXEEENERMERBEIBA
Rt M S REER ©

- comparing, on a sample basis, sales transactions

recorded during the financial reporting period with the
corresponding goods delivery notes, which contained
evidence of acknowledgement of the customers’ receipt
of the goods, and assessing if the related revenue was
properly recognised in accordance with the trade terms
set out in the respective sales contracts;

- BEAEEL R BHREPEARENHER S EAE

MBEE  2EESARTFEARIEMNER - 71
HEBEBARESEREBENHESEPAENRZ S F

Ehmas -
EAEEW%J\ ’

- assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific revenue

transactions recorded around the end of the financial
reporting period had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period by inspecting the trade terms agreed
with the individual customers and the delivery status of
the relevant products;

- BEAEEZBRERER TP HE 2R S RRAR

MEBAE M YR AT IRAE - ST FE B 75 s B A8 R AT 1R RC 8%
HNEEWARZ RECEBEENM BRI RHES

- identifying significant credit notes issued and sales

returns from the sales ledger subsequent to the financial
reporting period and by making enquiries of management
and inspecting relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue had been accounted for in
the appropriate financial period in accordance with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
and

- BRI BBREPRNESRAMNCHACERNETEMN

HERE - IEB M EERE R RE RIS URT
EHBUARBERRBETETEANRENEENY
BB R

- inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue

during the reporting period, enquiring of management
about the reasons for such adjustments and comparing
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.

- REPBREHNAHBAFENERFBRAE - EE

BEABBEAREAEH R LR RIS -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZHERE

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the

consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZHERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

BB E T AR S MR AR
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RANEE  EHGRAMBRRERRETHE
MR R R E RN EA SRR AR
R LHABERPERORBFRS - R
RRBES (RAKH) FASHENRE - ED
BRAEHE - RIS RPWEERTAME
H{AR - RIVEFHRARENRNE - HEAR
foA+BERFRERES -

BERABESKTHRE  EFERBER(E
BB ETHEN AR -EXRERRIL
FIER AR o SHERMRAL ] LU BRFF S 8RR 5
£ MREEEHCMERFIELERTELE
ARE MR B R I ISR R FTE R
RE - BIBBNERBUA T IRREER -

ERE(EBETER) ETETNBES &
FIERTEXHE - RI5TERREREE - R
IR

o  EAIMFAEENKFRERMERGZSY
BHRERFEERERFAVEAR - RFTR
HITETREFUREELAR  URER
ZRAMBEENETRR  FRAEMEEN
Bt - HREFARESREHR AL &
BER - ERERL - SURERARRES 2
o B RERRERFMERMNEAE
RELHERSRRERREHERMER
Y R EE SRR ALY LB

o THREFITABERAIES - RFEE

METEF BENLFYE SEERE
EHNBRMEBRER -

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &

103



104

Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZHERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZHERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resultingin this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Tai Cheong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17th June 2021

R AT BT 4R S I I SRR AR IE
HET @

BREMBEN  RMRELEESEBETHEN
FiTHE - BEZH  EXETHRS . @8FFK
FIfEERT PRl AR B B (T B A ERFG ©

RMENERZESRIER  HBPRMEFS
BB MNEREREREER - WRMIESE
BARESEMKRASERMB I ENERR
BMEMEBEER - UREEANVERT - HETE
FRERER B SRAF HRH %6 o

REFERZEESSBENSIET  HMREHLSE
EHARGEVBBRNEARAHEE  EMBE
FEASRERTEIE - RPIERBE RS P HIEL
BI1E - BRIEERERT AT AMMEELSE
FEBHRERNERT - MREBABPERMEK
EHERRSHENNAHRARBBEELND
TR RFIRETEERETBEZSE °

HEARBILBERENETEESBAREK
=

SRR HAEHH
BB AT
EBE

AT 5

KT REE
—E-—FxAttA

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &

105



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBmK

For the year ended 31st March2021 H#E=—E-_—F=A=+—HILtEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

2021 2020
—E—fF —E-TF
Note FffzE $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Revenue 3 7,519,817 7,232,641
WA
Cost of sales (3,565,412) (3,381,150)
Gross profit 3,954,405 3,851,491
EF
Other income 4 121,800 43,780
HAebg A
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (2,114,530) (2,112,457)
Administrative expenses (723,003) (716,880)
THER
Other operating expenses 5(c) (395,201) (358,501)
HihilE &M
Profit from operations 843,471 707,433
S
Finance costs 5(a) (11,770) (10,932)
Share of losses of joint venture (22,242) (17,433)
it & E N REE
Impairment loss on interest in joint venture 15(ii) (42,800) -
SENTER ZBEEER
Profit before taxation 5 766,659 679,068
BRBL AT F
Income tax 6(a) (177,151) (109,477)
FriSH
Profit for the year 589,508 569,591
REFEEmA

106 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 ftb 43 EIK: = B AR A =)



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meBER

For the yearended 31stMarch2021 B#Z-_ZE_—F=A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

2021 2020
—E—fF —E-TF
Note FffzE $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Attributable to:
TH AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company 548,346 535,878
ARATREFEA
Non-controlling interests 41,162 33,713
R
Profit for the year 589,508 569,591
A F A
Earnings per share 10
SREF
Basic 51.5 Cents 1l 50.4 Cents{ll
B
Diluted 51.0 Cents 49.9 Centsfl
s

The notes on pages 116 to 239 form part of these financial %116 Z 239 B2 M DR Rz 2 — 3015 ©

statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the BBEREERNTENSTFAIAAREZFEAZR

Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note BEFBERMIEE 25 (b) ©
25(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBakHMEEKEE

For the year ended 31st March2021 H#E=—E-_—F=A=+—HILtEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
Note FfizF $000 F 7t $000 F 7t
Profit for the year 589,508 569,591
R R F
Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax) 9

FEERMEEKE (BRBRE)

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
HEfaRENs BEBm2EAE @
Remeasurement of employee retirement benefit
liabilities 22,177 (9,651)
EERKEFEBEZEMNTE
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
HETRRENIBEERBZEE !
Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements of subsidiaries and joint venture outside
Hong Kong 246,978 (189,549)
HBREFBUIIMERB AR REE QAR ZMEREM
EEZERER
Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve 862 (289)
RERSH T | $hHEFEH

Total comprehensive income for the year 859,525 370,102
AEEREBRERE

Attributable to:

TH AL :

Equity shareholders of the Company 776,967 367,448
RATREFEA

Non-controlling interests 82,558 2,654
IR S

Total comprehensive income for the year 859,525 370,102
AEELHINEETE

The notes on pages 116 to 239 form part of these financial F 116 239 B2 MEE DA BTk 2 — 015 ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M EARR R

At31stMarch 2021 A=ZE=—&F=A=+—8
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

Note F{zE

$'000 Tt

2021
—E-—F
$'000 ¥t

2020
—EC-E

$'000 F 7t $'000 T 7t

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment

M - BERRE

- Investment properties
-REWE

- Right-of-use assets

- EREEE

- Other property, plant and equipment

- HAts - MR RRE

Deposits for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

BEWX BEERREZTE

Intangible assets
BEERE

Goodwill

L

Interest in joint venture
BENRZER
Deferred tax assets
BEBIHEE

Current assets

REEE

Inventories

(A

Trade and other receivables
FE U BR R % EL At FE UK
Current tax recoverable

FE W3R AR 18

Cash and bank deposits
RERRTEX

11(a)

11(f)

12

13

15

24(b)

16

17

24(a)

18(a)

3,376

351,797

3,787,545

4,142,718

2,404

3,697

18,352

139,489

4,306,660

725,526

1,194,108

79,594

970,522

2,969,750

3,502
385,580
3,322,923

3,712,005

548
3,810
17,251
62,026
97,653

3,893,293

593,559
1,008,871
66,497
848,275

2,517,202
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBIRR R

At31stMarch2021 A=ZE=—F=A=+—8
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

2021 2020
et —E-ETF
Note i &E $'000 F T $'000 F 7t $'000 7t $'000 7t
Current liabilities
REBEE
Trade and other payables 19 2,819,336 2,357,839
FEATBR TR R H Ath FEAS TR
Bank loans 20 130,306 241,424
BITEM
Lease liabilities 21 93,582 89,957
HEE&E
Current tax payable 24(a) 40,750 13,776
FEFIRHABIE -
3,083,974 2,702,996
Net current liabilities (114224) (185,794)
ERBAMS
Total assets less current liabilities 4,192,436 3,707,499
HEERRBEE
Non-current liabilities
FERBEE
Lease liabilities 21 111,853 153,617
HEESE
Employee retirement benefit liabilities 22(b) 7,461 34,313
EERNEFEE
Deferred tax liabilities 24(b) 116,248 101,465
BEREBESE
235,562 289,395
NET ASSETS 3,956,874 3,418,104
FEE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBIRR R

At31stMarch2021 A=ZE=—F=A=+—8
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

2021

—E-—F
Note izt $'000 ¥t $'000 7T

2020
— i
$000 Tt $'000 F 7t

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

BARKf#iE

Share capital

SIS

Reserves

&t

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

AARBREREABLERBRE

Non-controlling interests

IR R

TOTAL EQUITY

R

25(c)

984,030

2,632,023

3,616,053

340,821

3,956,874

939,328

2,189,062

3,128,390

289,714

3,418,104

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

17th June 2021.

Winston Yau-lai LO
ERE
Director

EZ

The notes on pages 116 to 239 form part of these financial

statements.

REBZ-—FXA+LEEESSHAELRESR

7 o

Roberto GUIDETTI

FEEE
Director

EF

£ 116 £ 239 B2 MEETI AP Bz 2 —2B1D °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERSEX

For the yearended 31stMarch2021 BEZ—ZE_—F=A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAARREEARE
Share-based
compensation Non-
Share Capital Surplus Other General Hedging  Exchange reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  RGER profits Total interests equity
ke ExGh  BRRE  HEEBE R WNEE  ENRE  RERE  REEA B HERER  RREE
(note (note (note (note (note (note (note
B0 25 250 25 50 250w 25(d)
(W25l (W2 (W2 (HE2s() (WEE2sd (WS (&)

(i) fi) f) (i) (i) v) (vi)
NoteMif  $000F7  $000F7  §000Fx  $000fx  §000Fxm  $000Fxm  $000Fn  $000Fm  §000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000FR

Balance at Zst April 2019 898,961 35,176 85,910 (48242) 2261 49 (62,726) 3824 2209557 3159603 04131 3463734
R=Z-NEMA-REH
Changes in equity for the year:
AEE RRET

Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 535878 535878 3713 569,591
REERA

Qther comprehensive income 9 - - - - - (535 (158,244) - (9651)  (168430) (31,059)  (199.489)
A2 EkE
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (535) (158,244 - 526,227 367448 2,654 370,102

A

Transfer from retained profits to

surplus reserve - - 29369 - - - - - (29.369) - - -
BREEFER2RARE
Transfer from capital reserve to

retained profits 25(d)fi) - (1.218) - - - - - - 1218 - - -
REARAERZRDEA
Sharesissued on exercise of share

options 25(c)i) 40367 - - - - - - (7,109) - 33258 - 33258
ATERRERR IR
Equity settled share-based

transactions - - - - - - - 12,686 - 12686 - 12,686
NRBANHER RS
Final dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 25(o)(ii) - - - - - - - - (do4181)  (do4181) - (404181)
HEBR L-FEZRBRE
Interim dividend declaredin

respect of the current year 25()(i) - - - - - - - - (d0424) (40424) - (40424)
EREEZHHRE
Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests - - - - - - - - - - (37.659) (37.659)
O ERERTERE
Capital contribution froma

non-controllinginterest 29 - - - - - - - - - - 205588 20,588
REFERER TS
Balance at 315t March 2020 939328 33,958 115279 (48242) 2261 (43 (220970) 43791 226308 3128390 289714 3418104
E@Zg:giiﬁi‘f—ﬁﬁ;ﬁ

The notes on pages 116 to 239 form part of these financial F 116 2239 B 2T AR Rk 2 — &b o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the yearended 31stMarch2021 BEZ—ZE_-_—F=A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ROARREEARE
Share-based
compensation Non-
Share Capital Surplus Other General ~ Hedging  Exchange reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve  RAHEE profits Total interests equity
ke EaRh  BREE bR -RER  MNEE ENRE  RERE  REEA A HERER  EREE
(note (note (note (note (note (note (note
) 25 25 25 50 25 25(d)i)
(W25l (WEE2sl)  (WaE2sl)  (WE25() (W& (WSl (W&E2s(d)

fih (i) (i) (i) (iv) (V) (vi)
NoteMif  §000F7n $000F7  $000F%  $000Fxm §000Fm $000Fm  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  §000Fm  $000F7

Balance at 31st March 2020 and
Lt April 2020 939,328 33,958 115279 (48.242) 2261 (43 (220970) 43791 2263028 3128390 209714 3418104
RZEZEZR=T-RR
“E-BEMA-REH
Changes in equity for the year:
REEVRRRE
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 548,346 548,346 41,162 589,508
REERA
Other comprehensive income 9 - - - - - 1,107 205,337 - 217 208621 4139 270017
Efp2 Ak
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 1,107 205,337 - 570,523 776967 82,558 859,525
A e
Transfer from retained profits to
surplus reserve - - 17,847 - - - -
BRERHERZRURRE
Transfer from capital reserve to
retained profits 25(d)6i) - (1.218) - - - - - - 1218
REARBEREREEA
Shares isstied on exercise of share
options 25(c)i) 44702 - - - - - - (6671) - 38,031 - 38,031
ATERREMETRG
Transfer from share-based
compensation reserve to
retained profits - - - - - - - (437) 437
ARAERRERAERE
RERA
Equity settled share-based
transactions - - - - - - - 15455 - 15455 - 15,455
HRABRTER RS
Final dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 25(b)ii) - - - - - - - - (302325 (302,325) - (302,329)
HEBRL-EEZRERE

Interim dividend declaredin

(17.847)

respect of the current year 25(0)(i) - - - - - - - - (40,465) (40,465) - (40,465)
EAEEZAHRE

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests - - - - - - - - - - (31451) (31451)
EFERERTERS

Balance at 315t March 2021 984,030 0 133126 (48,242) 2261 1,064 (15,633) 5138 2474569 3616053 340821 3956874

H-$=-25=t-AgH

The notes on pages 116 to 239 form part of these financial % 116 239 E 2 Mz DAB ik 2 — 310 ©
statements.

Annual Report 2020/2021 £ E®E 113



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

A= IE:%/)ILE%E

For the year ended 31st March 2021 HE=-Z=—
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

Note F{zE

$'000 T 7T

F=R=+—HLEFE

2021
—E-—F
$'000 7t

2020
_— 7 _— 7 $
$'000 T 7t $'000 T 7t

Operating activities

REED

Cash generated from operations

REXBMBRE

Tax paid:

EHBIE ¢

- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

- EHEBRBHR

- Tax paid outside Hong Kong

- BB B UM ERIE

Net cash generated from operating
activities

REFHRERLFR

Investing activities

REEH

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

BEYX BERSKZHEZX

Proceeds from sale of property, plant
and equipment

HEMZ - BERRHFHMEIIE

Government grants received for
acquisition of plant and equipment

WEB R B & 31 2 B WIS B BY

New loan to joint venture

mEE N RELEZHTER

Interest received

EWFE

Payment for the acquisition of
pollution discharge right

BEH TR ZMIA

Net cash used in investing activities

REEB AR S FHE

18(b)

11(a)

1,448,019

(8,795)

(179,458)

1,259,766

(649,581)

1,550

6,460

5,160

(286)

(636,697)

1,428,707

(38,589)

(130,340)

1,259,778

(1,078,390)

4,333

22,071

(19,053)

10,919

(1,157)

(1,061,277)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SERERER

For the year ended 31st March 2021 H#E—E=-—F=A=+—HILtFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

2021
—E-—F
Note ff&E $'000 ¥t $'000 ¥t

2020
— ? —= qi
$000 Tt $000 F 7T

Financing activities

RMEEE

Proceeds from new bank loans 18(c) 149,112
FIERITERFIBRIE

Repayment of bank loans 18(c) (273,577)
BERITER

Capital element of lease rentals paid 18(c) (80,169)
2fHEHEE 2 &AM

Interest element of lease rentals paid 18(c) (8,137)
2 HEERS 2 FE B

Interest paid 18(c) (3,633)
2RFIE

Proceeds from shares issued on

exercise of share options 25(c)(ii) 38,031
BATEBIRERITIRG SRR
Capital contribution from a

non-controlling interest 29 -
REFZERERZFE
Dividends paid to equity shareholders

of the Company (342,585)
EARABREREARERE

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests (31,451)
O ERERIKERE
Net cash used in financing activities (552,409)
RMEFEFARSFEE
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents 70,660
ReRRSSEEFEREM (L)

FRE
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April 847,809

RUA-—BZRERAEEEEAE

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes 51,557
Exgm o8

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st
March 18(a) 970,026
R=B=+—HzHERREEEHIER

279,981
(75,134)
(81,947)
(8,599)
(2,333)
33,258
20,588
(444,451)
(37,659)
(316,296)
(117,795)
1,004,538
(38,934)
847,809

The notes on pages 116 to 239 form part of these financial E 116 £ 239 B 2 MT AR iRk 2 — &b o

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 3% SR 2R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective termincludes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in a joint
venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that derivative
financial instruments are stated at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out in note 1(t).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

1 FESFBER

(a) BHIEH

AU BEBREBRBAEEAZ(EBUKERELE
A s BB LRSS REAREBR (QRRAED 2R
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SHMASEM2MEERA @R (EBYHR
L£EA)  (BRAGER) REE - AFHHRRK
TAEERBBERBBRAGES LHAL
(TEMRAL) 2EBRABEERE - XEBRH 2
FESTTEER T HE -

BERSMASCHEME THIRKEBITZ(E
BUBREER)  IRAEBRAKRQREZER
SEIHBERERHAHERRA - BRERAL
EEARAEE 2T E RS BRE R RBE
ST B2 EAETRRE BRI BEREA
AR - BRAERERMEE 1(c) °

(b) MBEHmTRZEHEEE
BE-_Z-_—F=A=+—HLEEFEEZHEHHK
BREBEAATREMBAR (FKBIAREE])
URAEER—EEE DT 2 e -

BRMEE 1) TSt RREER 2 TE SR T AR
DAEEN  ERUBHRRERUBELRAEES

HHEEE

EEERAEHRRTS(EBYBRSER) 28
BHRREFFHELESTEHRER  UREE -
BE - WARZHZHRESE 2 HE - At RR
& o WEMTRABRREREATERNEE
EERERERAHSE 2 ZRHAMEAREL -
HERBHEEEREEERARMBRTHNRS
MEEHREBZRAERELAE 2B - 8
BRAER A RE A B AT B -



Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

None of these amendments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior
periods or on how they have been prepared or presented in these
financial statements. The Group has not applied any new standard
orinterpretationthatis notyeteffective for the current accounting
period except for the amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions, which provides a practical expedient that
allows lessees not to assess whether particular rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
(“COVID-19-related rent concessions”) are lease modifications
and, instead, account for those rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications.

The Group has elected for early adoption of the amendments
and to apply the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-
related rent concessions granted to the Group during the year.
Consequently, rent concessions received have been accounted
for as negative variable lease payments recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurred. There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1st April 2020.

1 FESHEE @
(b) BB EBmRZEEELE @)

EEESTHEMSRETTNEBRE - HES
T2 BT R B R - - ARETREE
fEEHERT A R - AN RIERT HE M AR R
HEYAERE  AEFERERT 2 BBAMARYE

FHEEERERB(ERBUBRELD) KATfE
HEMBHMRBEALE 2 G LUK fhET T8
ERZEZETERFZARAR » BRHEE2 -

() BtRXZEH
EEGMAGEM T ZE(HEUBREER)
53T » BRAEEEA G EREN -

BEEMETHAREREZ S BHRERARAER
SIAKERAHNERBERE 2 AR AR
M2 HRERERTE - AEEIUHEEM AR
et HBER AT ERSRRE - (T
BMBIRELER) 5 1658 [ 2019 TR HE G
B EHE ] ZERTRN - ZEARETITEES
% RFRFEBEARFEEEE 2019 BRBER
EEMEE S EREER ([2019 BREEH
HEREERRE]) EEREERE  MESZRS
HERRARFEERARRKERE

FEECERERERMZSZETT  LHATEE
FHEERARASERFARNZMBESERN
2019 BMRFESHEEESRER - At - HEER
ERBEZENRZ2BHRBERBEPE zBRE

THRIARBENTEHECK - ZBTH-Z=
SEMA-RAZHFERARTELE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Aninvestmentinasubsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controllinginterests inthe results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(n) or (o) depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
adisposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

Lk)(ii)).

1 FESHEE @
(d) MBATKRFZRER &

FERBBERSMBRRR 2EEIRDR - &
ARTRRESEABGEZ ORI o SFZRE
B AEBRBERRETREBEERRGEEE
mRHEMEERERES - DERAFEZRG
NIBEREZE RS EENFERERERQF
REFBAZEZOR - FERERFBEAZE
REZERBACHMESNEENRZEREZ
MERBMHEE 1) (o) EREMBRRKREN B
TREE-

AEEFEHRAEHEZHBARDERZH TS
LI AR BRABBREGSERNZER
RFERESSHEURRBERERZE - 18

EREEEAEMBAR 2 ZHE  SiREEZ
MEBARIZFE#ERAR MAELEZRERE
WIER o (MR RIEFIEE B (HRE 2 &A1k
BARZERNIEAABERR  MESEEREA
VpEREeMEEZALE X (WMEA) A
BRARBEEQATREE DT ZREZHAE (R
#E1(e) °

AR ZHBRRRARRHBRAR ZRE =
BRANMERERERBER AR (RHEE 1K)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Jointventure

Ajoint ventureis an arrangement whereby the Group or Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and haverights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). The cost of the investment includes purchase price, other
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the joint venture that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see notes 1(f) and (k)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Joint venture (Continued)

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in
an associate or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

(f) Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 50 years.

The useful life of investment properties is reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1(u)(iii).

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)):

Freehold land and buildings;

- Interests in leasehold land and building where the Group is
the registered owner of the property interest (see note 1(j));

- Right-of use assets arising from leases over freehold or
leasehold properties where the Group is not the registered
owner of the property interest; and

- Other items of plant and equipment including right-of-use

assets arising from leases of underlying plant and equipment
(see note 1(j)).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Depreciationis calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 25 years.

- Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated

useful lives, being no more than 50 years.

- Other plant and equipment:

Factory machinery and equipment 4 - 25 years
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 3-12years
Motor vehicles 4 - 10years
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)
No provision for depreciation is made for construction in progress
until such time when the assets are substantially completed and
ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Brand name 20 years
- Customer list 7 years
- Pollution discharge right 5years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(h)
and 1(k)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  Asalessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a
change arising from the reassessment of whether the Group
will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in
the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease modification”)
that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease termusing arevised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16 Leases. In such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised
the change in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with note 1(u)(iii).

(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and loan to
joint venture).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Where the effect of discounting is material, the expected cash
shortfalls are discounted using the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation thereof for
trade and other receivables.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables is always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. ECLs are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments (Continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill,
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
and investment properties;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill;
- interest in joint venture; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1
(k)
(ii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Credit loss and impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assetsinthe unit (or group of units) on a pro ratabasis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.

() Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Costis calculated using thefirst-in, first-out method and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(k)(i)).

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

(o) Payables and contract liabilities

(i)  Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(i) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note
1(m)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(k)

(i).

(q) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-

monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated

services are rendered by employees. Where payment or

settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement
plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculationis performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (Continued)
Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in profit and loss
and allocated by function as part of “cost of sales”, “marketing,
selling and distribution expenses”, “administrative expenses” or
“other operating expenses”. Current service cost is measured as
the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period. When
the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed,
the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised
as an expense in profit and loss at the earlier of when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costsorterminationbenefitsarerecognised.Netinterest expense/
(income) for the period is determined by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset). The
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans
are recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected
immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Long service payments obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group'’s retirement plans that
are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The discount
rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligation. The obligation is calculated by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

(iv) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1

(r)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate toitems recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Currenttaxistheexpectedtaxpayableonthetaxableincome
for theyear, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1
(r)
(iii)

(iv)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax (Continued)

(v) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Cashflow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency
risk of a committed future transaction, the effective portion of
any gains or losses on re-measurement of the derivative financial
instrument to fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedginginstrument is anon-derivative monetary item, which
is permitted only for foreign currency risk, then the effective
portion of the foreign currency gains or losses on the hedging
instrument also are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any foreign currency gains or losses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss reclassified from equity is to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset
or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of afinancial asset or afinancial liability, the associated
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability
assumed affects profit or loss (such as when interest income or
expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
until the transaction occurs and itis recognised in accordance with
the above policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected
to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others
of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group
is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products are a partial fulfilment of a
contract covering other goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated between all the
goods and services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

(ii)  Service fees
Servicefeesarerecognisedwhentherelatedservicesare provided.
Service fees exclude value added tax or other sales taxes.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see note 1(Kk)(i)).

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss, except those non-derivative monetary items used
to hedge foreign currency risk which are recognised in other
comprehensive income (see note 1(t)).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical costinaforeign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(v) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items
that in substance form part of the net investment in an operation
outside Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified
to equity on consolidation.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing cost as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

(x) Repair and maintenance expenditure

Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost of overhaul,
is expensed as incurred.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

1 FESHBEK @

(v) IMEEIRE (@)
EBLMEZHEARZ EEUEARSEE
TEZRERBY MUBRRREE (BEE
BUNMBEZHBAAGAARERELZH
£2) BIRERB R ERRE B AT
BEECEREZEREMEERETED  ERE
R R RE Y Rt o

FRHEFBUIIME 2 —BHBARMS @ %R
HEEE2ERE  HZFRUIMEZHEA
AEBCEAEH R SHENEREN I E

ER&

EWBEEEEZNEREREE (EEBRER
LAohth (& EH B IRE 2 — ) EEIMEREK A
DREEAREEN D B2 -

(w) fEERA

i —BEEFRREET I EENERERER
BRHERE  IEREBREE  RERLEE
ZREEZEERTBRENMBRAEEZK
Rz =8  HtEERFEELEEMIIES
4o

EEEMXREERACKEL BAFEER
FfESEE RS AT H EMRE P S E 2 EEC AR
o BERANERMCAZEEREEZHAZ
—#H - MAESEREET BERERBRRT
HERETLTFZABIEBFIEHTH - BE
AN 2 BAML RIBEZ R IESAFLE -

(x) HEERFEEXL
BERREIE (BIERIEHAR) REEREH -



Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(y) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person,or aclose member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
Notes 13,15,22and 23 containinformationabout the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment assessment,
interest in joint venture impairment assessment, defined benefit
retirement liabilities and the fair value of share options granted.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates

(Continued)

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. Under HKAS
36, these assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume, selling prices and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount. However, actual sales volumes, selling prices
and operating costs may be different from assumptions which may
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets
affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 11.

(b) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
canonly be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
benefits can be utilised, management’s judgements is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. Details
of the nature and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are
disclosed in note 24(b).

2 EEHE R @

(a) "%  BERRERE

B ERBERIE - MEKRREZREETEE
ERE - BZEEEAREAS[CRE]
BEEETHEESRE(EBETER) F36R £
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale
of food and beverages.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of
returns, rebates and discounts.

No disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is
presented as the entire revenue of the Group is derived from the
manufacture and sale of food and beverages, and is recognised at
pointin time.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are organised
geographically. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

- The Mainland China business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soya milk, tea, juice, etc. in Mainland
China;

- The Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)
mainly represents the manufacture and sale of soya milk,
tea, water, juice, tofu, etc. in Hong Kong, sale of beverages
in Macau, export of beverages from Hong Kong and the
operating of tuck shops and catering businesses;

- The Australia and New Zealand business mainly represents
the manufacture and sale of soya milk and other plant milk
products in Australia and sale of beverages in New Zealand;
and

- The Singapore business mainly represents the manufacture
and sale of soya related products in Singapore and sale of

soya related products in overseas.

All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interest in joint venture,
deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable, goodwill and
unallocated head office and corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors and bills payable attributable to the
manufacture and sales activities of the individual segments, bank
loans and lease liabilities managed directly by the segments and
current liabilities with the exception of employee retirement
benefit liabilities, deferred tax liabilities, current tax payable and
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit from
operations”. To arrive at “profit from operations”, the Group’s
profit is further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as finance costs, share of losses of
joint venture, impairment loss on interest in joint venture and
unallocated head office and corporate expenses. Income tax is not
allocated to reporting segments. Inter-segment sales are priced at
cost plus a profit margin.

3 WA&“%%%@)

(b) PEBHRE (@)
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B RAR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

set out below:

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31st March 2021 and 2020 is

3 WAKRDH
(b)

Rk (@)

DEBERE (&)

(i) DEBFAE BEREE (M)

BEZZE-—FRkZ
- SHEAEES
REER D ERIAFT
T :

E-TF=A=+-ALF
BETHREEASRMCE
2 ARED BDEREIIW

Mainland China Hong Kong Operation ~ Australia and New Zealand Singapore Total
HER ERER BNRATER EpiIL At
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEC--F CECEE O ZBC-F CBCRF CB--F CECEF CEC-F CECEF ZBC-F CECOER
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(5) (E5) (E51)
$000Fx $000Fx $000Fm $000Frm $000Fx $000Fx $000Fm $000Fm $000Frm  $000F T
Revenue from external customers 5008000 4503502 10865452 2,108,176 528,022 502,322 118,343 118641 7519817 7232641
PPN E0ed ON
Inter-segment revenue 58,815 113411 30,133 73729 11,749 7,131 4255 4,160 104,952 198431
DEERA
Reportable segment revenue 5066815 4616913 1895585 2181905 539,771 509,453 122,598 122801  7,624769 7431072
BHEDB2UA
Reportable segment profit from
operations 524,401 475,543 354,792 269,357 67,999 76,857 3014 4,969 950,206 826,726
BREDR2LEER
Interest income from bank deposits 3967 5,931 1,190 4910 3 75 - 3 5,160 10,919
RAERZHNBMA
Finance costs (3,508) (1,374) (7,000) (7,731) (831) (1,393) (431) (434) (11,770) (10,932)
BERA
Depreciation and amortisation
for the year (278911)  (209,606)  (185381)  (169,160) (18,892) (19,246) (4,664) (4575)  (487,848)  (402,587)
REEZTEREHE
(Recognition)/reversal of impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment (23,176) - (12,653) 2409 - - - - (35,829) 2,409
(B2) /BENE  BERZE
ZREFE
Reportable segment assets 4430545 3954641 3578124 3,606,351 461,614 385,747 105,208 92077 8575491 8038816
RREN N EE
Reportable segment liabilities 2,750,636 2377121 820889 1,003,173 126,521 134077 29,611 27437 3727657 3541808
BREINEE
Additions to non-current segment assets
during the year 576,070 890,443 113446 224439 7,245 13721 5,285 2,350 702,046 1,130,953

REEHRHRD HEE
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g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

WARDEHRE (5
DEHE (@)

HOEKA - 1Bt  BEREBZ

2021 2020
—E-—F bt 223
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Revenue
LON
Reportable segment revenue 7,624,769 7,431,072
BHREDEZBA
Elimination of inter-segment revenue (104,952) (198,431)
D EBEUA 2 Hifi g
Consolidated revenue 7,519,817 7,232,641
FaWA
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEEF
(Restated)
(E31)
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Profit or loss
B
Reportable segment profit from operations 950,206 826,726
BERE DB 2 L&A
Finance costs (note 5(a)) (11,770) (10,932)
RE A (FfEE5(a))
Share of losses of joint venture (22,242) (17,433)
it & & R REE
Impairment loss on interest in joint venture (note 15(ii)) (42,800) -
BENRES 2 HERE (& 15(i)
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses (106,735) (119,293)
RAOMZBARREEER
Consolidated profit before taxation 766,659 679,068

AR BRBLATER]
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B RAR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or

3 WARDEHRE @

(b) DEHRE (@)

(i) BRIEEDEHURA - Bzt - BEREBEZ

loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) ¥1ER ()
2021 2020
=F=—F —F-FF
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Assets
BE
Reportable segment assets 8,575,491 8,038,816
BAREDE2ERE
Elimination of inter-segment receivables (1,544,815) (1,877,449)
pan-E LA e 6

7,030,676 6,161,367
Interest in joint venture - 62,026
BE ARz ER
Deferred tax assets 139,489 97,653
BEBEAE
Current tax recoverable 79,594 66,497
FE W IR BB I8
Goodwill 18,352 17,251
5k
Unallocated head office and corporate assets 8,299 5,701
ROBZBARRBEERE
Consolidated total assets 7,276,410 6,410,495

REREE
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B RAR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or

3 WARDEHRE @

(b) DEFHRE (@)

(i) BRIEEDEHURA - Bzt - BEREBEZ

loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) ¥1ER ()
2021 2020
—E-—F bt 223
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Liabilities
afE
Reportable segment liabilities 3,727,657 3,541,808
AMEDEZAE
Elimination of inter-segment payables (598,539) (723,869)
2 ERE A R 8
3,129,118 2,817,939
Employee retirement benefit liabilities 7,461 34,313
EERNEFNERE
Deferred tax liabilities 116,248 101,465
BEHBEE
Current tax payable 40,750 13,776
FEAT IR BB IE
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 25,959 24,898
KAMZBARARTEERE
Consolidated total liabilities 3,319,536 2,992,391

meRas
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g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographic
location of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, deposits
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, goodwill and interest in joint venture (“specified non-
current assets”). The geographic location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment and deposits for the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets and goodwill and the location of operations, in the case of
interest in joint venture.

3 WA&“%%%@)

(b) DEHRE (@)

(i) HEEF

T%ﬁﬂﬁ%$%l%¥ BERSEZHEY
CBEYY  BERREIIS BREE .

%ﬁ&#ééﬂﬁzgﬁuﬁi#mﬁéﬁn

TEH - BYL BEREERBEVL  BE

REFCTEME  BEXRDEEZWELE

TREZEE S BRI BEE  RENEERE

B EASHERE Y LK RRAEA

B2 AT S QS A AT o

Specified non-current assets

HEFRBEE
2021 2020
—B-—-F —ERIEF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Mainland China 3,035,778 2,555,279
FEIRt
Hong Kong Operation 830,984 919,497
Australia and New Zealand 241,411 203,971
BN R FFEER
Singapore 58,998 54,867
N
Other country - 62,026
HAhEIR
4,167,171 3,795,640

The revenue from external customers and specified non-current
assets of the Group attributed to Hong Kong, the Group’s place
of domicile,amounted to $1,601,851,000 (2020: $1,804,685,000)
and $825,014,000 (2020: $912,586,000) respectively.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

4 Otherincome 4 HWA
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ERCERF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Government grants (Note) 73,912 13,303
BB (FaE)
COVID-19-related rent concessions 20,902 -
2019 BikimSRREEE S B
Interest income from bank deposits 5,160 10,919
IRITIFRZFEWA
Interest income from loan to joint venture 2,628 1,644
maE A REHERZAERA
Rental income 4,034 3,885
WA
Scrap sales 2,893 3,150
Reversal of long outstanding other payables 1,168 2,534
REREEEMENREE
Sundry income 11,103 8,345
HMIEWA
121,800 43,780
Note: MieE

During the year, government grants included COVID-19 financial assistance RER - BUTHEBIERE 2019 Bl mSHEmESTER -
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Singapore and amounted to $63,483,000 ERRIME NI T5E BN 63,483,000 (ZE-FF :
(2020: $1,406,000). 1,406,000 7T) °

Government grants also include value-added tax refunded and other financial BRHEUAEEREARRENE ([FE]) BUFREZG
assistance received from the government of the People’s Republic of China EREREBBMzEMIEEN RBEVE BRER
(“PRC”). Other government grants received in relation to the acquisition of REBW Rz MBS HEIC HEREEE Z A AR (M
property, plant and equipment were netted off against the cost of the related 11(a)) °

assets (note 11(a)).

5 BRBIAIRA
BERDEREINR GEA) :

5 Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECERF
$’000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
(a) Finance costs:
BN
Interest on bank loans (note 18(c)) 3,633 2,333
RITERZFIE (HiE 18(c)
Interest on lease liabilities (note 18(c)) 8,137 8,599
HEEEZFIE (FEE 18(c))
11,770 10,932
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g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

5 Profit before taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(Continued)

5 PBREBDER (@)
BBARFIEG S (BA) -

(&

2021 2020
—B-—F —ERIEF
$’000 F 7t $'000 F T
(b)  Staff costs:
BT :
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 76,809 92,819
REMFEMRET B2 MK
Net expenses recognised in respect of:
UTHEAZOBRE R T
- retirement gratuites (note 22(c)(v)) 3,362 3,486
-RIRE (FIEE22(c)(v)
- long service payments 958 373
-REBRESE
Total retirement costs 81,129 96,678
HIR KRB AR
Equity settled share-based payment expenses (note 23) 15,455 12,686
DR AARER2ER (MiE23)
Salaries, wages and other benefits 1,534,144 1,548,840
e ITERHMER
1,630,728 1,658,204
2021 2020
—B-—-F —ECEF
$'000 Tt $'000 F T
(c)  Other operating expenses:
HinSE B -
Staff costs 136,125 138,723
BT
Warehouse expenses 63,635 63,451
BEEEAR
Sundry tax in Mainland China 45,863 39,204
FP B Py 3t 9 EL At B 18
Management fee charged by a related party 33,354 31,692
BT W E RS
Royalty withholding tax 20,800 19,186
SRR AERS
Quality assurance and sampling expenses 15,709 13,047
BEREFERELTER
Repair and maintenance expenses 6,808 5,916
HERREER
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 18(b)) 5,957 3,689
HEYE BMERZBEZEEFEE (M5 18(b)
Recognition/(reversal) of impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment 35,829 (2,409)
®’R 7 (BE) Y% - BERREZBEEE
Others 31,121 46,002
Hith
395,201 358,501
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

5 Profit before taxation (continued) 5 BR¥ADGEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRELADRFIS R (BT A) & (&)
(Continued)

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECERF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
(d) Otheritems:
Hibigg :
Government grants (Note) (235,382) (23,099)
BB (PiEE)
COVID-19-related rent concessions (25,438) -
2019 Bk S HEBEEESER
Amortisation of intangible assets 658 546
B EE 2
Depreciation and amortisation
EREHE
- Investment properties 126 126
-REYE
- Right-of-use assets 103,391 90,998
-ERAEEE
- Other assets 383,673 310,917
-HihEE
Recognition/(reversal) of impairment losses
®’R 7 (#E) FHEEsE
- Trade and other receivables 248 977
- FEUR BRI EL A FE WK
- Property, plant and equipment 35,829 (2,409)
- - BERRE
- Interest in joint venture (note 15(ii)) 42,800 -
-EE AT ZER (MEE 15(i)
Auditors’ remuneration
RS
- Audit services 5,935 5,699
- BRZBRT
- Tax services 234 540
- B AR 75
- Other services 177 3,225
- B AR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

5 Profit before taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(Continued)

5

BREADERIS MR (GEA) © (&

BB A ()

~

2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
(d) Otheritems: (Continued)
Hibigg : (&)
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities 11,778 27,181
Rt AHEEGTEZT#HEENR
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss (11,454) 148
HNE (zs) /5188
Cost of inventories (note 16(b)) 3,566,484 3,389,578

FERA (M 16(b)

Note: During the current year, government grants related to COVID-19
financial assistance in Mainland China, Hong Kong, and Singapore
amounted to $224,953,000 (2020: $11,202,000), of which $63,483,000
(2020: $1,406,000) was included in other income, $151,988,000 (2020:
$9,191,000) was netted off against staff costs and $9,482,000 (2020:
$605,000) was netted off against cost of sales and operating expenses.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

6 Income tax in the consolidated 6 HmEBBZRZMEH
statement of profit or loss
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) GREBERRZHBENT :
profit or loss represents:
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
$'000 Tt $'000 F T
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
BEBIE - BERNEH
Provision for the year 43,329 18,455
FREE
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (2,818) 5
DUEFEEr (ShEE) BERR
e 40511 18,460
Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
HHAFE - BEBUNMEE
Provision for the year 165,455 94,310
FREE
Under-provision in respect of prior years 1,000 9,607
DREFEZBETE
e e 16645 103,917
Deferred tax (29,815) (12,900)
IEIERITE
177,151 109,477
Notes: IR -
(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2021 is calculated at (i) —E - FEBANESHBBREFRAZMATER
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. BURFILL16.5% (—E-FF © 16.5%) 2B ETE

(i) In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws, (i) RIBHEBEPRECEMSTEAE EERERESIF

regulations and implementation guidance notes, the statutory income B o EERAARZREY - B - RE R
tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen, Foshan, EREPMB AR ZEEMEBES 25% °

Shanghai, Wuhan, Dongguan and Nansha is 25%.

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding tax at the applicable e REEERAEEPEIECEUR-ZE
rate of 5% on distribution of profits generated after 31st December tFE+ A=+ —HEEEZENELE 2R
2007 from the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. 5% EABEHMMENS - AEEEHUEREFE
Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in this regard based on HNECERTERARARES AR -_ZZTLF+-A
the expected dividends to be distributed from the foreign-invested S+ -HEBEEZENDRZBREFHIRIELESIEE
enterprises in the PRC in the foreseeable future in respect of the & e

profits generated after 31st December 2007.

(iii)  Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and Mainland China (i) BBRPEAMUNMEZMBLARZHERRE
is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the BRETEEER 2 RTERARETE -

relevant tax jurisdictions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

6 Income tax in the consolidated 6 HEBBRRZABH @
statement of profit or loss (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEXHESTENEUERAT R
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FTEZER
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
$'000 F 7t $'000 7t
Profit before taxation 766,659 679,068
B A A
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the
rates applicable to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 176,624 136,188
REMBIEREEREREAZFEB R ETERBANGER 2 BB HE
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 19,218 6,211
AR H 2 RIE &
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (29,320) (3,750)
IRBIUA 2 BIBHE
Withholding tax of the PRC subsidiaries 15,004 7,499
HEIM A Bl 2 TRIR IR
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 11,477 -

AERZARBABBER 2 HEE

Tax effect of recognition of tax loss and deductible temporary

differences not previously recognised (1,369) (21,443)
BREAAERZHBEER TRNTREE BB EE
Net (over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (1,818) 9,612
UAFEZ (8hBE) BETRFE
Tax credit on PRC Corporate Income Tax paid (13,339) (13,431)
EHPEREMEH 2 HIEK R
Others 674 (11,409)
Hith
Actual tax expense 177,151 109,477
BEHIER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

7 EEZME

RIBEE CRTRM) 5 383(1) 1R (AT (HE
EEFEER) RO F2BEBE2ESHE 0

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation T
are as follows:
2021
—E_-F
Salaries,
allowances Share-
and benefits Retirement based
Directors’ inkind Discretionary scheme payments
fees & EHR bonuses contributions Sub-total WA Total
ESHE BNRN  MERHZEA  RIGHEER gt EBAR gt
(Note)
(Rzt)
$000 Tt $000 Tt $000 ¥t $000 Tt $000 Tt $000 Tt $000 F 7t
Executive Directors
Hi7EE
Mr. Winston Yau-laiLO 308 6,408 3932 380 11,028 138 11,166
BRERE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 154 7405 3860 386 11,805 6,796 18,601
EEELE
Mr. Eugene LYE 154 2132 1,031 51 3,368 - 3,368
b Lalllyiy
Non-executive Directors
H#ilfEE
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO 175 - - - 175 - 175
BHERGT
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO 175 - - - 175 - 175
BERLE
Ms.May LO 19 - - - 196 - 196
BHELT
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHHTEE
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI 477 - - - 477 > 471
SEERL
Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND 463 - - - 463 - 463
JanPS.ERLUND 4
Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE 527 - - - 527 - 527
REERE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH 490 - - - 490 - 490
Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG 392 - - - 392 - 392
3511 15945 8,823 817 29,096 6,934 36,030
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g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors (continued) 7 EBEZME w

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIBEB CQARMEH) 55 383(N) 1R K (AT (HE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EEFRER) RO B2 EE2EEME W
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation T (&)

are as follows: (Continued)

2020
5288
Salaries,
allowances Share-
and benefits Retirement hased
Directors’ inkind Discretionary scheme payments
fees  H 2HR bonuses  contributions Sub-total DNSE! Total
ESHE ENEN  BERRZPL  RAGHEER NGt A @it
(Note)
(HizE)
$000F $000F 7 $000F 7 $000 Tt $000F $000F $000 1
Executive Directors
#7EF
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO 300 6,301 5051 369 12021 607 12628
BRERE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 150 7,362 4,955 382 12849 5618 18467
BEELE
Mr. Eugene LYE 150 2075 1,001 30 3,256 - 3,256
il
Non-executive Directors
FHEE
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO m - - - m - m
BHERGT
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO 157 - - - 157 - 157
BEREE
Ms.May LO 161 - - - 161 - 161
BHEMT

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTEE

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI 465 - - - 465 - 465
SEERL

Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND 452 = - = 452 = 452
JanPS.ERLUND &4

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE 464 - - - 464 - 464
REERE

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH 479 = = = 479 - 479
Paul Jeremy BROUGH £

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG 354 - - - 354 - 354

3,303 15,738 11,007 781 30829 6,225 37,054
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors (continued)

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
Directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(q)
(iv) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments
are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 23.

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2020:
two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2020:
three) individuals are as follows:

7 EEZEME @

MR © R A ER 2 ARIERBEA DA ZBRE AR
FESZBREZMGER LEBREZEED
RIEMIEE Lq)(iv) TN EEF AR D B ARER 2
RERAETHEME - MERZEE - 85
HBEFERTMARENRATAEREBAIC K
Rz B E SRR E 2 SRR o

HEEYEN2FHE (BFCRECBREZTE
HRRRBE) RESERE [BREE] —BRRH
FE23 IR o

8 mEMEAL

ERERSHEALS WE (CB-BF W
£) BEE  HEZMORHETPRE - 28
£ (SF-FE=8) ALZMEBENT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECERF
$'000 F 7t $'000 7t
Salaries and other emoluments 13,463 12,743
FEeRHEMME
Retirement scheme contributions 374 383
RIRET B
Discretionary bonuses 4,343 3,935
BBz EAL
Share-based payments 4,489 3,135
LURM RERE 24K
22,669 20,196
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EBEMEAL @
(Continued)
The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals with the =R (ZTEZF . =F) Bl ALz
highest emoluments are within the following bands: NFLUT AR
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
$5,500,001 to $6,000,000 - 1
5,500,001 JT £ 6,000,000 JT
$6,000,001 to $6,500,000 - -
6,000,001 JT ZE 6,500,000 JT
$6,500,001 to $7,000,000 1 1
6,500,001 T £ 7,000,000 JT
$7,000,001 to $7,500,000 - 1
7,000,001 JT £ 7,500,000 JT
$7,500,001 to $8,000,000 1 -
7,500,001 JT £ 8,000,000 JT
$8,000,001 to $8,500,000 1 -
8,000,001 JT £ 8,500,000 Jt
9 Other comprehensive income 9 HfhZmEUW=
(a) Taxeffects relating to each component of (a) EBEHEHMEZEKGES M 2HE
other comprehensive income: -7
2021 2020
=t =S ot L
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount credit amount

RhA 28 REER HRHEZE  HHAZE RBER IBHESR
$000 T ¢ $000 Tt $000 ¥ $000 ¥ 7 $000 ¥ $000 Tt

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of

subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong 246,978 - 246,978 (189,549) - (189,549)
RAEEBUMENBAARGE DN A B HRMEENE
Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve 1,131 (269) 862 (445) 156 (289)
REREHN  HHREFED
Remeasurement of employee retirement benefit liabilities 26,436 (4,259) 22177 (11,523) 1,872 (9,651)
EERNEREECENTE
274,545 (4,528) 270,017 (201,517) 2,028 (199,489)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

9 Other comprehensive income (continued)
(b) Components of other comprehensive income:

9 HitzmEWE @

(b) EfttZmEUEE 2B :

2021 2020
—B-—F —ERIEF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Cash flow hedges:
BenRat
Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments
recognised during the year 11,876 (11,706)
FARIZEFTAEAAEEB 2RI H
Amounts transferred to initial carrying amount of hedged items (10,745) 11,261
BREWTEESYREEZEHE
Net deferred tax (debited)/credited to other comprehensive income (269) 156
REM2EEE (NR) 5t A ZEEREFHE
Net movement in the hedging reserve during the year recognised
in other comprehensive income 862 (289)
FAREMEERRER P RE T2 E
10 Earnings per share 10 BREF

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$548,346,000 (2020: $535,878,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,064,602,000 ordinary shares (2020: 1,063,203,000

(a) BREXZR

%BQE$E$UE$E$F$"EHHE%EA
FE 15 & 548,346,000t ( = & = & £F:
535,878,000 7t) R FAC BITEBR 2 MEF
i’JHﬁ%Mo&aozoooEﬁ%zEHﬁ(_?_ F

ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows: 1,063,203,000 Ir @A) 5t&E » HEtEWOT ¢
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EiAERZINEFIGRE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECEF
Number of shares Number of shares
RHEE RHEE
'000 T A% ‘000 F A%
Issued ordinary shares at 1st ApriI 1,063,778 1,061,582
REUB—BZEBTER
Effect of share options exercised 824 1,621
BITEBRECTE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March
(note 10(b)) 1,064,602 1,063,203

R=B=1—H2EBRZIEFIRE (FE 10(b))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

10 Earnings per share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$548,346,000 (2020: $535,878,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,074,231,000 ordinary shares (2020: 1,074,530,000
ordinary shares) after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

10 SREF @)

(b) BREEZER
SREERADIRER D GRERE AL EF
548,346,000 7T (=& = F £ : 535,878,000 7T)
EKMFEABTEEERA ERR 2 FEMEL
FEEZ 2T B R MAEF IR E1,074,231,000 B
LTER (ZEZFF : 1,074,530,000 ;R EBER)
& HItEWT

=114 il

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) EERZINEFIRE (#5)
2021 2020
—E-—F bt 223
Number of shares Number of shares
R&HEE RHEE
'000 F A% '000 T %
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March
(note 10(a)) 1,064,602 1,063,203
REA=+—RZEBRZMEFIRE (M 10(a))
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under the Company’s
share option scheme for nil consideration 9,629 11,327
BHRABBEAAR ZBREAEINEEF B TEERZTE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31st March 1,074,231 1,074,530

R=ZB=+—-HZEBRZMEFIRE (#F)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment

11 Y%  BERRE

(a) (a)
Other property, plant and equipment
A% - BERE
Land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings  machinery furniture
held for and and office
ownuse  equipment  equipment Motor  Construction Right-of-use  Investment
BEFEAZ  IREER £ KR vehicles inprogress  Sub-total assets  properties Total
THRET RE BAERE RE fBIE Nt FREEE  RENE &t
$000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fxm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  §000Fm
Cost:
R
At 1st April 2019 997016 3047053 394,658 145,886 421219 5005832 437567 2698 5466097
R=F-hnEMA-A
Exchange adjustments (57418) (172,699) (8,933) (2.960) (40877) (282,887) (15072) - (297.959)
[
Additions 1,149 58270 64,550 4470 932415 1,060,854 69,982 - 113083
HE
Transfer 120,755 235,210 97506 - (453471) - - - -
B
Disposals - (43478) (29.238) (8,697) - (81,413) (1,620) - (83,033)
HE
At 315t March 2020 1061502 3124356 518,543 138699 859286 5702386 490857 2698 6215941
BB T ol
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses:
SIERAESSE:
At 1st April 2019 447423 1492563 224,738 81,858 - 2246582 15,966 19070 2281618
R=Z-nEMA-H
Exchange adjustments (19,536) (76,487) (4.299) (1,939) - (102,261) (1,529) - (103,784)
ENRE
Charge for the year 31782 225,243 42047 11,845 - 310917 90,998 126 402041
AEENE
Reversal of impairment losses - (1,011) (1,398) - - (2409) - - (2409)
BEREEE
Weritten back on disposals - (38.713) (27.924) (6,729) - (73,366) (164) - (73530)
HERRE
At 31st March 2020 459669 1,601,595 233164 85,035 - 2379463 105,277 19196 2503936
TR A ol
Net book value:
BEFE:
At 31stMarch 2020 601833 1522761 285,379 53,664 859286 3322923 385,580 3502 3712005

RZE-EE-A=1-H
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 M% - BERSE (E&)
(a) (Continued) (a) (&)

Other property, plant and equipment
A% - BERRE

Land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings  machinery furniture
held for and  andoffice
ownuse  equipment  equipment Motor  Construction Right-of-use  Investment
KREERZ  IRKER %EB GAR vehicles  inprogress  Sub-total assets  properties Total
1HRET e BRERB RE  ERIE Nt RREEE RENX hy
$000F7%  $000Fx  $000F%  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000F%

Cost:
A

At 1t April 2020 1061502 312435 518543 138699 859286 5702386 490857 2698 6215941
R-2-2FMA-A

Exchange adjustments 96937 248134 12733 3,662 49598 411064 20,395 - 431459
ERHE

Additions 59 42,349 67,269 17547 495549 622773 77,459 - 699932
hE

Transfer 511385 833262 19,814 - (1364461) - - - -
1

Disposals (1427)  (41058)  (19.9%) (2755) (78)  (65314)  (54421) - (11973
HE

At 31t March 2021 166845 4207043 598363 157153 39894 6670909 533990 2698 7201597
RZBZ-%=f=t-A
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 M% - BERSE (E&)
(a) (Continued) (a) (&)

Other property, plant and equipment
Eth% - BERAE

Land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings ~ machinery fumiture

held for and  andoffice
ownuse  equipment  equipment Motor ~ Construction Right-of-use  Investment
KEEER.  IREER #EB GAR vehicles  inprogress  Sub-total assets  properties Total
1HREF e WAERB RE ERIR N RREEE RENE At
$000F7%  $000Fm  $000F%  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000F%
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses:
RTERAEES :
At Lt April 2020 459,669 1,601,595 233,164 85,035 - 2,379,463 105,277 19196 2503936
R-BZZEMA-A
Exchange adjustments 21,725 113175 5422 2413 - 148735 3,066 - 151,801
ERE
Charge for the year 49,047 267,617 54,454 12,555 - 383,673 103,391 126 487,190
KEERE
Impairment losses - 25,250 3,715 - - 28,965 6,864 - 35,829
HERE
Weritten back on disposals (590) (35,646) (18,633) (2,609) - (57,472) (36,405) - (93,877)
HERBE
At 31st March 2021 535851 1,971,991 218,122 97400 - 2883364 182,193 19322 3084879
B R
Net book value:
BEFE:
At 31st March 2021 1132605 2,235,052 320,241 59,753 39894 3787545 351,797 3376 4142718
RZBZ-£ZA=1-H
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(a) (Continued)

Government grants of $6,460,000 (2020: $22,071,000) were
received from the PRC government in relation to the acquisition

of plant and equipment and were netted off against the cost of the
related assets during the year.

Duringthe year, the carrying amounts of certain items of property,
plant and equipment were written down by $35,829,000 to their
recoverable amounts as follows (the recoverable amounts were

estimated using the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use):

(i)

(ii)

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efth 3 Bl B2 &

The impact of COVID-19 led to a number of school
closures in Hong Kong which in turn impacted the Group’s
Vitaland tuckshop business. While schools began to reopen
intermittently since the second calendar quarter of 2020,
management has identified certain tuckshops which
continued to under-perform. Consequently, following
an assessment of future performance of each relevant
tuckshop, an impairment charge in respect of right-of-use
assets ($6,864,000) and other property, plant and equipment
($4,054,000) was recognised during the year under “other
operating expenses”. The aggregate recoverable amounts
of the affected tuckshops subject to impairment amounted
to $4,281,000, which was determined based on the value-
in-use of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment of individual tuckshops using a discount rate of
9%.

Animpairment charge of $24,911,000 was recognised during
the year reflecting the cessation of usage and obsolescence
of various items of property, plant and equipment in Hong
Kong and China.

BEARAE

11 Y% - BEKRKE @
(a) ()
7 Py 11 o B T U B S R B B R I 2R M B

B 6,460,000T (ZEB=F

&4 1 22,071,000 7T)

EREIEREE 2 R ASHIBR o

WP

ETWE - BERRE 2 MREE MR

35,829,000 TE T 5 2 WETWE £ (A=
SHREAAEREHERARERBEEMNEH 2
BEEMGHE)

(i)

2019 BHRFEFHEBCERETERZER
FR EMTE T AKENEMRIBER
PEREY BEBRA-ZTEFEC
EERHESMtEREHNRER  BEERED

Al HE T NEBRRFERE  Hit
R ASEERNERHRRRRE B

RIEMEEE R | #526,864,000 TH
e RS E & 4,054,000 T HBE ALY -
BERRBZHREER ATHEZZ®
BRI EAREES 4,281,000 7T © 7%
THEIORBEERNNEREAREERH
¥~ MERRBZEREER % 2
REREE -

RERER 24,911,000 TRHEERA KRS
BEBRTEZME  BERRBELE
BRORERE -
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of

11 Y% -  BEKRE @

(b)

BEHEBEES B2 ERAREE ZIREFED MU

EREEE

underlying asset is as follows: ™
2021 2020
—B-—F b Sl 23
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Interests in leasehold land held for own use, carried at depreciated
cost, with remaining lease term of:
HEBERAZEE T R (RITERASIIR) Z6RTHE
- 50 years or more 6,643 6,385
-50F L
- between 10 and 50 years 171,178 161,190
-10Z50F 24
177,821 167,575
Other properties leased for own use, carried at depreciated cost 171,909 216,096
HEER B ZH MY% (RITERASIER)
Factory machinery and equipment, carried at depreciated cost 2,067 1,909
TRHRE Rt (RITERATIER)
351,797 385,580
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 M% - BERSZE @

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) FEFRAEEE @)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in HNEREREEREZEIERE AT !
profit or loss is as follows:

2021 2020
=F=—F —F-FF
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:
REBEES E2EREEEZITEER
- Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use 3,966 3,872
-BEEERZEE L R ERER
- Other properties leased for own use 98,827 86,846
-HEFBERZHMmY
- Factory machinery and equipment 598 280
- TRAHEEE R R 1B

103,391 90,998
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 8,137 8,599

HESBEZFE (MEE5())
Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases with

remaining lease term ending on or before 31st March 2020 31,214 59,678
EEEREER R T HE

R-B-EEF=A=+—HRZAiTE2HEZRX
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding

short-term leases of low-value assets 2,792 2,526
FBEREEEEREZAX (REEEE ZEBHEERIN)

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement

of lease liabilities 11,778 27,181
FH AR R ARRENHK
COVID-19-related rent concessions (25,438) -

2019 B S HmARESER
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(BREBHBI - BUBKEEHE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group leases various warehouses, offices, factory machinery
and equipment for use in its operations. The leases included in
right-of-use assets typically run for an initial period of more than
one year to five years. Some leases include an option to renew the
lease for an additional period after the end of the contract term.
Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational flexibility.
The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it
is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. If the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise the extension options,
the future lease payments during the extension periods are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities. The potential
exposure to these future lease payments is summarised below:

Lease liabilities recognised
(discounted)

11 Y% -  BEKRE @

(b) FHEEE @)
AEEEASEARE  WAZ  THEERDE
HELEER  FAEAREEZRE RIS
BHRB-FZHE - ROEETRENENE
EEREEEENAY - EYETTZERT -
AEEHROEAEETTE ARERRE -
BUSEHE EEN - AEBREEMA B
EEAEE R EEREE - HAEERELE
BT EEREE  FERE 2 R REE AR
FEHAAEEESHE - REARBENR>
SEEEBREANT :

Potential future lease payments
under extension options not
included in lease liabilities
(undiscounted)

ERERAZHEEAE (BFE) EHBRETN 2R AHEEEZE
ERREEMNR CGRIFR)
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—% —E-EE —sE-—F —ECEF
$'000 F T $'000 F 7t $'000 Tt $'000 Tt
Warehouse - Hong Kong 96,034 126,966 120,191 120,191

EE-&E

In addition, the Group is the registered owner of several plots of
leasehold land, in respect of which upfront lump sum payments
were made to acquire them.

During the vyear, additions to right-of-use assets were
$77,159,000 (2020: $69,982,000). This amount primarily related
to the capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities are set out in notes 18(d) and 21, respectively.

As disclosed in note 1(c). the Group has early adopted the
Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions, and
has applied the practical expedient introduced by the Amendment
to all eligible rent concessions received by the Group during the
year, with COVID-19-related rent concessions of $20,902,000
was recognised in “Other income” accordingly.

o AEEAERESE L 2 EMEEA B
FURAE L — RN RBEEZE 1 -

FR AEERFREEEST77,159000T (=&
ZEF :69,9820007T) c ZFEEEENES
WEETEMCBEENREREH -

FREEZRERHBEREEREZIH O
2RISR EE 18(d) K 21

MR 1c) TR E » AEBECREREMN(EE
B RS EA) £ 1655 (1ERTA) [2019 At 5
EFEEHETER ]| WCBETAMSIAZT
TREF IEAREAEEREARBRZHAEEE
HBELER > M2019BRESHFHEBHEHSER
20,902,000 ;T 2 AEFER [ H AU A | SR -
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment leased out
under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under an operating

lease. The leases runs for an initial period of two years, with an

option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms

are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease are receivable as follows:

11 Y% -  BEKRE @

(c) RELKLLHEEHLE2YE BE
kRfE

AEENCLEERHEENE - ZEREDS

BEWE  YEARREENHALED B

FERSYTEHREE - ZEAEL/EERR

e o

REBRET AR KEHERK 2 RITRE
ENFRAT

2021 2020
—B-—F b Sl 23
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Within one year 1,683 4,038
—FR
After one year but within two years - 1,683
—FERERER
Total 1,683 5721
e
(d) The fair value of investment properties (d) ?ﬁﬁ%%Z’& LB
The fair value of investment properties at 31st March 2021 is REWNER-"Z=_-—F=ZA=+—-HZLQREAR

$63,100,000 (2020: $62,500,000) which is estimated at their
open market value by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties (2020: same basis of valuation adopted).
The valuationwas carried out by anindependent firm of surveyors,
Roma Appraisals Limited, who have among their staff members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of the properties being valued.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

63,100,000 T (=& =& £ : 62,500,000 7T)

WIESEZ T BYE 23 ﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁ%éﬁ’“ﬁﬁ
mHEEETHT (Z222F  REE-GE
BE) - ENHBYAEMITESERTEE
RABET  ENOBESTBIEMESZE
EFTEENE 2 ER R A A HEEIT A
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(d) The fair value of investment properties
(Continued)
The fair value measurement is categorised as a Level 3 valuation
under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available; and

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using
direct comparison approach with reference to the market price
of comparable properties and adjusted for building quality and
timing of the reference transaction. The significant unobservable
input in the fair value measurement is the property-specific
adjusting rate, which ranged from 0.95 to 1.05 (2020: 0.95 to
1.05). The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
property-specific adjusting rate.

(e) Property, plant and equipment pledged against
bank loans

At the end of the reporting period, no property, plant and

equipment of the Group are pledged to secure bank loans or bank

facilities granted to the Group.

(f) Deposits for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

As at 31st March 2021, the Group paid deposits totalling

$2,404,000 (2020: $548,000) to acquire property, plant and

equipment. The remaining amount of the consideration for the

acquisition is included in capital commitments (note 27(a)).

11 Y% - BEKRRE @
(d) BEVEZAARE @)

N

AAEERB(EBHBREED) £ 1358
[AAENE | FIREZZRAABRBIERE
ZRMEE - BEQOAEHESE2ERNESE
WMTAEREMABB 2 TEEERERMEE
E

- B-RhE: EERFE-RBARE (R
AERARBEEREENERME ZRE
RAERE) STEZDRE

- BIHMHE: ERSE-RWARE (BIREE
EXF-RoUBERARME) BXKRER
ERTABEGAMBITEZORE £
TEEGARBERETSBIE 2B ARE
J54

- BEZRME: EAEATTEEHARE

FFEBZDRE -

REMEZAARBNSEALLBEYEZTEFEA
HELMBGIEE  URSEXRZZEFERRE
BEHAZ - AAEHEZERTTHERAH
BIERNMEREE  NF095F8105(===
TF 0952105) c RARBEFTERBRWER
BZEEKIERBE -

(e) BIBITERER2ME BER
&=

RERA - AEBHRITRETNE  BERR

f » UERAEEEREZ RTERRRITEE -

(f) BEYX BERREZT
R-B-—f=A=+-80 ~5£EAKEY
¥ - MERRBEMZATEE 24040007 (=

TR 1 5480007T) - BENE AT &85
ABREE (M 27() ©
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12 Intangible assets 12 B EE
Pollution
discharge
Brand name Customer list right Total
mhEE T BFRE BE5tE mat
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 7t
Cost:
RS
At 1st April 2019 7,593 10,958 - 18,551
R=Z-—NFmA—B
Addition - - 1,157 1,157
FE
Exchange adjustments (466) - (29) (495)
b 5 A%
At 31st March 2020 7,127 10,958 1,128 19,213

REBEBESASTR

Accumulated amortisation:

Rt

At 1st April 2019 4,176 10,958 - 15,134
R=B—NEmA—H

Exchange adjustments (272) - (5) (277)
BE 5 A%

Charge for the year 372 - 174 546
NEEHEE

At 31st March 2020 4276 10,958 169 15,403
R-Z-ZHE=-A=+—H

Net book value:

BRTEFE -

At 31st March 2020 2,851 - 959 3,810
REZB-_ZTHE=/=1+—H
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12 Intangible assets (continued) 2 BILEE @
Pollution
discharge
Brand name Customer list right Total
b BEFEE HEo ke et
$000 Tt $'000 Tt $000 ¥t $000 ¥t
Cost:
2% N
At 1st April 2020 7,127 10,958 1,128 19,213
R-ZE-ZZFWNA—H
Addition - - 286 286
A=
Exchange adjustments 456 - 107 563
[ 5 A%
At 31st March 2021 7,583 10,958 1,521 20,062

Accumulated amortisation:

Rt

At 1st ApriI 2020 4,276 10,958 169 15,403
R-Z-_ZFMA—H

Exchange adjustments 280 - 24 304
BE 5 AR

Charge for the year 373 - 285 658
AEEHEE

At 31st March 2021 4,929 10,958 478 16,365
R-EBE-—F=A=+—H

Net book value:

AR FE -

At 31st March 2021 2,654 - 1,043 3,697
e = =t Wl =

The amortisation charges of brand name and pollution mEERBRESECBEERAC SR AREE
discharge right are included in “other operating expenses” and mRz [EEB8A IR [THRERIR °
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss respectively.
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13 Goodwill

13 BE

2021
—E_—F
$'000 T

2020
—ECEF
$000 F 7T

Cost:
B :

At 1st April
AOEA—H

Exchange adjustments
B 5 A EE

34,501

2,203

36,751

(2,250)

At 31st March
R=B=+—8

36,704

34,501

Accumulated impairment losses:

RETRERE :

At 1st April
ROEA—H

Exchange adjustments
B 5 %

17,250

1,102

18,376

(1,126)

At 31st March
R=B=+—8

18,352

17,250

Carrying amount:

ARMEE :

At 31st March
R=B=+—H

18,352

17,251

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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13 Goodwill (Continued)
Impairment testing for cash-generating unit
containing goodwill

Gooduwill arose from the acquisition of the entire share capital of
Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“VIS”).

The recoverable amount of the VIS operation is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period (2020: five-year period). Cash
flows beyond the five-year period (2020: five-year period) are
extrapolated using an annual growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%). The
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the business in which the VIS operation operates.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation:

13 & @)
BEREBZREELEENZRBERS

2 [& U B8 Vitasoy International Singapore Pte.
Ltd. (TVIS]) 2 2 ERRAMELE -

VISEHK T RE B REEREEFEE
Eo st ERRAREREEMEZRFH (=25
BF ﬁiﬁﬂ) PHARESHcBEREFEAR -

TFH(ZEZ2F  5FH) UEzBHERE
BIEA3% (ZZ2=FF 1 3%) FRREHEHE -
ZRRETBBVISEKBAEEXRB 2 RBFY
BRE-

SAEEREERRAZEERRUT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
- Gross margin 34.3% 34.0%
ik
- Average annual sales growth rate for the five-year period 10.6% 9.4%
- DB FYFHERERE
- Pre-tax discount rate 8.8% 8.8%

- BRELAT TR R

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and sales
growth rate based on past performance and its expectation
for market development. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would
not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

EEERBBEARENEETERRE 2R - #
EREEMNERBFEERRE - FIERZTERA
R RRAEEE D BB E R 2 FRELAT T IR o

EEERD  BETRLESEAKEZETERR
HREMSETEEE 9T SEHREEES
HAll = &4 o
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(BREBHBI - BUBKEEHE)

14 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(d)
and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

14 ME QA

TEREAEAEENBAR 2FHE - REBEH
o AEEHBB 2RO B REER

LE B8 A B3 B FIEE 1(d) PR R E 2 I FIM B
DR WEAKEZHBHRRAGETE

Place of Particulars of Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ issued and BEEERILE
establishment paid-up
and operation capital  held by the held by a
Name of company MR BRETRAR Company subsidiary  Principal activities
AT LB B R&EE2 BRAF#E ADQABE HWEBAREE FEER
% %
Vitasoy USA Inc. United States of 100 shares - 100  Sale of beverages
America 100 R A1 HE M
ZNEERE
Vitasoy North America Inc. Canada 1,000 shares 100 - Saleof beverages
JIIEYN 1,000 Bz 43 HERM
Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and The PRC RMB80,000,000 85 - Manufacture and
Beverage Company Limited (note (i) ey AR sale of beverages
R () RMERBRAR (& () 80,000,000 7t EEREENR
Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited ThePRC  RMB335,000,000 - 85  Manufacture and
(note (ii)) ) ARH sale of beverages
#fh (Rz) BRAR (M (i) 335,000,000 7T EERHERD
Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (note (iii)) ThePRC ~ RMB200,000,000 - 85  Manufacture and
by (F510) ARRAE (BEE i) HE AR sale of beverages
200,000,000 7T EERHESRR
Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited ThePRC  HK$219,461,176 - 100  Manufacture and
(note (iv)) H it sale of beverages
#4in (LF) ARAF (M (v) 219,461,176 Tt EERHERD
Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited (note (v)) ThePRC  RMB170,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and
#fgn (RF) BRAF (HEFWV) H N sale of beverages
170,000,000 7T EEREESM

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

14 Subsidiaries (continued) 14 MEB AT @)

Place of Particulars of Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ issued and BEEERILE
establishment paid-up
and operation capital  held by the held by a
Name of company MR BRETRAR Company subsidiary  Principal activities
AT LB B REEn2 RAFE ARXREE  HWEAREE FEER
% %
Vitasoy Company Limited (note (vi)) The PRC  RMB100,000,000 - 100  Sales/distribution
HfERAR (FIEE (vi) e ARM of beverages/food
100,000,000 7t and headquarter
management
service
(Mainland China)
HE /PR
BRmRANERE
R (REIAH)
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP”) Australia V class shares: - 51  Manufacture and
(TVAPJ) B A$8,925,000 sale of beverages
N class shares: EEREERR
A$8,575,000
VER :
8,925,000 8 7
NER
8,575,000 2 7
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada Macau MOP100,000 100 - Distribution of
s ORF) BRAE ®FY RPI™E 100,000 T beverages
gak:<
Produtos De Soja Hong Kong (Macau) Macau MOP10,000 - 100 Dormant
Limitada ®F RPI% 10,000 7T TEe¥
EBsm (BMY) BRAF
Vitaland Services Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares 100 - Operation of
Hf K REERD A &8 300,000 B3 tuck shops and
concessions
REBRNRIR
PREN
Hong Kong Gourmet Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Provision of
EBERERLT 5B 2R catering services
REEHRE
The Hong Kong Soya Bean Products Company, Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Property
Limited &8 24 investment
EEERBRAHE MERE
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14 Subsidiaries (continued)

14 MEB AT @)

Place of Particulars of Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ issued and BEEERILE
establishment paid-up
and operation capital  held by the held by a
Name of company MR BRETRAR Company subsidiary  Principal activities
AR ER BN R & S B RAFE ARXREE  HWEAREE TEEK
% %
Vitasoy (China) Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment holding
#Aan (hE) ERERAF &8 1RR D REER
Vitasoy Investment Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment holding
EPREEREBRATE &8 1RR %D REE
Vita International Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Investment holding
EHEREEERA B8 2B REE
Vitasoy International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment holding
ENERRERRAR B8 1RR %D REER
Vitasoy (China) Investments Company Limited Hong Kong 2shares 100 - Investment holding
bl (PRl REBRAR &8 2B REER
Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Limited Malta Ordinary shares: - 100  Sales of beverages
St HK$20,257 HERM

Vitasoy Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited

Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (VIS’)
(Tvis])

Vitasoy Distributors (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Deferred share: HK$7
LR B
20,257 7T

EERD BT

Singapore $$10,000 - 100
EigE 10,0007t
Singapore $$79,800,000 - 100

R 79,800,0003% 7T

Singapore $$2,500,000 100 -
e 2,500,0003% 7

Investment holding

REZR

Manufacture and
sale of soya related
products
EEREE
ZHER

Dormant

TREx

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Vitasoy”) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established
inthe PRC and is to be operated up to 2049.

Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Dongguan”) is a
sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be
operated up to 2067.

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Foshan”) is a sino-foreign
equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be operated up to
2049.

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated up to 2045.

Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Wuhan”) is a wholly
foreign owned subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated
up to 2064.

Vitasoy Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned subsidiary
established in the PRC and is to be operated up to 2070.

14

FieE

(iii)

(vi)

Vi NGIRE )

RYIAEM (E8) BRRECEIARAR (DRI
1) BRFBERIIZFNEGEGEDNT  KEHE
ZEMAFIE -

#h (R5=) BRATE ([REAMP]) BRHE
BRI zHHEEGE AT KERE_TAREFLE -

s (FRL) BRATE ([HILAEBT]) BRHE
MBI ZHHIEEEENT  KREPE_BMAFLE -

#fpg (£)) BRABDA/NPERY 22 INEME
DA REME_ZNAFIE -

s (UF) BRATE ([EEEM]) BRHE
M2 ZNENBLR  KEHE_TAOEEFLL -

HMPAERLDBNRTEMILZEINERB AT
BERE_TLTERIE -
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14 Subsidiaries (continued) 14 MBATRE @

The following table lists out the information relating to Shenzhen TREVCEEEERFERER ([ FIERE
Vitasoy, Vitasoy Dongguan, Vitasoy Foshan and VAP, the @) 2AREEMBABRINMEMYS - REL A
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling 5~ LM VAP 2 EH o TX 2% 281
interests (“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented ERBEIE/E R A BB MEEA 2 £ 58 o
below represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.
Shenzhen Vitasoy Vitasoy Dongguan Vitasoy Foshan VAP
F REEMID ANES b))
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

—§--§ -t 23 g% -t 23 g% -t 23 g% -t 23

$000 T7¢ $000 7 $/000 1t $000 $000 Tt $000 $/000 7t $000 Tt
NCl percentage 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 49% 49%
FEREREDL
Current assets 197,029 131,157 268,993 222,744 279,521 270429 224,872 186,118
nBEE
Non-current assets 96,054 150,739 1,284,367 7633833 491,215 505,854 241,413 203,968
FRBERE
Current liabilities (45,339) (46,670) (736,563) (305,036) (169,161) (213,194) (124,862) (132,305)
nBEE
Non-current liabilities (3,780) (4,466) (442,267 (329,999) (27,021) (22,721) (10,772) (8,214)
FREEE
Net assets 243,964 230,760 374,530 351,542 574,554 540,368 330,651 249,567
RER
Carrying amount of NCI 36,445 34,376 56,178 52,731 87,006 80,470 161,192 122,137
FERBEG 2 RAE
Revenue 550,503 526,490 197,746 - 1,175,202 959,895 539,771 509,455
A
Profit/(loss) for the year 52,439 39,463 (7,113) (10,678) 146,065 85,006 23,738 26,295
rEERF/ (BB)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 52,439 39,463 (7,113) (10,678) 146,065 85,006 19,263 28,232
2EkE/ (Fi8) 2%
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI 7954 6,963 (1,067) (1,602) 23,319 15,589 10,956 12,763
AREFERER 2R/ (BE)
Dividend paid to NCI 8,532 11,784 - - 22919 16,844 - 9,031
HFERERRERE

Cash flows generated from operating

activities 24,694 88,842 457,123 43491 194,459 147,799 67,531 13,861
RETBHERENE
Cash flows generated from/(used in)

investing activities 40,460 (12,300) (490,601) (586,962) (27,818) (52,512) (7,640) (12,251)
RETBHE/ (FR) Behe
Cash flows (used in)/generated from

financing activities (60,783) (76,176) (17,871) 619,589 (166,310) (95,469) (65,162) (2,176)
BEEE (fA) /FEEehE
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15 Interest in joint venture

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

15

REE QT s

AEEREERR 2R (HRAREERGS
PEHERAALR) #FHWT

Proportion of ownership interest

BmERER R =R
Place of Particular of Group's
Form of incorporation issued and effective

Name of joint business and business  paid-up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by a Principal

venture structure ALK BRITRARE rEEZ Company subsidiary activity

RENTRER EBEBRA BRI BRAFE ERER ZRREE  MWELARE TEEH

% % %

Vitasoy - URC, Incorporated  The Republic of Registered 50 - 50 Sale of
Inc. (“VUR?") WAL the Philippines capital of beverages
(TVUR]) JFEEHME PHP 842,000,000 (note)

([3EEE]) HRA HESM
842,000,000t & (Ht)
Note: VUR was established by the Company in partnership with a major MizE : VORHAQARAE-RFFETEREEENRER

branded consumer food and beverage company in the Philippines, the
other investor to this joint venture, for the manufacture and sale of
the Group’s plant-based beverages in the Philippines. VUR is mainly
engaged in the sale of beverages.

VUR, the only joint venture in which the Group participates, is
an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not
available.

AA (AZEEDTRAZE—BRESL) 8BKIL
URFERBELEERBERNSEEUENRS BEZR
fh o VUREERERMHEE -

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &

183



Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHBI - BUBKEEHE)

15 Interest in joint venture (Continued)

Summarised financial information of VUR and a reconciliation to

15 REE QT ZER @)
VUR > BB SR BER BEa0HRE 2 BEE

the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, is ZHRIFENT
disclosed below:
2021 2020
=F=—F A
$'000 Tt $'000 F T
Gross amounts of VUR’s
VUR Z #%8
Current assets 78,334 76,372
REEE
Non-current assets 114,888 125,057
IFREBEE
Current liabilities (103,563) (96,415)
=R
Non-current liabilities (116,198) (87,572)
FERBEE
Equity (26,539) 17,442
P
Included in the above assets and liabilities:
EitALMEEREE
Cash and cash equivalents 35,556 25,136
RekBEEZEHEER
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables) (1,239) -
nRETHEE (TEEEMRRREMmERT)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables) (116,198) (87,572)
FRBERmEE (TEEEMTERREMENRK)
Revenue 40,480 41,936
A
Loss from continuing operations (44,484) (34,866)
FEKEEHE
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in VUR
AL BN VUR 2 3 R
Gross amounts of VUR's net (liabilities)/assets (26,539) 17,442
VURZF (BfE) " EEHAE
Group’s effective interest 50% 50%
rEEZERER
Group’s share of VUR'’s net (liabilities)/assets (13,270) 8,721
REBATEVURE (BE) BE
Group's share of shareholders’ loan (note (i)) 56,070 53,305
AEE L RRER (FEE ()
42,800 62,026
Recognition of impairment loss (note (ii)) (42,800) -
HERREEE (& (i)
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements - 62,026

REMBEmRIREE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements
g e
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

15

Note:

(i)

(i)

Interest in joint venture (continued)

The loan to the joint venture is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.75%
per annum and is expected to be repayable after one year from the end
of the respective reporting period. Further details on the loan to joint
venture are set out in note 28(a)(iv).

The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in extended periods of
lockdown, reduced mobility, negatively impacting product demand
in the Philippines. COVID-19 continues to impact the Philippines and
adversely affect the joint venture’s prospects. Management is of the
view that the impact of COVID-19 will be felt for some time, which is
reflected in revised sales projections. The recoverable amount of the
investment was determined based on its value-in-use. The calculation
used discounted cash flow projections that are based on business plans
prepared by management, reflecting the performance to date and the
pandemic recovery assumptions for future revenue growth. Cash flows
beyond the forecast period are extrapolated using an annual growth
rate of 2%.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation:

15

MiEE

(i)

(i)

REERNTIZERE )

BENARGBHZERBEER  BEF475%5
B YRBMARSERABH —FRER 8L
NAMEH 2 R ZE — DRHIEEMMIEE 28(a)(iv)

a

N

2019 BMEEHREBCERHBHPER « ARE
D HFRENERBTRENEEFE - 2019EAR
RS RSEYEFEEENHEELAANAISERT
Mg  EBERA 2019 BRBSHNSFEK
E-RERE MECDRMRELETHHEETA
BREBENAKESEREAFEAEERET - 58
SEHEANREREFENRBBEEEREIREHMNZE
HETEMEL « ZEXEBHERMES K EWRITR
BUREHEBERZNRRKRIEROMBR - 788
HUENRSREAEH 2% 2 FILREHE -

SAEEREENRBZEEZER/RUT :

2021

—E-—F
- Gross margin 17%
-ERE
- Average annual sales growth rate 15%
T ERERER
- Pre-tax discount rate 14%
- BB IR R

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and sales growth
rate based on past performance and its expectation for market
development taking into account the impact of COVID-19. The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
business of the joint venture.

An impairment charge of $42,800,000 was recognised during the year
after considering the adverse impact of COVID-19 on future sales
projections. As at 31st March 2020, management assessed that there
was no indication of impairment, having considered that the joint
venture was in the early start-up stage and the operation in Philippines
was not severely affected by the pandemic.

EEERBBENREARERE 2019BREER
HHEBRENAY  BETHEEANEREEER
o it ANFTREABARRREREEARE
HEERRE

KER2019BARTSHE R REETERH RIS
&% FRNTHE 42,800,000 THIEERE - K=
T-ZF=A=+-—H0 BEEBZTEIEELAER
RESHE  MIFRENEBLAZIEERESY
2, RtPEtERETS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

16 Inventories
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

16 &

(a) HmEMBMRRERPZIFERSE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECEF

$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Raw materials 416,951 344,309
AR

Finished goods 308,575 249,250
B m

725,526 593,559

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

(b) EREZANERB/AIZFES

recognised as an expense and included in profit BHomah :
or loss is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEEF
$'000 ¥t $000 Ft
Carrying amounts of inventories sold 3,559,688 3,380,522
EEFEZREE
Write down of inventories 6,796 9,056
3,566,484 3,389,578
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

17 Trade and other receivables

17 BWERRKRE

b & WK

2021 2020
—E-—F bt 223
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Trade debtors and bills receivable, net of loss allowance 819,987 707,687
FEWERA R B R IE - HIBRE 1B R
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 374,121 300,683
HiEWR - RERFANTKIE
Derivative financial instruments - 501
TSI A
1,194,108 1,008,871

The amount of the Group’s other debtors, deposits and
prepayments expected to be recovered or charged as expense
after more than one year is $45,680,000 (2020: $34,648,000).
All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageinganalysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

FEEFHNBE - FREBFHNBEAMIZE
WK ~ & R FANFRIRS 45,680,0007T (=
T T 134,648,000 7T) o Fr A H A FEULRR X
REMEBUHRERR - FRAREREZR/MS -

(a) HRiRD 4T

RERE - EURRRREREE (ERERER
R E AN RREBAREHRER
BEZREANAT -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECEEF

$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T

Within three months 803,401 698,888

=EAR

Three to six months 11,163 7,897
=ZX~EA

Over six months 5,423 902
ANMEAMLE

819,987 707,687

Trade debtors and bills receivable are generally due within one
to three months from the date of billing. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills
receivable are set out in note 26(a).

BUERMRRERREE —RREEARET—Z2=
&8 A AZEIE o A6 B30 MRk bt F 4 eR TR K
H@m o BERFREEEEBERBEBUIRR R ER
EEMEEZEERKBZE—SHBRRMHE
26(a) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits
(a) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

18 RERBITER
(a) RERBITEFREIE

2021 2020
=T=-F i
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Cash at bank and in hand 595,153 776,855
RITEEREFRSE
Bank deposits maturing within three months when placed 374,873 70,954
FRER=(EA AN ZBITEX
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement 970,026 847,809
FERERERAZRERALEEER
Bank deposits maturing after three months 496 466
FRHBB=EA ZRITEX
Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position 970,522 848,275

e PBIRR RN ZRERRITER

At 31st March 2021, certain Renminbi (2020: Renminbi and
United States dollars) bank balances totalling $133,161,000
(2020: $81,729,000) were designated as a hedge against the
foreign currency risk on future purchase of raw materials and
machineries. The gain on re-translation of these bank balances at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period was

included in other comprehensive income.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

18 BERIIRITER @)
RSN ESEXIEFAEEREE

generated from operations: ZHER
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
Note FffzE $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Profit before taxation 766,659 679,068
BRI AR T
Adjustments for:
T
- Share of losses of joint venture 22,242 17,433
- BIEEE A RIEE
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5(d) 103,391 90,998
-EREEEZTE
- Depreciation of investment properties 5(d) 126 126
-REVEZINE
- Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment 5(d) 383,673 310,917
-Hit% - MERREZITE
- Amortisation of intangible assets 5(d) 658 546
-BEEE M
- Recognition/(reversal) of impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment 5(d) 35,829 (2,409)
-FR 7 (BE) V¥ BERREZHEESS
- Recognition of impairment losses on interest in
joint venture 5(d) 42,800 -
-EREE QTR ZREER
- Interest on bank loans 5(a) 3,633 2,333
- SRITERZFE
- Interest on lease liabilities 5(a) 8,137 8,599
-HEEBEZFE
- Interest income from bank deposits 4 (5,160) (10,919)
- SRITIERZFEWA
- Interest income from loan to joint venture 4 (2,628) (1,644)

-AEERAREHERZFISHRA
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (continued) 18 BERBITHER @)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIANEFERKLEEKFIEES
generated from operations: (Continued) ZHER |
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
Note FffzE $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
- Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5(c) 5,957 3,689
- HEYX - BERREZEBRFHE
- Equity settled share-based payment expenses 5(b) 15,455 12,686
- R AARER &R
- COVID-19-related rent concessions (20,902) -
- 2019 B HEFHEEEEER
- Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (4,748) 722

-EX (k) BiE

Changes in working capital:

SEESRE

- (Increase)/decrease in inventories (78,289) 110,844
- () SRS

- Increase in trade and other receivables (120,125) (64,653)
- FE W BRFR I EL Ath FE U SR A A

- Increase in trade and other payables 291,728 270,205

- FEAS BRI EL A FE A R4

- (Decrease)/increase in employee retirement

benefit liabilities (417) 166
- EERAKREFNERE CFd) M
Cash generated from operations 1,448,019 1,428,707
REEBMBRS
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(BREBHBI - BUBKEEHE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which

cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from

financing activities.

18 RERMITEM

(c) HQE/EEJJEEZEFEFE

TRAVNAEEREETHELE 2EEEE  Ef
BERERFRELEH  RETHFELE2EE
EHREREBRNIARARREREGNLIER 2
FERERERANIEAMETH2RERE °

Bank loans Lease liabilities Total
SRITER HEAE et
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(Ff#=£ 20) (PfF&E 21)
$'000 ¥t $'000 ¥t $'000 Tt
At 1st April 2020 241,424 243,574 484,998
RSB REM AR
Changes from financing cash flows:
MERESHREET -
Proceeds from new bank loans 149,112 - 149,112
FrIBIRITERPTE A
Repayment of bank loans (273,577) - (273,577)
BERITER
Capital element of lease rentals paid - (80,169) (80,169)
B HEEREE 2 ERIBH
Interest element of lease rentals paid - (8,137) (8,137)
2 HEEREE 2R EHBM0
Interest paid (3,633) - (3,633)
ENFIE
Total changes from financing cash flows (128,098) (88,306) (216,404)
CBERESREEVBBE
Exchange adjustments 13,347 4,283 17,630
ERARE
Other changes:
HAh 5 :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases during the period - 77,159 77,159
HARBRIZHEE 2 HESEEM
COVID-19-related rent concessions
(note 11(b)) - (20,902) (20,902)
2019 B S HEEEESER (MiEE11(b)
Decrease in lease liabilities from
lease modification - (18,510) (18,510)
REHEEBT 2HEAERD
Finance costs (note 5(a)) 3,633 8,137 11,770
RE A (MiEE5(a))
At 31st March 2021 130,306 205,435 335,741

R=B-_—fF=A=+—H
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

18 BERIIRITER @)

(c)

METETHELECEBYHIR (@)

Bank loans Lease liabilities Total
BITER HEEE Bt
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(Mt&E 20) (P¥zE21)
$'000 F 7t $'000 7t $'000 Tt
At 1st April 2019 44,508 259,259 303,767
R-E—-hFWA—A
Changes from financing cash flows:
RERSRELE :
Proceeds from new bank loans 279,981 = 279,981
IBIRITERERIEA
Repayment of bank loans (75,134) - (75,134)
EERITER
Capital element of lease rentals paid - (81,947) (81,947)
EfRERERE 2ERTH
Interest element of lease rentals paid - (8,599) (8,599)
S RERERE 2R L5
Interest paid (2,333) - (2,333)
ENFE
Total changes from financing cash flows 202,514 (90,546) 111,968
RERERESEERE
Exchange adjustments | (7931) (2239) (10,170)
XA
Other changes:
Hit 25 :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the period - 69,982 69,982
HARBIILHEE ZHESEEM
Decrease in lease liabilities from lease
modification - (1,481) (1,481)
REHEEBT2HEAERD
Finance costs (note 5(a)) 2,333 8,599 10,932
RE R (FfEE5(a))
At 31st March 2020 241,424 243,574 484,998

R-EBE-EF=HA=+—H
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (Continued) 18 BERBITHER @)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERSARHHALE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement for BEEN A AGERERERZREEREUTE
leases comprise the following: B
2021 2020
=F=—F —F-FF
$000 F T $000 F 7t
Within operating cash flows 45,784 89,385
REFERENR
Within financing cash flows 88,306 90,546
BMEBRESRERN
134,090 179,931

v

These amounts relate to the following: ZEMIEME T IEE 18R

anl

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECFF

$'000 F T $'000 T 7T

Lease rentals paid 134,090 179,931

SNEERES
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

19 Trade and other payables

19 BNRARE

ftb P& 3K

2021 2020
—E-—F bt 223
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Trade creditors and bills payable 976,968 555,000
EAERRENRE
Accrued expenses and other payables 1,627,752 1,299,499
FEETE AR E At AR
Receipts in advance from customers 214,616 503,340
FEWZ P RIE
2,819,336 2,357,839

FAEBEHFTEEMNEREEMENSTER
—EREE H16372000T (ZE=FF :
23,957,000 7T) 2EF RS AEHRBRBE—F%&
& -

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year, except for customer deposits amounting to
$16,372,000 (2020: $23,957,000) which are expected to be
settled after more than one year.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RERB  BNRIRENEBZRZEZEARZK

creditors and bills payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BROWOT -

2021 2020

—E-—-F —EEF

$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7T

Within three months 970,805 553,029

=@EAR

Three to six months 5,867 1,628
=Z=X@EA

Over six months 296 343
ANMEALUE

976,968 555,000

FEEZ-RARBRABBZRPES —ZM
@A -

The Group’s general payment terms are one to two months from
the invoice date.

194
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

19 Trade and other payables (continued) 19 BREREMRREMEAR @&
Movements in receipts in advance from customers AREFF IEZ@EJJ
2021 2020
—B-—F —ERIEF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Balance at 1st April 503,340 489,225
ROA— B 248k
Exchange adjustments 32,549 (33,000)
P 5 EE
Decrease in receipts in advance from customers as a result of
recognising revenue during the year that was included in the
receipts in advance from customers at the beginning of the period (526,922) (468,652)
HERBEZBRA (B ABOZAREFRERN) ERXAREFRIE
A
Increase in receipts in advance from customers as a result of
receiving forward sales deposits during the year 3,533,336 4,133,295
REA BRI HE R SEHFRNE FRIEE M
Decrease in receipts in advance from customers as a result of
recognising revenue during the year that was included in the
forward sales deposits received during the year (3,327,687) (3,617,528)
RERNBEABRA (BEFAFRARRZESEERSR) EFRAKREF
RIER D
Balance at 31st March 214,616 503,340

R=ZB=t+—H2&EH

20 Bank loans

At 31st March 2021, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

20 RITERK
R-B-—F=A=+-0 RTERARTA
HIIRISIE

2021 2020

—B-—-F —ECEF

$'000 Tt $'000 F T

Within one year or on demand 130,306 241,424

—FRFEER

As of the end of the reporting period, no bank loans were secured
by charges over property, plant and equipment (note 11(e)).

RERA - BERITER
AEFER (HEE11e) °

RAMZE - R K R 1B AE
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(BREBHBI - BUBKEEHE)

20 Bank loans (continued)

Certainofthe Group’sbankingfacilities are subjecttothefulfilment
of covenants relating to certain financial ratios, as are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
may become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 26(b). As
at 31st March 2021 and 2020, none of the covenants relating to
the drawn down facilities had been breached.

21 Lease liabilities

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s lease liabilities:

20 SRITEFR @)

REEE TRITEEEFSRE TR RER
TR W SR RS EE
BE o WEAEREREEZE  UTHERE
REBOERZEEE - AEETHERLES
ZERRHER - ERAEETERDHE AR
T — S ERARE26(b) c RSB —FR =
E-TE=A=+-0 AEEHEERETE
BIREUS & > 3 o

21 HEAE

TREJAEEZHESEZHRTEHOHR -

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHAE BEHAE =EEE REKEE
2B E B NRZBEE NS
$'000 Tt $'000 F Tt $'000 Tt $'000 F
Within one year 93,582 94,991 89,957 91,337
TR
After 1 year but within 2 years 64,845 68,179 67,620 70,993
—FRERFER
After 2 years but within 5 years 40,029 43,941 79,004 87,433
MEFERERFR
After 5 years 6,979 19,259 6,993 19,052
hFE&
I 111853 131379 153617 177478 _
205,435 226,370 243,574 268,815

Less: Total future interest expenses (20,935) (25,241)
B ARRAEEHEEE
Present value of lease liabilities 205,435 243,574

HESBEZRE
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates and participates in a number of defined

contribution and defined benefit retirement plans in and outside
Hong Kong.

(a)
(i)

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement plan,
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff Provident Fund,
which is available for all eligible staff employed by the Group
in Hong Kong and Macau before 1st August 2000. The plan
is funded by contributions from employees and the Group,
both of which contribute sums representing 5% - 7.5% of
their basic salaries. Forfeited contributions are credited
to members’ accounts in accordance with the rules of the
plan. The plan is administered by trustees with the assets
held separately from those of the Group. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions after
ten completed membership years, or at an increasing scale
of between 50% to 90% after completion of five to nine
membership years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining
the defined contribution retirement plan are required to
join the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contributionretirementplanadministeredbyanindependent
corporate trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and
the employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions
to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

22 EEERKER
AEBEEBREBUIIMIERIRZMZER

(a)
(i)

EHRARAERNBMAGTE -

REMFRAKEE
AEERRER-ZZZRFNR—-B2ZA
EEERRMZRBASEAERETR
N —-RREHRFORAETE (EMNEREE
BRABDBERES) - 8 2EEXRA
BERAEEZHHN -EHHASERE
FHZ5%E7.5% ° RHRIHOREBEFTE 2R
BB AT BN B 2 IR - AT EIXHER
AEE FRBREETHAREZEEDH
R - E2HEFERTFE BETESR
2HEEIHFZ MSEFEELZNFT
ZAZEETHFRBDLAIBES0%ELEE
90% °

ZRNAEE M I ES IR EH/FORIAG
BB RET  LAREBEE (BHMLIE
EETEURA)) SMAKE ZEBH I EEE
g ([t EEeral) - BEtAEE
AER-RREMRIFCRANGE - BB
EETEAEE - REBEHEARESTE
FEEREEZBRREESRRAYA (B
WA Z&A LR 30,0007T) 2 5% M@=t E
R o PR H M ARSI A 2 HKED

HEE -
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(a)

(ii)

(iii)

Defined contribution retirement plans
(Continued)

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
central pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage
of employees’ remuneration to the central pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with
respect to the central pension scheme is the associated
required contribution under the central pension scheme.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

For employees in Australia, contributions are made by the
Groupto aregistered superannuationfund for its employees,
at 9.5% of the employees’ salaries. The assets of the scheme
are held separately by an independently administered fund.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

(b) Defined benefit retirement plans
At 31st March 2021, the Group recognised employee retirement
benefit liabilities in respect of the following employee retirement

22 EERKERN @)

(a)

(ii)

(iii)

(b)

REMHRFRKETE @)

TEMB AR ZEEHIRPEBARYZ
PREARETEZKRE - AEEARES
e zETEI LB P RBAETTEH
R REANEHRES - AREFHREA
T EIFFRABT 2 E—BER D REA
ERTEMEL AT 2 BB o BIEH &I
Z RN ER S o

BNEESEH AKEEREEHEZ
9.5% B —AREEEMR 2EMRAES
MR FEEEHBUEE2ES DB
B o BT EXN 2 HRNEERE

RERMERKETE

RIE-_-F=A=+—H X&EEHTIESE
ERENEREESEMENES

benefits:
2021 2020
—E-—F bt 223
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERNEFEE
- retirement gratuities (note 22(c)(i)) 800 27,878
- BIRE (MYEE22(0)(i)
- long service payments (note 22(d)) 6,661 6,435
- REIBRBE S (MIEE 22(d))
7,461 34,313
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)
(c) Retirement gratuities

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau, who have
completed a prescribed minimum period of service and joined the
Group before a specific date, are entitled to retirement gratuities
upon retirement age. The gratuity is based on the employee’s last
month’s salary and the number of years of service.

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme (“the Plan”), was
established for the retirement gratuities. The Plan is administered
by an independent corporate trustee, with assets held separately
from those of the Group. The Plan is funded by contributions
from the Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s
recommendation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was at 31st March
2021 and was prepared by independent professionally qualified
actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit
method. The valuation indicates that the Group’s obligation under
this defined benefit retirement plan is 99% (2020: 65%) covered
by the plan assets held by the trustee.

(i)  The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

22 EERKERN @)

(c) BIKE

REEEEBRAMNZ EEEREESET B
e T BIEHR RN EE B8 2 AT A KER -
BE R R RN EREERERRS - SEETE
SREFEAHRBBELTHE o

REBEDHRKE R —HEBRERFRKETE-
HmBEREERERABARAERAE ([ZF
21) - ZETEHBEEEEAEE HEEH
AEEZEEDRER - 28R AKEEZERE
MR B ERER -

ZE B2 BN BEGEIR-ZE=-—F=A
=T -PHERERCBYEXSERBEMR
RESEMFEERET AREMAERREARER
BRRERNERASEIMABT ZEEEF 99%
(Z22FTF | 65%) ZESTAFAZBEER

BZ

() RESHBRARERZSHNOT :

2021 2020
=F=—F —F-FF
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T

Present value of wholly funded obligations 70,496 79,797
2EHEPEEZRE

Fair value of plan assets (69,696) (51,919)
AEEEZARE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities 800 27,878
EERNEFEE

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate
this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months,
as the retirement benefit entitled by scheme members and future
contributions to the plan will also depend on staff turnover and
future changes in actuarial assumptions. The Group expects to
pay $3,435,000 in contributions to defined benefit retirement
plan during the year ending 31st March 2022 (2020: $2,744,000).

M P EEROENBB - FREE - A
HRTEREREER 2 RHRBANR AR ZETE
HATERFEIRBDERBERRARZET
ME » BELRBEERRT ZEARNFAEINZ
CHETPHMBL AT  ARERIRBE-ZF
CCEZAZt-RLEFERRERFRAKTE
AR 3,435,000 7T (ZFZFF : 2,744,000
JT) °
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 22 EERAKER @

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued) () EBHRE @)
(i) Plan assets consist of the following: (i) FTEEEGFETISE:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7T

Plan assets with quoted price in active market

RNERTEHREZTEHEE

Equities
RE
- Financial 13,083 9,681
- %%
- Consumer discretionary 8,407 4,172
- EMFHEM
- Industrials 5,872 3,687
— I%
- Consumer staples 2,580 2,665
- REHER
- Other 21,586 16,203
- Hits

51,528 36,408
Bonds
(s
- Corporate bonds 7,719 6,167
- REES
- Government-related bonds 8,236 9,674
- B HERAES

15,955 15,841
Cash, current assets and current liabilities 2,213 (330)
RE  RBEERRBERS
Total quoted plan assets 69,696 51,919
2REFEEERE
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(i) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

22 EERKERN @)

(c) BIKE @)
i

i) REBMNEERESBNOT :

2021 2020
B —E-EF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
At 1st April 79,797 80,091
RUA—H
Remeasurement:
BHEtE
- Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in
demographic assumptions (2,880) 65
- HAOSSHRBRRE MR ZEE () Eia
- Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial and
experience assumptions (5,923) 3,182
- BB REBBRNBABEE (k) BB
Benefits paid by the Plan (4,130) (7,781)
ZErEIE SEF
Current service cost 3,080 3,143
BERBRA
Interest cost 552 1,097
B RRA
At 31st March 70,496 79,797
R=A=+—H
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is AEEANETz2MEFLIHRALEFE (=222
7 years (2020: 8 years). FN\E)
(iv) Movements in fair value of plan assets are as follows: (iv) FHEIEEZAAEZBWT -
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
$'000 Tt $'000 F T
At 1st April 51,919 61,409
RUA—H
Contributions paid to the Plan 3,646 2,843
mZst EE L 2 R
Benefits paid by the Plan (4,130) (7,781)
ZEt B SEF
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets (98) (100)
Rt 8 EE T2 THER
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 17,991 (5,306)
FEEERR  FEEFERA
Interest income 368 854
FIEUA
At 31st March 69,696 51,919
MR=B=+—H
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 22 EERAKER @

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued) (c) EHRE @
(v) Net expenses recognised in the consolidated statement (v) NEEBEEREMETERERERZHEIF
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as T -
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Current service cost 3,080 3,143
BERBEHA
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets 98 100
R 8 EER N ZTHRER
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 184 243
RAERANEEFEFANE
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss 3,362 3,486
PIERTER 2B
Actuarial (gains)/losses (8,803) 3,247
BE (&) BE
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (17,991) 5,306
SFEIEEDR - TEEFNSWBA
Total amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (26,794) 8,553
REM2E R R 285
Total defined benefit (income)/expense (23,432) 12,039

FERFIE (BAN) BAX

The current service cost and the net interest on net defined AERAMNEEFECBERERARFMNEER
benefit liability are recognised in the following line items in the FEBRRPETIISERR
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
$'000 F 7t $'000 7t
Cost of sales 665 688
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses 815 896
HE  HERDHER
Administrative expenses 1,512 1,510
THER
Other operating expenses 370 392
Hit e & A
3,362 3,486
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are
as follows:

22 EEERKER @)
(c) EHKE @)
(Vi) BEABEBBEREBMESFOT :

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECERF
Discount rate 1.20% 0.70%

FR=E
Future salary increases

R & 1R 0E

3.0% per annum
5 3.0%

3.5% per annum
BHE3.5%

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligations
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 0.5% change in
the significant actuarial assumptions:

UT 2 ERRERBNEFEEABERKR0.5%
g@mLA (T :

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
EH# Tk E# T Bk
0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
$'000 ¥t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 Tt
Discount rate (2,313) 2,438 (2,966) 3,140
FR=E
Future salary increases 2,489 (2,384) 3,160 (3,016)
RRFFE LR

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that
changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore
it does not take into account the correlations between the
actuarial assumptions.

(d) Longservice payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of employmentin
certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payableis
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.

LSBT UBRREERR 2B 228
BEEBRAEE  ARIEFABERRZHE
ZEERR -

(d) REBRB<

RIEEE (BREIEH)  AEEAEETERTR
HERRESAEERBEELAF 2EERFER
EXN—FBFE - AN ZERETRER
BITEFHERBRBFEME @ LHHMAEERK
SETRBRAKEEHRARZ BT ER - A%
B AR FEEEMEEARETEMRGEERE
FiEzES -
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)
(d) Long service payments (Continued)

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was also carried
out at 31st March 2021, by independent professionally qualified
actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit
method.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

22EEﬂWhﬂ@

(d) REBBE &
E%WﬁéﬁF_%:—¢:ﬁ:+—Emﬂ%
BB XS AR BEMRAREENGEE
HEETREME -

E\AIV\

MBARRRER ZEEMT ¢

2021 2020

—B-—-F —ECEF

$'000 Tt $'000 F T

Present value of unfunded obligations 6,661 6,435

BEPEERE

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practical to segregate this
amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as
the retirement benefit payable will also depend on staff turnover
and future changes in actuarial assumptions.

23 Equity settled share-based transactions
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 4th September
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including Directors of any company in
the Group, to take up options to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company. At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28th August 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
Subject to their respective exercisable periods, all outstanding
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme will still
be valid and exercisable after the expiration of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the options is determined by the Directors
of the Company and is the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
and (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

M PSS EROENBB - FREE - A
mvﬁﬁLWEﬂW%ﬁ¥EIMET&F 1R

RABRZEBME  HEURBEERKTZEAR
NFTRES Y 2 R BRI T AJAT o

23 UBRBARNRERZRS
ARABTRZEZ-F N AU ERH—TEERET
B (22 -FBERETE]) Bt RXQF
ZEEERENBEABAEEZESE (BFELE
BETEMARIZES) EMBREUREARD
AEER RIE—C-FNAZF+NHETZR
PERFBEAFERE L BB 7T EERMNTERE
SEI(ZE——FBERETE]) REILE-ZEZ
“FERETECERAER  cRIEEZBITE
HiRR > FTERB-_SZ-_FEREFERE 2K
TEBERENR S _FERESIHRERE
BAAB R R A FITE °

BREZTEERALNAESETE  BUTZR
BE (VRONREEM (ERLEAREHER)
AEBBMARZMAERLIE ([BXFF]) 252
BB R (i) RONEERH BB AEEXE
EBR ARG 2 PR mHE e
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23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(Continued)
The options are exercisable for a period not to exceed 10 years
from the date of grant. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share in the Company.

(@) The terms and conditions of the unexpired and unexercised
share options at the end of the reporting period are as

23 URDANRER TS @)

W IR 1T TSR B R 2+ o
SERBEZBEAYEERE—RAQ DR

7 e

(a) RERB 2 RE®R KT EEREZHER
RARHEWT - FREBRESDURG 2B

follows, whereby all options are settled by physical delivery RUNEESE -
of shares:
2021 2020
—B--F S 313
Contractual
life of Remaining Remaining
options Exercise contractual Number contractual Number
Dateofgrant  Exercise period BREZ price life of options life of options
R B T BHFH THEE HHEHNFY BREZEE HHENFH BREZZE
$ '000 TH& $'000 T
8/9/2011 8/9/2012to £7/9/2021 10years F 6.358  5months B = 1 year F 1,740
31/8/2012 31/8/2013 to £ 30/8/2022 10 years 6.400 1year & 2,822 2yearsE 2,822
28/6/2013 28/6/2014 to £ 27/6/2023 10years F 9.370 2 years = 3yearsF 38
9/9/2013 9/9/2014 to Z 8/9/2023 10years F 9.370 2 years & 1,704 3years 1,704
2/7/2014 2/7/2015 to & 1/7/2024 10 years & 10.080 3years F - 4 years 60
10/9/2014 10/9/2015 to £ 9/9/2024 10years & 10.080 3years 1,792 4 years 1,792
26/6/2015 26/6/2016 to E 25/6/2025 10years 13.600 4 years 18 5 years & 328
14/9/2015 14/9/2016 to £ 13/9/2025 10years F 13.600 4 years 1,588 5 years & 1,588
24/6/2016 24/6/2017 to E 23/6/2026 10years F 14.792 5 years 644 6 years 1,392
6/9/2016 6/9/2017 to & 5/9/2026 10years F 14.792 5 years & 1,420 6 years & 1,420
26/6/2017 26/6/2018 to £ 25/6/2027 10 years 16.296 6 years 1,797 7 years & 2,251
19/6/2018 19/6/2019 to £ 18/6/2028 10years 25.100 7 years & 1,942 8 years & 2,527
28/1/2019 28/1/2020 to £ 27/1/2029 10years F 30.350 8 years & 320 9 years & 320
21/6/2019 21/6/2020 to & 20/6/2029 10years F 44810 8 years 1,467 9 years & 1,812
22/6/2020 22/6/2021 to £ 21/6/2030 10 years & 30.200 9 yearsE 1,934 - -
17,448 19,794
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(Continued)
(a) (Continued)
Except for the options granted on 28th January 2019 which will be
50% vested after the first anniversary from the date of grant and
50% vested after the second anniversary from the date of grant,
all the options are exercisable progressively and the maximum
percentage of the options which may be exercised is determined
in stages as follows:

23 LR ANRER TS @)

(a) &)

BR-ZBE-NE—-BA=-+ N \BRHZBERESEE
REBHEEREFAESOXEBERERER
BT AFERESO% BB B F1TE
ZIEBREHE DELSIEM MEREERATEER
2B ERNT -

Percentage of
options granted

EERBREZADH

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant

R BB —BFEHHRE

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant
R BB WEFHHRE

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant
REBHRA=BFRE®E

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

X B R A F AR

25%

another 5 25%

another 5 25%

another 5 25%

During the year, 1,740,000 options (2020: nil) were exercised
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, and 1,670,000 options
(2020: 2,196,000 options) were exercised under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme.
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23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(Continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

23 URDANRER TS @)

(b) R~ # A RIMETYTEENT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ERIERF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
IEFHITEE BREZHEE METHITEE  BREZHE
$ T '000 T & $ T '000 T
Outstanding at 1st April 16.307 19,794 13.811 20,742
M A — B iEARITE
Exercised during the year 11.153 (3,410) 15.145 (2,196)
RERNTTE
Granted during the year 30.200 2,310 44810 1,964
RERNEH
Forfeited on termination of employment of
eligible participants or lapsed during the year 30.639 (1,246) 25.731 (716)
He&ERSHEERBMRERZIER KM
Outstanding at 31st March 18.130 17,448 16.307 19,794
R=A=+—BERTE
Exercisable at 31st March 12,969 13,597

R=ZA=1+—Hu{TE

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was $30.431 (2020: $37.243).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
is measured based on a binomial lattice model. The contractual life
of the share optionis used as aninput into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial lattice model.

ETEZBRENRFAZITER R 2 MEFIR
E%30431 % (22T :137.2437T) °

() BREZAAERRBR
AEENUREBRERESZRBZDARE T
SECREBREZ A AEHE - DREBRE
2D AENEXBEEN R - BREZ
BREHAFZER 2 —BRASH - BHRER
TREZENEF A EXBEER 2 -

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &

207



208

Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

Fair values of share options and assumptions:

23 LR ANRER TS @)

(c) BREZAABERER @

BREZAARBERRR :

Date of grant
RERH
8/9/2011 31/8/2012 28/6/2013  9/9/2013  2/7/2014 10/9/2014 26/6/2015 14/9/2015 24/6/2016  6/9/2016 26/6/2017 19/6/2018 28/1/2019  21/6/2019 22/6/2020

Fair value at measurement date $0605T  $10437  $1827m Q24w $2150%  $20827m  $3038%  S22487m  $2795%m  $3639m  $33B;m  $59UT  §139;  §T607TT $T651T
WtERHZANE
Share price $549070  $6620m 993707 $9.9507 $100807  $9.9207 $13600% $118407 $13700%  $15.2207  $16080%  $25.1007  $303507%  $387507  $302007%
RE
Exercise price $63587  $64007  $9370% 993707 $100807% 100807 $13600% $13600m  $147927  $147927%  $162967 $25.A00% 9303507 $44810%  $30.2007
g
Expected volatility 25% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 4% 2% 25% 25% 28%
R
Expected option fife Oyears®  10years®  10years®  10years®  10years®E  10years®  10years®  10yeas®  10years®  10vears®  10years®  10years®  10years®  10years®  10years®
RHBRECENE
Expected dividends 55% 50% 40% 40% 35% 35% 30% 30% 25% 25% 25% 20% 20% 20% 20%
RHRE
Risk-free interest rate 1750% 0620% 1720% 2400% 1870% 1.940% 1750% 1730% 1050% 0.950% 1.240% 2230% 1850% 1490% 0.570%

EERAE

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted
for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There was no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.
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24 Income tax in the consolidated 24 HEMBMRRARZAEBH
statement of financial position
(a) Current tax recoverable/(payable) in the (a) HEMBMRRKZEWR (B
consolidated statement of financial position IMEABIIEDN T ¢
represents:
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
$'000 ¥t $000 F it
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year (43,329) (18,455)
REEFBFEHBE
Provisional Profits Tax paid 31,002 37,844
BA 2 TBRERIER
(12,327) 19,389
Taxation outside Hong Kong 51,171 33,332
BB LM EFRE
38,844 52,721
Summary BME
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
$'000 ¥t $000 F it
Current tax recoverable 79,594 66,497
PN 3R B 18
Current tax payable (40,750) (13,776)
PRSI R S
38,844 52,721
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

24 Income tax in the consolidated 24 HEBMBERRRZAEH @
statement of financial position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CEIAELEHREELEE (8E) :

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised NEEH BRI RERACELERBEEE, (B8)
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the ZHEBHNREAZSEBNT
movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation Fair value

allowances adjustment on

in excess tangible and

of the related Future intangible

depreciation benefit of Employee Withholding assets

BLEE taxlosses retirement taxon AR REW Cash flow

FEZHE  BiEEEZ benefits Provisions dividends EBEZAAE hedges Total
RHE ARFE  EERAERN BE REENH #E BEREHW by

$000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fim

Deferred tax arising from:

REUTEEZELHE -
At 1st April 2019 (118402) 29,307 3515 87,287 (19,452) 30 (97) (17,812)
R=Z-NEMA-A
Exchange adjustments 4619 (536) - (5,011) - - - (928)
BN A%
Credited/(charged) to

profit or loss 11,192 3,948 (12) (3,192) 993 (30) - 12,900
RE&EA/ (GIR)
Credited to reserves - - 1872 - - - 156 2,028
BT A
At 31st March 2020 (102,591) 32719 5376 79,084 (18459) - 59 (3812)

RZE-EE=F=1-H

Deferred tax arising from:

KREUTREZETHE -

At 1st April 2020 (102,591) 32,719 5376 79,084 (18,459) - 59 (3,812)
R=B-ZFNA-H

Exchange adjustments (6,421) 588 - 7,599 - - - 1,766
ENAE

Credited/(charged) to
profit or loss (5,690) (3,440) (100) 39,804 (759) - - 29,815

RERA/ (1K)

Charged to reserves - - (4,259) - - - (269) (4,528)
B

At 31st March 2021 (114,702) 29,867 1,017 126,487 (19,218) - (210) 23,241
R-E--F=A=1-H
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24 Income tax in the consolidated 24 HEMBRRERZABH @
statement of financial position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CEIAELEHRELEE (8E) :
(Continued) (%&)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial REBBM R R R
position
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEF
$000 ¥ 7T $'000 F 7T

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position 139,489 97,653
RESMBERRRER ZIELERIBE E T
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position (116,248) (101,465)
RSN RER 2B BAEFRE

23,241 (3,812)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () KRERZELZEMBEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r), the RIBMEE L) TEZE5THER - NEBELEER
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax EENEEBEEREMERFERE397,936,000T (=
losses and other temporary differences of $397,936,000 (2020: FE-FF :337,741000T) 2 EERBEBEE
$337,741,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits EEEREBERERZEEERER T AIEE
against which the losses and other temporary differences can HERREFFRNUEE T A2 EEEERE
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and HERFESR -

entities.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of $85,027,000 ABEAFREE BT E85027007T (ZBE=F
(2020: $77,995,000) which can be carried forward up to twenty F:77,995000 ) A BBEEECFERE
years from the year in which the loss originated. The remaining ~ BEB&Z =+ - H8#312,909000 T (ZE =%
balance of $312,909,000 (2020: $259,746,000) does not expire F 1 259,746,000 7T) £HTFTERBEIFERE
under current tax legislation. o
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends 25 EXR - #FERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HERAMIBHRZEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of ~ ANEBEARERRSHEMIN 2 FNEFREHRZ
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out HIREN GRS ER - AN FERERIARK
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of HORFNRFERZEBFFHIIMT :

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

-\ —
The Company ARH
Share-based
compensation
Share Capital General reserve Hedging Retained Total
capital reserve reserve RAER reserve profits equity
R A —REE HiERE HHGE REEA] ERdE
Note fifz $000 7 $000 7 $000 F 7 $000 F 7t $000 F 7 $000 F 7 $000F
Balance at st April 2019 898,961 35,176 2261 38,214 492 1,706,980 2,682,084

RZB-NEMA-BEH

Changes in equity for the year:
REEVRRET

Transfer from capital reserve to

retained profits 25(d)(i) - (1,218) - - - 1218 -
BEARGEEREREET
Shares issued on exercise of share options 25(c)(ii) 40,367 - - (7,109) - - 33258
ATERREMRTRE
Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 12,686 - - 12,686

DRABAFER RS
Final dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 25(b)(ii) - - - - - (404,181) (404,181)

HEBNE-FEZRBRE

Interim dividend declared in respect

of the current year 25(b)(i) - - - - - (40,424) (40,424)
ERAEE2HHRE
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (790) 302,512 301,722
AEERANRAS
Balance at 31st March 2020 939,328 33,958 2261 43791 (298) 1,566,105 2,585,145

RZB-EE=A=1-RitH
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continved) 25 EZA - EERKRE @
(a) Movements in components of equity (Continued) (a) RERAMIBHRZEE (&)

The Company (Continued) KR A] (&)
Share-based
compensation

Share Capital General reserve Hedging Retained Total

capital reserve reserve RGER reserve profits equity

Bx EXfif —fRit RREE B REER BRAE
Note fifzE $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fx  $000Fm 9000 Fx

Balance at 1st April 2020 939,328 33958 2,261 43791 (298) 1,566,105 2,585,145
R-2-2EMA-REGH

Changes in equity for the year:
REEVRRET

Transfer from capital reserve to

retained profits 25(d)(i) - (1,218) - - - 1,218 -
HEAGEEREREEN
Shares issued on exercise of share options 25(c)(i) 44,702 - - (6,671) - - 38,031
RTRBRERBTRG
Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 15,455 - - 15,455

HRBANHER 225
Transfer from share-based compensation

reserve to retained profits - - - (437) - 437 -
BROERREREERZREEN
Final dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 25(b)(ii) - - - - - (302,325) (302,325)
HEBRL-EE2RERE

Interim dividend declared in respect

of the current year 25(b)(i) - - - - - (40,465) (40,465)
ERAEE2RHRE
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 1,362 478,604 479,966
AFERENEEE
Balance at 31st March 2021 984,030 32,740 2,261 52,138 1,064 1,703,574 2,775,807

W-B--%£=A=1-R&8
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continved) 25 EZA - EERKRE @

(b) Dividends (b) BRE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) B FEARAARELFBEAZEIFERE
Company attributable to the year
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEE
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Interim dividend declared and paid of 3.8 cents per ordinary share
(2020: 3.8 cents per ordinary share) 40,465 40,424
[EA= }JE&ESETTZEPHHBQE -BREER3.81L
(ZZ2=ZF  SREBER3.81L)
Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period of
29.0 cents per ordinary share (2020: 28.4 cents per ordinary share)
(note 25(e)) 309,552 302,132

RERBBRERZAPRE - BREBER29.01L
(ZEBE-ZF  SREEMR 28.41U) (K 25(e))

350,017 342,556

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period RERBEFRZRKARE DR ETERERE
arebasedon 1,067,421,500 ordinary shares (2020: 1,063,843,500 AC R TIRMNAEE 1,067,421,500 REZER (=
ordinary shares), being the total number of issued shares at the ZEHF 1 1,063,843,500 REEMR) sTE

date of approval of the financial statements.

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period RERBEER2RARENER AL KRERS

have not been recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting =

period.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) BRE—FMEFE LERFAMERS
Company attributable to the previous financial year, 1T FALNEIREIFEAZEMNRE

approved and paid during the year

2021 2020
—E-—-F —EEF
$'000 Tt $'000 F T

Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year of 28.4 cents per ordinary share
(2020: 38.0 cents per ordinary share) 302,325 404,181

BRE—BHEE  IRERIERZTZ
FERE -BREFER 28401 (ZE=FF : FREZERR 38.01)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(c) Share capital
(i)  Issued share capital

25 BEXR - FERRKRE @
(c) WA
(i) BEBITKRAX

2021 2020
—E-—F —ERIERF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount

RGEE &8 Lignp 4= x|

'000 F A% $’000 F 7t '000 F % $'000 F 7t
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
ERTREHEZEER
At 1st April 1,063,778 939,328 1,061,582 898,961
REA—AH
Shares issued on exercise of share options 3,410 44,702 2,196 40,367
AT IRFEM 1T R 1D
At 31st March 1,067,188 984,030 1,063,778 939,328

A=A=+—H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(ii)  Shares issued under share option schemes
Duringtheyear, options were exercised to subscribe for 3,410,000
(2020: 2,196,000) ordinary shares in the Company. The net
consideration of $38,031,000 (2020: $33,258,000) was credited
to share capital. $6,671,000 (2020: $7,109,000) was transferred
from the share-based compensation reserve to the share capital
account in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(q)(iv).

EBRFAEATURAKRERZKRE - LATR
ARBZRELHRBREOVEA-—FEREE - H
ARBZHGEEMS - FEEBEREERSHE

A

SH

|

(i) RIZERETZBIRITZREG

F R AR E3410000 (Z BB =T F:
2,196,0000%) A AT EZEBR 2B REET
fFo REFEEEAH38031000T (ZBE-FF:
33,258,000 7T) W2 AR © 6,671,000 7T (=
T -ZF :7,109,0007t) EREMEE 1ag)iv) AT
B BRERDERHBERBRABRKE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February 1994, the
Company disposed of a property to a former subsidiary and
consideration was received in the form of cash and another
property. A total gain, representing the difference between
the historical carrying value of the property disposed of and
the fair value of the consideration received, resulted from such
transaction.

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into realised
and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount of cash and the
fair value of the property received (“the property”). The unrealised
gain was taken to capital reserve and is realised on depreciation
of the property. During the year, $1,218,000 (2020: $1,218,000)
was transferred from capital reserve to retained profits.

(ii)  Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy, Vitasoy
Foshan, Vitasoy Wuhan, Vitasoy Shanghai and Vitasoja (Macau)
Limitada, in accordance with regulations in the PRC and Macau
respectively.

(iii) Other reserve

The other reserve arose from the equity transactions with non-
controlling interests of Shenzhen Vitasoy in 2011 and Vitasoy
Dongguanin 2019.

(iv) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments
used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition of
the hedged cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in note 1(t).

(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong and the foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of monetary items
that in substance form part of the net investment in subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(v).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

25 EX - BEREKRE @

(d) FREEZHERAE

(i) EXFHE
EBAEER—ANNE= BT EE > — 5
B AATE—-EAMELDHE—EYE &
BUBLRE—EYMLEXN  HEARXBELR
Wk o BNFFHEE % > I S BRE S S LB A
BT EEE o

ZHERXRBZWHREWRSRYE (TWE]) A
REZEHD AR BRRRESRIHG - RERW
HEFTABARGHE > WHRTEWEINERER -
RER 1,218,000t (ZE == F : 1,218,000
) BERNRBEEREZREET -

(i) BEFGHEAE

BEREEERRIN MM - fhILAEMT - FUEHEMD
75 EiBMEb IR 4D GRFI) BRQ T D5
RIE AP B NIRRT ZERRRRL ©

(i) Bbf#E

HinfFBEE B RINEMD R REMTI D B
CE—EFEREFE-NFHFEREZIERR
% °

(iv) $ilEs

i ERERERSFERRIBME 1t P8
BeRBHHFRAZ ST BREIYIRERE
ZBREREBYHZEHHATEN DI ARERTFEE
ZEBREG o

(v) ERF#E
ERREESHRETBUMEZMBARRE
ERNRAZMBHRRELEZABEMNEE X ZERIE
HEEBUIMECHBRAREEEHIRE FE—
BOEWEEEE ZIMNEE X5 - ZRHEHE
RIBMIEE 1v) Rz SETERER -



Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note 1(q)

(iv).

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31st March 2021, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,705,835,000 (2020:
$1,568,366,000).

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed
a final dividend of 29.0 cents per ordinary share (2020: 28.4
cents per ordinary share), amounting to $309,552,000 (2020:
$302,132,000) (note 25(b)(i)). These dividends have not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of reporting period.

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this
purpose, the Group defines debt as the total of bills payable, bank
loans and lease liabilities, and adjusted capital as all components
of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

25 EX - BEREKRE @

(d) REZMHERAZE @)

(i) BREGEEGEEE
ROEMBERELSETAEEES > BER
EEBE 2 RTEBREZARE  BEBR
ETARIBIIEE 1(q)(iv) RSt LR B LR > 43K
R B R TR o

(e) At IRfEE
R-ZEBE-—F=A=+—0  REBB(2FAK
Bl 5 6 E 2R LETE 2 AT 5 K F AR D B IR FE
BB AZ#E1#%EH1,705,8350007T (Z2=F
£ 1 1,568,366,000 70) °

REHRBEZ ESEBREARARESRIER
290l (ZZ2=ZF : GREB/R28.41L) - 4
8% 309,552,000t (ZZF=ZF : 302,132,000
7)) (MisE 25(b)(i) ° ZER ERER A L RER
RBE-

() BEXEE

FEETEREAK cEEZERBREAEERE
FREENED  EBSERRRBNERTR
HEREBNKTFRESENASHERE  EH
RAEBRSRREHEHRRSEMANSHEALE
R

AEEEEREHHERRBETRNRER
DAERSRREBUEMTRSEEKTFERER
BERRR TR ZBERREFNGFE » LEE
HBRRBZB{CHERRBELAR -

REXERNES  AEBUEEHERHBERLR
ERERHERERZEE - HILAEN - AEH
HEERAERRNRE  RITERREEREZ
R RPBREARRERE CFEEMBORMIER
RS,
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued)

The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended
31st March 2020, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio below 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group’s debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31st March 2021
and 2020 was as follows:

25 EX - BEREKRE @

() EXREE @)
AEBzRBKEBRZE T _FF=A=1+—HIL
EERETE  BEBEYEHRERLRESR
30% T - BRENBEREHLE  AEERSY
BRERIVRAZRESHE  BITHRE AR
FREEAN SEFEERE N EESELRE
BiE -

AEER - E_—EFER-E-EF=F=+—H
ZEEHERBEERLRMT :

2021 2020
B —E-EF
$'000 ¥t $'000 F 7t
Current liabilities:
TEEE :
Bills payable 182,458 56
BAEE
Bank loans (note 20) 130,306 241,424
IRITER (FIFE20)
Lease liabilities (note 21) 93,582 89,957
HESE (MiFE21)
406,346 331,437
Non-current liabilities:
FREEE -
Lease liabilities (note 21) 111,853 153,617
HEBE (MFE21)
Total debt 518,199 485,054
BEHEE
Total equity 3,956,874 3,418,104
L S
Less: Proposed dividends (note 25(b)(i)) (309,552) (302,132)
B BOREE (FFEE 25(b)())
Adjusted capital 3,647,322 3,115,972
ARG
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 14% 16%
EEHEHEERLE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements
g e
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to fulfilment
of covenants which include maintaining the Group’s debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio below a certain amount and maintaining the
Group’s net worth ratio above a certain amount. Except for the
above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposures to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a) Creditrisk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure
to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are placed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, and the management
consider the Group’s exposure to credit risk is low.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

25 EX - BEREKRE @

() EXREE @)
AEEETFRITESBEHLRE  BEEAEE
T EBEWEREE AL RESNETRENTR
BAEE FEELRERAE THREML - B
PEFrs  AATREEAME A DEBEY
FONBHEIN 2 B A

26 MIBEABREEREMIAEZAD

nfE
FEBE-REBBRTFELE  ADAS -
HEREEEAR - AEEEE2HHARRAEE
BB RRARA YRR SRR R
EHmEIT -

(a) EERBS
FERBERZTERESHNEIMEHAER
B E R 2 b o

AEEzFERREEREREIRT R H AR
moBEEEREFEERR  MTHKRZEBEER

BB EZ SR -
REBZzRERBITERDERRE RFEE
ReehikE  EEEIARTEEERZEER
B o

FEETERMEMESAEEEREERRZ
R -
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in
trade and other receivables)
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments, when due,
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade debtors and
bills receivables are generally due within one to three months from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
industries or countries in which the customers operate. Significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers. At the end of
reporting period, 14.8% (2020: 15.4%) and 33.4% (2020: 35.5%)
of the total trade and other receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and bills
receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

26 BiEBREEREMIAZA
AE @)
(a) EERM @
FEW R 2 R FE Z 1% (B IE R ERERE R
HEKSKA)
FAERBBRBEEESEEF Y AERTER
EEEE - ZETEERRESBAZIMER
EREHERED TEEEEFIBTER
URAEE S SEE EEEBE - BRERR
W — A REA R —S=EAREILE -
—RAS  AEBEFERESSEAR -

AEEREFREEREZTESBRNEE
REFEERR -EAEHEERBREERAE
EERENEFcEARRABRELE - RERA -
AEBBAEFRAREF 2 XF 5 BlEEW
BRI HMERREIE 2 148% (2 F :
15.4%) }% 33.4% (ZZE=FF : 35.5%) °

NESE PR W BRI FE WL SR A5 2 IS 1R A — AR AR
ERAERAFHRzAREERBRE (RAREE
EEE) 22 HE -  HRAKEBREFEERE
KB EBTNTREFIM2BREXFEEX
=2 BURBEMAR R EEER AR EE AR
SETREFHEFE-TED -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade debtors and bills

receivable:

26 BIEREEREMTAZA

RE @
(a) EEREBR (@)

TREHBRASEE R EW IR R ERESE

Rz EEREREAEREEBREZEN

2021
—E-—F

Gross carrying

2020
—EC-TE

—=—=

Gross carrying

amount Loss allowance amount Loss allowance
IREAE EiRRE IREAAE EiaRE
'000 F 7T $'000 T '000 F 7T $000 F 7t
Current (not past due) 743,702 - 624,247 -
BNER (R3EHA)
Less than one month past due 46,967 (814) 56,124 (889)
BHROR—EA
One to three months past due 23,533 (850) 21,157 (518)
BE—Z=1EA
More than three months but less than twelve
months past due 6,382 (178) 7,462 (356)
BHEB=EAEBLR+=M@EA
More than twelve months past due 1,641 (396) 808 (348)
BHREE+ 8B
822,225 (2,238) 709,798 (2,111)
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivable during the year is as follows:

26 BiREREEREMIAEZA
RAE @)

(a) 1=EREBE @)

FEWBES T BN E S > FERERRERN 22T

T

2021 2020
—E-—F bt 223
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Balance at 1st April 2,111 1,277
RO A — B 4&ek
Exchange adjustments 173 (98)
B 5 A%
Impairment losses recognised 255 977
HRREREE
Uncollectible amounts written off (301) (45)
FA] Uk [l & B8 2 8N
Balance at 31st March 2,238 2,111

R=B=+—H#%&

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management for daily operation, including placing
short term cash deposits and raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. Cash surplus over operating needs are
closely monitored and managed by the Group’s central cash and
treasury management system. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term. The Group’s exposures to the liquidity risk and its policies
for managing such risk were unchanged from the year ended 31st
March 2020.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

(b) REVE SR
AEEENSCEERAEHAEEFEZREE
B BEFHEPREeFRREAERUARER
HRS$ER  EMEERAETHEABEZRE
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

26 BIEREEREMTAZA

RE @
(b) RBESERE @)

TREIWAEE2EHEERERB 2B TELH
HIRR - LDRBENARITRRERE (BERE
WA FMEFERERABITZARFEZ
MENRK) URAEEAEERBRAZ&ETH

based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the BAfED#T -
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
2021
—E-_-F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRATRR SR
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Syears  After 5 years Total Amount
-ERg SR-FE  SHREE
REX HRWE HREF LER #ct SR
$000 T $/000 Tt $'000 7 $000 T $000 Tt $000 7
Trade and other payables (excluding receipts
in advance and customer deposits) 2,392,098 - - - 2,392,098 2,392,098
BEARARE MR
(FEERKTEREFRS)
Bank loans 130,887 - - - 130,887 130,306
RITEH
Lease liabilities 94,991 68,179 43941 19,259 226,370 205,435
BEAE
2,617,976 68,179 43941 19,259 2,749,355 2,727,839
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(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair 26 BIRAMEERESHMIAZA
values of financial instruments (continued) RAE @)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBELEE (&)
2020
-

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARATRRER
More than More than
Within 1year but 2years but

1yearor less than less than Carrying

ondemand 2years Syears  After 5years Total Amount
—ERd SR-FE SRWEE

REX DIWE DREE nE# At REE

$000Fm  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fw

Trade and other payables (excluding receipts

inadvance and customer deposits) 1,635,803 - - - 1,635,803 1,635,803
NS S

(FERERUFEREFRE)

Bank loans 242,191 = = = 242,191 241424
RITER
Lease liabilities 91,337 70,993 87,433 19,052 268,815 243574
HEAE

1,969,331 70,993 87433 19,052 2,146,809 2,120,801

224 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4t B EIFS £ BB R A



Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair 26 BIRAMEERESHMIAZA
values of financial instruments (continued) RAE @)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBELEE (&)
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-EF

Contractual undiscounted cash
(outflow)/inflow

BRRFREAS (Rd) RA

Contractual undiscounted cash
(outflow)/inflow

BRRFRAS (RE) RA

Within 1 year Within 1 year
or on demand Total or on demand Total
—FRH —FRs,
RER wet RER Ast
$'000 F 7t $'000 Tt $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Derivatives settled gross:
EAHETET A :
Forward foreign exchange contracts
(note 26(d))
HHIMNES K (ML 26(d)
- Outflow - - (45,371) (45,371)
- M
- Inflow - - 46,235 46,235
- A
(c) Interestrate risk () R=Epx

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows FERBESMIAZ ARESIRRRERER
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in FET S F RSB MK S 2 Ak

market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest- AEBZAZRBREEREBHEMSEE - REEE
bearing borrowings. The Group monitors the level of its fixedrate =~ THHEERZEMEEKE - KAEFREEEEE
and variable rate borrowings. The Group's interest rate profile as ZHREBEAT X ()18 ©

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
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26 Financial risk management and fair 26 BIRAMEERESHMIAZA
values of financial instruments (Continued) AE @
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FI=EpE (@)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIFEEH
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's TREINAEENHEEERERE 2N ZRE
interest-bearing borrowings at the end of the reporting period: &
2021 2020
—E=—f =t St i
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BEFIZ= Xl BRAIE o}
% $'000 Tt % $'000 F T
Fixed rate borrowings:
EEMBE :
Lease liabilities 855 205,435 3.48 243,574
HEaE

Variable rate borrowings:

FEREE

Bank loans 3.95 130,306 242 241,424
BITEM

Total borrowings 335,741 484,998
BEHER
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31st March 2021, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits by approximately
$977,000 (2020: $1,946,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits in respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period. The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation and
retained profits is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense of such a change in interest rates. Management assumed
that certaininterest-bearing borrowings maturing during the next
reporting period will be rolled over upon the maturing for daily
operation purposes.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its debt obligation. The fixed rate
instruments of the Group are insensitive to any change in market
interest rate. A change in interest rate at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31st March 2020.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and borrowings which giverise to receivables, payables,
cash balances and lease liabilities that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. acurrency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD”),
Australian dollars (“AUD”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”), Philippines
Peso (“PHP”), Renminbi (“RMB”), European dollars (“EUR”) and
New Zealand dollars (“NZD").

26 MKEKEEREMIAEZA
AE @

(c) =@ (@)

(i) BBMEDHT

RZBEZ—F=A=Z+—HB GsAERZE

R THR-EEEY EREEMTEBHEE

RETEZERT  AEBEBRBBENRRE R

FMASE R,/ #Eh0# 977,000 T (ZB-FHF :

1,946,000 7T) ©

LB TBERARERER DA 2F8
NRTASIBAKEEERSRENRAM 2R
BREENRREBEN ZERZE - NEBERRBE
BNRREBNAZE DRSBTS
Xz FEFEMT - EEBERNT — A%
HHEIH S THEAERIIBMREEEUE
AEEEZM -

REBITE ST MESMEERDIABFELTA
B% BASETEERTESRT AR PHEE
BEE - AREZEETEEE AN SAEREE
WA - EFHRA 2R REFHW AL ERES -

BE_ZE_ZF=-RA=1+—HIFEEZDIWME
IBAEEEEELT -

(d) E¥EE
FEEHRzENRBETERBEEEREEM
EEZRU - BN  RefBpREEEE
ZEBB TN (RGP EB ZEER
LU E%) sHE - EXRRERBCEREIER
Ex(MExl) - Bx ([Bx]) K (MK
7Tl) FERBRER (TR ARB (TAR
1) B (TExl) R¥AMT ([HEHR
JTl) e
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD"), all sales and purchases are denominated in either HKD
or USD, except for certain transactions with group entities and
purchases that are denominated in AUD, SGD, PHP, RMB, EUR
and NZD. Given the HKD is pegged to the USD, management
does not expect that there will be any significant currency risk
associated with such USD denominated transactions.

For group entities whose functional currency is a currency
other than HKD, except for certain sales and transactions with
group entities and certain borrowings from group entities that
are denominated in HKD, most of the other transactions are
denominated in their functional currencies.

The Group’s policies for managing such risk were unchanged from
the year ended 31st March 2020. During the year ended 31st
March 2021, the Group uses bank balances to hedge its currency
risk arising from the purchase of raw materials and machineries
that are denominated in foreign currency and classifies these as
cash flow hedges as set out in note 18(a).

The Group has also used forward exchange contracts to manage
its currency risks.

Changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts that
economically hedge monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in other comprehensive
income. There was no assets (2020: assets of $501,000)
recognised as derivative financial instruments for net fair value
of forward exchange contracts used by the Group as economic
hedges of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at 31st March 2021.

In respect of other trade receivables and payables denominated
in foreign currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

26 BIEREEREMTAZA

RAE @)
(d) E¥EbE @)
MIELE M REE ([EY]) YEEERHS -

BRETEEEEERETZXZRERBLURT «
TR AR BTRHBERTIESN PR
BEEYRBEHETE - ARBBEETH
# EEERPAERSURAHEZRZLE
EAERERE R -

PUMBEERABE LN EB 2 EEERME
(5= Ftﬂ%&éﬁi%laﬁizﬁﬁzxguﬁéﬁiﬁl
BREETHEERBEITEN  HUXBHRS
BIRHIhEEE R ETE -

BEE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-ALFERL" $’§
EERARARCBELEZE RNEEZ
—_$2ﬁ2+_EE$E’$$.ﬂﬁﬂﬁm
TFEHHBE UIMNETHE 2 EM B R SR R T E
Lz B E KR - I EE 18(a) AT EUE 2 E R1T
EEIEARSREE T -

REE A

ERNMESHERHERAM -

REEBERUINETTECEREEREEZE
HIESHN 2 IRESBRNAME2EREAE
woRZFEZ-F=A=1t—-8 FREAEL
BHHRLUINEHEZEREER BEZERINE
BHZEIAERELERIAD/TESMITAZE

E (ZZZFF : EF501,0007T) °
BESNEFHE 2 A BUERA R BN RAM S -

FEEEEEERRNMEREEING - UEE
BHIR R - BARFE R TR AT AKX
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s significant exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in HKD, translated using the spot rates at the year end
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong
into the Group’s presentation currency, the exposure arising
from the borrowings from group entities that in substance form
part of the net investment in subsidiaries and the bank balances
that are designated as a hedge of the Group’s foreign currency
risk of highly probable forecast transactions or committed future
transactions are excluded.

26 BiEBREEREMIAZA
AE @)

(d) E¥ER @)

() AEZEEEE
THRHFIAEBMNERD UEEEE > S
PN S E Y DR SRR EEE S
AEBER - BERMEREZSENRELAS
ENEAE R E R B 252 A o MEE B
WEMBATRAEATAZHBRERANED
SHEMMEEL2E RAEEBSE Y
(BEHRANBARZREFEZ—87) A
B o URISE ARSI E MR AT AT
RBREEBETZRRR S 2 IMEER 2 8R1T
Y TEEER o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)

AERREE (NE%HE)

2021
jut- S

2020
e

UsD EUR SGD HKD RMB PHP AUD NZD
HEWT

it Br Em BN OARR HE AR

UsD EUR SGD HKD RMB PHP AUD NZD
i B Hm B%  ARE UE  An HEER

$000F7% $000Fx $000F7 $000F% $000Fx $000F7% $000F7% $000F: $000F7x $000F7% $000Fi $000F7x $000F7% $000FA $000F7T $000FT

Cashand bank deposits 8,305 1 - 51502
BERBITHER

Amount due from/[to) group
companies 7983 - 2475

/() $BRE

MARE
Loantojoint venture
HEELRELZER
Trade and other receivables - - - - - 4895
FEBRSR AR
Trade and other payables
TR AR

133,161 = 345

(19,554)  (1987) - 10648

(18477)  (4329) (433) - I - (149

37,303 1 104879 50717 = 190

4,349 - 2159 (18019 5770 - 8018

53,305

2122

(18854)  (13257) (314) - ([419) = (608)

Gross exposure arising from
recognised assets and
liabilties (2189) (4322 2042 31948

BEREERARELL

129003 4895 9,501

Notional amount of forward
exchange contracts used as
economic hedges

RSB RS
NEGNEELE

279 (1325) 1845 86860 52297 55427 7,600

4022 = = = = - (41684)

Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and
liabilities (2189) (43220 2042 31948

BRREERARELL
BREAREE

129003 4895 9,501

279 (9234 1845 86860 52297 55427 7600  (41684)
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group entities have
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the
HKD and the USD would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the USD against other currencies.

26 BIEMEEREMIAZA

RE @
(d) E¥ER @)
(i) SRS
THRIFHREREAEESEEEYSARR>
BE SR A% A 30 4 B ) AL B 2 [ R B 44 %5 R
RARE R M2 (R FELbER TS
BEZEZTE) MUTHS  DEsMeEE
TrMBERTEEE T IS TAER
ERBHTHIINEAYE -

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after

in foreign taxation and in foreign taxation and

exchange rates retained profits exchangerates retained profits

BRBLER I F MREE RS

ExRLEH RAR BT ExEH RARE = H

(T&) L£H(FE) (T&) L£F (FEk)

$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
usD 5% (129) 5% (290)
ET (5)% 129 (5)% 290
EUR 5% (166) 5% (357)
BT (5)% 166 (5)% 357
SGD 5% 85 5% 77
W IT (5)% (85) (5)% (77)
HKD 5% 974 5% 3,134
pated (5)% (974) (5)% (3,134)
RMB 5% 5,304 5% 2,108
AR (5)% (5,304) (5)% (2,108)
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @

(d) E¥mEk (@

(i) BB ()

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ERCERF
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after
in foreign taxation and in foreign taxation and
exchange rates retained profits exchangerates retained profits
BB B A BRI
ExtAH RRE = EZEH RARE = F
(T&) L£#H (F) (T®) L£F (FER)
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
PHP 5% 204 5% 2,754
kb & (5)% (204) (5)% (2,754)
AUD 5% 472 5% 366
BT (5)% (472) (5)% (366)
NZD 5% - 5% (1,459)
HFEBE T (5)% - (5)% 1,459

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after taxation measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

EREMZAMERBRAEEASTEERAZEY
BEERTTE 2 RBRBERN - RERABTZER
BRERBELUEZ R BEBINKE -
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements
of subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong into the
Group’s presentation currency, the exposure arising from the
borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries and the bank balances that are
designated as ahedge of the Group’s foreign currency risk of highly
probable forecast transactions or committed future transactions.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31st March 2020.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
consolidated financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1

inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

26 BiEBREEREMIAZA
AE @)

(d) E¥ER @)

(i) BBMESH (F)
SEBMESFDBRERSHEAREHTEAE
BRERBSESAEEEHIERRZZZS
BTE SEAEEATNUERARERA
THREE MELUS ST EZ B R R EWE - 5
M EERREEEUIMENBATRAEA
AR REBAEB S 2 EWMMELE 22
B RAEEEES S (FEBARANEL T
TREFHE—BH) MELZRR  URIET
PRSP A E MR AT 2 X B RE A
ETZRRR S ZIMEERZBTREE - BE=
E-TFEZA=+—ALFEZSNIRRER
EEEST o

(e) ARMEFE

(i) BAREBEZLHEEREE
ARELEE
TREVEPRERATE2AEBRZESRMT
BEQRE RB(EBUBREER) F1358 4
REFEIFREZZRDAABERBETOE -
BARENEDB2ERNLSENTHERE
FrAMASE 2 TBREREEMEAETE :

- B-RhE: EERS-REARE (R
SAEAREEERRBERNERT S ZRE
ARWE) FTEZDE -
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is measured using
Level 2 inputs. The fair value is determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the current spot rate.
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant government
yield curve as at the end of the reporting period plus an adequate
constant credit spread.

(ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

All other financial instruments of the Group carried at costs or

amortised costs are not materially different from their fair values

as at 31st March 2021 and 2020.

27 Commitments
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31st March 2021 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

26 BiREREEREMIAEZA
RAE @)

(e) DAREFTE (@)

(i) BARBHEBZSHREERERE (&)

RAERE (&)

- BIHMGE: ERE-RWARE (BIREE
ERE - Rz UEERRABE) BXRER
BEATUEEGAHBHAEBZARE T
TEHERABBREDSHE2BARE -

- ESREE: EREATTRESARS
HEZAAME -

ERMNESHN 2 ARETNRAE - R ABET
B WEBNRANEHMERRINRRENHE
REE o IR TR RBRER B 2 BB
BEHUERHE  SMEAZBEEEFERERT
o

(i) UHFBRAAEIIRZEMTRZAAE

R-B--§R-B-BF=A=1-0 4%
B R AR A S RS BT BE
HARELMEAER -

27 EIE
(a) R=B=—F=A=+-8 FEHBH
RRBEZRNERERDT

2021 2020

—E-—F bt 223

$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T

Contracted for 62,536 347,950

EHIES

Authorised but not contracted for 365,044 806,580
EEEERTY

427,580 1,154,530

Asat 31stMarch2021,the Groupiscommittedtocertaincontracts
for the acquisition and construction of plant and machinery and
buildings.

RIBEZ—F=A=+—8  XEEEEETS
THERBEERERKEUREFZEY -
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27 Commitments (Continued)

(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint

27 EIE @)
(b) ®EHALXAEBEESLEATZER

venture not included above are as follows: EENT

2021 2020

—B-—-F —EEF

$'000 Tt $'000 F T

Contracted for - 2,271

258

Authorised but not contracted for 323 237
EREERETY

323 2,508

28 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
inthese financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with related parties

(i)

(ii)

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efth 3 Bl B2 &

The products of the Group are distributed in Australia by a
related party (non-controlling interests of the Company’s
subsidiary) and a management fee is charged for the
provision of services. The management fee is calculated
based on a pre-determined percentage of the net sales of
products distributed by the related party. Total management
fees charged by the related party for the year amounted
to $26,639,000 (2020: $24,632,000). The amount due
to the related party as at 31st March 2021 amounted to
$7,381,000 (2020: $6,066,000).

On 29%9th July 2013, the Group entered into a distribution
agreement with a related party (non-controlling interests
of the Company’s subsidiaries) in New Zealand pursuant to
which the related party agreed to distribute the products
of the Group in New Zealand. A management fee is charged
for the provision of services. The management fee is
calculated based on a pre-determined percentage of the
net sales of products distributed by the related party. Total
management fee charged by the related party for the year
amounted to $6,715,000 (2020: $7,060,000). The amount
due to the related party as at 31st March 2021 amounted to
$2,143,000 (2020: $1,739,000).

BEARAE

28 EXBAEALRS
BESMBRESERBEL RS REBIN KR
EETINTEABEALRS -

(a)
(i)

(ii)

BEREATZRS
REBEMHA—BREAL (RREME
RAZFERER) PRNDHE AL
RREHBRBUNEEER EEEREE
AEEZZRAEATOHERBEEFHEZ
BOLFE - FR - ZEEATREZE
BEHEH26639000T (ZE_FF:

24,632,0007t) c RZBE=-Z—F=ZA=+—
HE(S F2EA L 2518 % 7,381,000 7T

S 6,066,0007T) ©

(Z2=%

R-ZEBE—=FtA=-+NB KEEHE—
FEEAL (RAANEBELAR ZIERE
W) RFRBT L - B HEmE Bt
ZHEATRERFTABIEAEEZE
Mo ZEAEALTHREMHRELRMEEE
A -EREEARBABEEZZBEALY
HEMEEFECEILTE -FR - &
Eﬁ@ki”&ﬁizéﬁ%ﬁin/\éHS 0007t
ZEZFE 1 7060,0007T) c RZFB=—
F=A=1+—HENFZBREALTZRE
%2,143,000T (=& =& % : 1,739,000
TT) °
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28 Material related party transactions

(a)
(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

The Group has entered into a distribution agreement with a
joint venture in the Philippines pursuant to which the Group
agreed to supply soya related beverages and raw materials
to the joint venture. Total sales to the joint venture for the
year amounted to $14,233,000 (2020: $31,607,000). The
amount due from the joint venture as at 31st March 2021
amounted to $5,771,000 (2020: $4,356,000).

The Group has entered into a loan agreement with the joint
venture pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide a
loan to finance the business activities of the joint venture.
The loan bears interest at 4.75% per annum, is unsecured
and is repayable after one year from the end of the
respective reporting period. Total interest income from the
joint venture for the year amounted to $2,628,000 (2020:
$1,644,000). The loan to joint venture as at 31st March
2021 amounted to $56,070,000 (2020: $53,305,000) and
has been fully impaired as at 31st March 2021.

The related party transactions in respect of (i) and (ii) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, they are exempt from

the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

as they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

(iv)

BEREEATIRZ @)

HBEBEALZRS @)
AEBEHE-HFEEEEE QAL —
DHEHE B AEERE HE%M“
AHEXRZHEBRRREME - FR - [
zé§“7¢&z%=wﬁﬁmzmmo
7T (ZEZFH 1 31,607,0007T) c K=
:—E—H—+—HEW%%§“12n
15%5,771,000T (ZE=FF : 4,356,000
JT) °

AEBCRGE QR L -HER DGR
Bt ARERERHE-FENR B
BRELRAZERIDRME ZENRF

BA475%5 8 EEKA BERSBE
MAZ—FHREZ - TR REZEED
RZFBE W ABEER2628000T (=F
ZEZF 1644000T) c RZEZ—F
=ZA=+—HB B&EQTAELHZERA
56,070,000 T ( =& = & £ : 53,305,000
) WRZZBE-—F=B=+—HE2#
/JE/HE"

FHRBEBEE(R(NVECEEALRZBR LT
RABAABTREZFERERS - AT B

AZER B IRNE 14A76(1) R ERIEPIE - F it

BB EmRAE

VAAEZEZIHBERE °
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28 Material related party transactions 28 EXBEALRZ @)
(Continued)
(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FAEEEAEZME

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEEBREEASZHE (BEME7IEE
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as disclosed OAAREEX T2 REURKMT8AIEERS
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in FTRESFEESF2FE) 0T

note 8, is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ECERF

$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Short-term employee benefits 47,035 47,245
EHESER

Post-employment benefits 1,352 1,248

BEEEER

Equity compensation benefits 10,962 8,998
RAFHEEF

59,349 57,491

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). HEINESEFT A TEIRA J(BMEES(D)) °

29 Equity transaction with non-controlling 29 EEFEREZCERRH

interests
During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Group and Shenzhen BE-Z_ZEF=A=1+—HILFE  xEEK
GuangMing Group Co., Ltd (“Guangming”) contributed additional FINTABEEEERARE ([KA]) EoRlEE
capital totalling RMB119,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RS 2 35 B LEf5) 85% K 15% REIMNEI BREE
$137,254,000) to Vitasoy Dongguan in proportion to their HMIIEE S HE AR 119,000,000 (HER
shareholding of 85% and 15% in Vitasoy Dongguan respectively, #1137,254,0007t) » H A A K% 17,850,000 7T
of which RMB17,850,000 (equivalent to approximately (HHEM# 20,588,000 T) AXFEFENIRGZE
$20,588,000) was contributed by Guangming and was presented HEREXRPURBFIERERZFTERY -
as capital contribution from a non-controlling interest in the
consolidated cash flow statement.
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B RAR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHBI - BUBKEEHE)

30 Company-level statement of financial

position

2021
—E-—F

$'000 ¥t $'000 Tt

30 ATFEBMEZMEAMRR T

2020
.
$000Fx  $000 F7T

Non-current assets
FREBEE

Property, plant and equipment
¥ - BMERRE

- Investment properties
-REYHE

- Right-of-use assets

-EREEE

- Other property, plant and equipment

-Etk - BERRE

Interest in subsidiaries

TRF S 1 B) 2 fE

Deposits for the acquisition of property,

plant and equipment

BEWE  BERREZITE

Current assets

REEE

Inventories

=7E8

Trade and other receivables
FE U BR R % EL At FE R
Amounts due from subsidiaries
FEUS Bt B 2 Bl FRIE
Current tax recoverable
FEUS IR B 18

Cash and bank deposits
RERRITER

Current liabilities
mEBE

Trade and other payables
FETBRFA R EL At R TR
Bank loan

IRITEN

Amounts due to subsidiaries
FEASHY B A RIFRIE
Lease liabilities

HERE

Current tax payable

R E

Net current assets
BERBEE
Total assets less current liabilities

REERABEE

3,375
118,092
578,655

- 700,122

1,638,386

1,096

2,339,604

150,276
477,059

189,730

520,109

1,337,174

598,218

89,872

58,734

14,223

761,047

576,127

2,915,731

3,502
154,431
606,334
764,267

1,721,300

51

2,485,618

166,949
455,446
402,704

17,496
124,249

1,166,844

550,689
190,000
67,644

55,600

302,911

2,788,529
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g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

30 Company-level statement of financial 30 ARIEBHZHBEMRRTK @

pOSitiOl’l (Continued)

2021 2020
=F=—F -

Note &£ $'000 ¥t $'000 7T $000 F 7T $'000 F T

Non-current liabilities

FRBEME

Lease liabilities

HEAE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERNEFNERE

Deferred tax liabilities

EERERE

NET ASSETS
FEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BAXR#E
Share capital

RA

Reserves

&

TOTAL EQUITY
A

74,531
898

64,495

139,924
2,775,807

25(a) 984,030

1,791,777

2,775,807

115,469

27,956

59,959

203,384

2,585,145

939,328

1,645,817

2,585,145

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

17th June 2021.

Winston Yau-lai LO
ERE
Director

Ex

ﬁﬁo

Roberto GUIDETTI

FEEE
Director

EF

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEAI - LUBMEEE)

31 Non-adjusting events after the
reporting period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
25(b)(i).

32 Comparative figures

Certain expenses of Mainland China and Hong Kong Operation
segments as disclosed in note 3 have been reallocated to
conform with the current year’s presentation to reflect more
appropriately the performance of the reportable segments. As a
result, head office and corporate administrative costs decreased
by $68,467,000 and reportable segment profit from operations
of Mainland China and Hong Kong Operation decreased by
$47,847,000 and $20,620,000 respectively.

33 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard, HKFRS
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31st March 2021 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

31 BAFEHARCERARER

EFNERAREBRERPRE - E—DFF
JRBEE 25(b) (i) PIKEE ©

32 HEBEF

MMEEIATINE  PEAMREBER I B2E
TERACEH B FERFEARFE 2% B
FEEEMRMARESB2RE - Al - ER
AR BEITHRAR D 68,467,000 @ B E K
R EBEKBERED B2 LERITD BIHD
47,847,000 jt K 20,620,000 JT °

33 BEREMERARBE=Z=—
FZA=1+—HLEFEEE¥Z
CHIREHE L&D
K2 &

BEZEUBBRERTIZ2E SBSHALAEE

EHEBE—E-——F=A=t—HLEEELE

Mo NEEZENBRRIFAZEEETIR—E

FETER|  (BBUBRELER) F175% [RES

[l EREETHIREEAREERE 2155

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

KT 5 B

W2 ERERZ

BHHBEN
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1st January 2022
(BBYMBRELER) 5 35 [HLRMELZ5IH | 2185 —E-—%—-HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1st January 2022
(BBETHER) F 1655 [W¥# - MERRE | FAERE RS ZrEsHE | 21857 —E-—%—-HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 1st January 2022
(BBETHER) FI75K [FEMEHN — BHILE | 2185 —E-_-%—-HF—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 - 2020 Cycle 1st January 2022
(BEMBREED) — 22— \FE2_E_ZSFRBFERE —E-_—_f%—F—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group concluded that the adoption
of any of the above amendments is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

REBEFEZEETRERERPE AR
2 -HIBAAL  RMALMEMETERTSE
HAEEGESMBHRRELEEATE
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
LI FEHERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LUB#ETE)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—g-—F C—B-ZF —B-RF —B-N\F —Z—LF
Note iz~ $'000 ¥t  $000Ft $000FjT  $000Fi  $000FT
Results
4
Revenue 2 7,519,817 7,232,641 7,526,495 6,464,525 5,406,090
A
Profit from operations 1,2 843,471 707,433 977,160 822,248 848,034
KRR
Finance costs 1,3 (11,770) (10,932) (2,086) (1,700) (3,730)
[E= 2 ®N
Share of losses of joint venture (22,242) (17,433) (19,236) (17,814) (627)
Frih &% N RlEE
Impairment loss on interest in
joint venture (42,800) - - - -
SENTER ZBEEE
Profit before taxation 766,659 679,068 955,838 802,734 843,677
FRBLADR K
Income tax 1,2,3 (177,151) (109,477) (208,143) (160,679) (190,383)
FriSH
Profit for the year 589,508 569,591 747,695 642,055 653,294
REERF
Attributable to:
THI AL :
- Equity shareholders
of the Company 548,346 535,878 695,907 585,774 618,372
- RATREFEA
- Non-controlling interests 41,162 33,713 51,788 56,281 34,922
- RS
Profit for the year 589,508 569,591 747,695 642,055 653,294
REE AT
Assets and liabilities
EERERE
Property, plant and equipment 1 4,142,718 3,712,005 2,939,306 2,348,875 2,053,276
Y - MERRE
Other non-current assets 163,942 181,288 163,852 173,144 97,027
HihFREEE
Net current (liabilities)/
assets 1 (114,224) (185,794) 488,007 737,116 823,069
FRE (BE) EE
Total assets less current
liabilities 1 4,192,436 3,707,499 3,591,165 3,259,135 2,973,372
REERRBEE
Non-current liabilities 1 (235,562) (289,395) (121,605) (89,989) (283,666)
FEREEE
NET ASSETS 3,956,874 3,418,104 3,469,560 3,169,146 2,689,706
FEE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR £ E AR A 7]



Five year summary
hEMBREE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LUB#ETE)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--F ZEBIERF ZE-hF ZT-N\F IZB—LH
Note FffzE $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Capital and reserves
ERKfEE
Share capital 984,030 939,328 898,961 857,335 774,246
[N
Reserves 2,3 2,632,023 2,189,062 2,266,451 2,052,422 1,697,123
&
Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company 3,616,053 3,128,390 3,165,412 2,909,757 2,471,369
RARREFEA
bR
Non-controlling interests 340,821 289,714 304,148 259,389 218,337
IR ER
TOTAL EQUITY 3,956,874 3,418,104 3,469,560 3,169,146 2,689,706
A
Earnings per share
BREF
- Basic 515centsfli 504centsfll 65.6centsfill  555centsfili  58.9 cents{ll
-EK
- Diluted 510centsflll 499centsfli 650centsfli  550centsfili  58.4centsAll
-8
Notes to the five year summary A FMBEHERTE

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, Leases, with effect from 1st
April 2019, the Group has changed its accounting policies in respect
of the lessee accounting model. In accordance with the transitional
provisions of the standard, the changes in accounting policies were
adopted by way of opening balance adjustments to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities as at 1st April 2019. After initial
recognition of these assets and liabilities, the Group as a lessee is
required to recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Figures in years earlier than 2020 are stated in accordance with
the policies applicable in those years.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers, with effect from 1st April 2018, the Group changed its
accounting policies in respect of revenue recognition. Figures in years
earlier than 2019 are stated in accordance with the policies applicable
inthose years.

HREABE-Z-NFNA-ARERZ (BB
BHELER) F16R[HE] REBZEHEE
BASTERXZEFEE - RIBZER ZBEMRE
X B BRZEDERA T ABBRBPNELE
ABZFAUERR-Z-NFHA-B2EHA%E
BERMERE ROSHIAZTEERERR
REE (ERFEAN) ARIEEREREEERE
EZFEBRARERAEEENE  MIARBBEZ
HRNEREEERIBRNECLHEELEZHESE
B CEERFENANBFREERFENER
BRES -

HREABE-Z2-N\FOA-ARERZ(EBHY
BRELL) F 1R [FEFEHKRA ] AEBRE
BRBRARIZEHEE - —E-NFUNNEF
REERFENERBRZY

Annual Report 2020/2021 FE &

241



242

Five year summary
hEMBREE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LUB#ETE)

Notes to the five year summary (Continued)

3 The Group adopted HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation, from 1st April 2018. As a result, the Group changed its
accounting policies in relation to financial instruments. As allowed by
HKFRS 9, the Group did not restate information relating to prior years.
There was no difference in the carrying amounts of the financial assets
and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9. Figures
in years earlier than 2019 are stated in accordance with the policies
applicable in those years.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR £ E AR A 7]

FEMBHERE (5)

FEBE-Z2-N\FOA-BERRA(EBIBR
SEADFIRILMTA |- BE(EBUBREE
) B9 EBAFERIMEZFANHIE] ZIEFT °
Hit AEECHEFHESRMTANSEE - B
B(EBUBBELER) 95 FAEBAEETE
RFEECEN - RM(EBUBRELR) F95%
VEEHETHEENEHEBEZRAEHRER -
—E-NAFHUANEZREABEFENERARKZ
5 -
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The Soy Experts

WWW.vitasoy.com

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
1 Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun
The New Territories, Hong Kong

MBI EERR A A
BRI BFIEEA 5

MIX
Tel 5% : (852) 24660333 L@
Fax 8E : (852) 2456 3441
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